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TR Property Investment Trust plc

The investment objective of TR Property
Investment Trust plc is to maximise
shareholders’ total returns by investing

in the shares and securities of property
companies and property related businesses
internationally and also in investment
property located in the UK.

INTRODUCTION

TR Praperty Investmert Trust plc (the "Compary ™ o1 the
“Trust™) was formed in 1505 and has been a dedicated
property investor since 1982 The Comoany s an
Investment Trust and 1ts shares are preminm hsted on the
London Stock Exchange

BENCHMARK

The benchmarik is the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Develoged
Furope Capped Net Total Retuin Index r Slefhng,

INVESTMENT POLICY

The Company seeks 1o achieve 115 objective by investing in
shates and secunties ol property companies and oroperty
related businesses on aninternatioral Basis, although,
will 4 Pan-Eurapean benchrmark, the majority of e
investments will be located 11 that geographical area The
Company also invests ininvestiment property lecatec in
tne UK onty

Further getalls of the Irvestment Policies, the Assel
Allacanon Guideires and policies regarding the use of
geanng are sel out In the Strateqic Renort 01 page 25 and
the eaure portfoho s shawn on page 18

INVESTMENT MANAGER

MO Invesiment 3usiness Limited acts as the Company’s
alternative investment fund marager ("AIFNT) with
portfoiio maragerment delegated 1o Thames River Capital
i P ("the Poitfoho ®arager” or “the Manager™) Marcus
Phay-e-Mudge has managec the porioie since T April
2077 and been part of the Fund tanagemen! team since
1997
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INDEPENDENT BOARD

The Directors are all independent of the Marager and
Tieet reqularly to consider ipvestmert sliategy. to monilor
adheence to the stated objective and investment policies
and to review performance Oetails of how the Boarg
operates and fulfils 1ts respensibiities are set out i the
Report of the Directors on page 47

PERFORMANCE

The Frimancial Highhights for the curreat year are sel au
opposite and Histoncal Performance can e found on
page 3 Key Performance Indicators are sel outir the
Strategic Report 6n pages 26 and 27

RETAIL INVESTORS ADVISED BY IFAS

The Company curteatly conducis s affars so that ws
shares can be recomimended by independent Financia’
Advisers ("IFAST) m ine UK Lo osdinary retail inveslors in
accordance wath the Finanaal Corduc: Autharity ("FCAT)
ules 1 relalion Lo non-mainstieam nvestment products
and intends o continue to do so The snares are exciuded
from the FCAS restnictions, which appty to non-mainstream
investment products, because they are shares n an
authonsed investment trust

FURTHER INFORMATION

General sharenolder infoiratior ard detalls of now o
invest N TR Property Investment Trust plo inclucing an
irvestment through an 1SA o1 saving scheme, can be
found ar pages 1'1 and 117. Tris information can also oe
found or the Trusl's websile www irnropery com

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST 1



Financial Highlights and Performance

Balance Sheet
Net asset value per share

Shareholders’ funds (£'000)

Shares in issue at the end of the year (m)
Net debt's

Share Price
Share price
Market capitalisation

Revenue
Revenue earnings per share

Dividends’

interim dividend per share
Final dividend per share
Total dividend per share

Performance: Assets and Benchmark
Net Asset Value total return?s
Benchmark total return®

Share price total return

Ongoing Charges>*

tncluding performance fee

Excluding performance fee

Excluding pesformance fee and direct property costs

Year ended
31 March
201

A17.97p
1,326,433
317.4
8.5%

392.50p
€1,246m

Year ended
31 March
20

12.25p

5.20p
9.00p
14.20p

+20.7%
+15.9%
+28.3%

+1.40%
+0.65%

+0.63%

Year ended
31 March
2020 {hange
358.11p +16.7%
1,136,453 +16.7%
3174 +0.0%
76% _
317.50p +23.6%
£1,008m i +23.6%
Year ended
31 March
2020 _ Change
B 14.62p _-16.2%
5.20p +0.0%
3.80p +2.3%
14.00p “14%
-11.5%
-14.0%
. es%
+(.80%
+0.61%
+O.59°fq

1. Net debt 1s the total vaiue of loan notes, loans (including Rotional exposure to CFDs and Total Return Swap) less cash as a propartion of net asset value.

2. Dwidends per shaie are the dividends 1n respect of the financial year ended 31 Maich 2021. An interim dividend of 5.20p was paid In Januafy 2021. A finat dividend of
9.00p (2020; 8.80D) will be paid on 4 August 2021 1o shareholders on the register on 18 june 2021,

The shares wilt be quoted ex-dividend on 17 June 2021

3. the NAV Total Return for the year is calculated by reinvesting the diwidends in the assets of the £ompany from the relevant ex-dividend date. Dividends are deemed
10 be reinvested on the ex-dividend date as this is the protacol used by the Company’s benchmaik and other indices.

4 The Share Price Total Return 15 calculated by reinvesting the dividends in the shares of the Company flom the relevant ex-dividend date
5. Ongaing Charges are calculated in accordance with the AIC methodology The Ongoing Charges ratios provided in the Company’s key Information Docyment are

calculated 1n line wath the PRIPs reguiation which 1s different to the AlC methodalogy.
& (onsidered fo be an Allernalive Performance Measure a5 defined on page 98.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST



Historical Performance

For the years ended 31 March

20M 2012 2013 2014 205 2006 2017 2018 2019 2020 m
Performance for the year:
Total Return (%)
EW" 15.4 -8.5 21.5 22.4 283 8.2 8.0 15.5 21 -1125v {0.7
Benchmark® 15.2 -8.9 178 149 233 54 6.5 10.2 5.6 -14.0 15.9
&aﬁ I_’rlce‘_"_ N 126 -9.5 258 377 295 -1.6 ~ 91 25.5 6.2 -16.8 23.3
shareholders’ funds (£'m)
Total 670 588 684 809 1,010 1,065 1,118 1,256 1,328 1,136 1,326
Ordinary shares 531 470 684 8409 1,010 1,065 1,118 1,256 1,328 1,136 1,326
Sigma shares® By M8 - : : L :
Ordinary shares
Net revenue (pence per share)
£amings 6.94 707 6.7 8.09 8.89 8.36 1.38 13.22 14.58 14.62 12.25
Dividends® 6.00 6.60 700 7.45 770 8.35 10.50 ~ 12.20 13.50 14.00 14.20
NAV per share (pence) __2_07’.10 183.60 215.25 25494 318.12 335.5@177’ 3512_42 395.64 41854 35811 41797
Share price (pence) 1?7.10 15{50 ] 186.30 24750 310.50 297.59 w"31=_|._50 382.50 394.00 317_50 392.50
Indices of growth
Share pricet 100 87 105 140 175 168 178 216 222 179 222
Net Asset Valuet® 100 89 104 123 154 162 170 191 202 173 202
Dividend Net® 100 il n7 124 128 139 175 203 225 233 237
RPI 100 194 107 110 m 12 116 120 123 126 128
Benchmark®! 100 87 99 105 126 130 B4 144 147 123 140

Figures have been prepared in accordance with IFRS.

(A) The NAY Total Return tor each year is calculated by reinvesting the dividends in the assets of the Company Irom the relevant ex-dividend date. Dividends are
deemed to be reinvested at the ex-dividend date as this is the protacal used by the Company’s benchmark and other indices. This I1s considered to be an Alternative
Performance Measure as defined on page 98.

{B) Benchmark Index. composite index compnsing the FISE EPRA/NAREIT Developed turope R index up to March 2013, and thereatter the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Develaped
Eusope Capped Index Source: Thames River (apital.

(C) The Share Price Total Return 1s calculated by reinvesting the dividends in the shares ot the Company from the relevant ex-dividend date.

(D) The Sigma share class was launched in 2007 and Sigima shares were redesignated as Ordinary shares on 17 December 2012.

{E) Dwidends per shate in the year 1o which ther declaration relates and not the year they were paid.

{Fy Share prices anly. These da nat reflect dvidends paid.
Capital only values These do net reflect dividends pard

1

~—

{H) Price only value of the indices set put in {B) above.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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Chairman’s Statement

David Watson
Chairman

Whiist underlying earnings were initiaily
impacted by the pandemic, the message
from the vast majority of our invested
companies, which largely excludes
owners of retail property, has been a
considered and strong resumption in
dividends.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

INTRODUCTION

The start of this reporsing penod was very cose o the
recent COVID-19 influenced nadir of glabal equity marxets
in tarca 2020 Sirce thee equity markets have been
deterrninedly focused on the fulure rather than “eflecting
an the more immediate economic data ard human
tragedy of the pandermic, as o result, I'm able 1o repn
reaithy returns for the year with a ret assel value {"NAY")
total retumn of 2079, well ahead of the benchmark tolal
rew of 15 99 The share pnice tatal return was ever
suonger at 28 3% as the discount narowed over the yaar

Stock markets nave laken great comiforl rom the huge
armount of centrar bark shimalus and state ad for both
carpoarates and individaals Since Novemper 2020, this
serse of suppart has bean augmented oy oplimism
folfowing the anrouncements and subsaquers ronnut of 3
arge ol vacane programmes

The cisis has forced a dramaic change in 1ne weay we wolk,
consume ard ‘eax Over the (25t year our mdnagement l2am
35 ponceed not only the pace of these changes across a
wide range of property sectors but 2.so tren sustairabiiity
orce lrewvoric rever s o “the tew normal”

Sve ma last quartes of tre firancal veas urder review
and o the start af the ~ew ane. we Nave seer very
draTeur shae onice mave™e~7s as inveslo’s olated
from, compantes oflenng tre safety of secu s income
oviards tose offering gregier sk, parcula e o here the
corianes wete f-ading at 2 ge discous 1o ther asset
y2 e YCul MARAGel’s 1epart - exar e |0 —ore 4etal!
-

Py lbe Doftioho siacture nas 2 oned hrough ihese

AT L I IS



REVENUE RESULTS AND DIVIDEND
Farnings far the yeal were 12 250 per share 160 lowe
than Lthe prior year earmings of 14.62p

The headline eainings per share fiquie 1s shightly ceceptive,
earnings before tax were 24% lower than the previous vear,
but a significant tax refund and some further pnar penod
withhoiding tax recovenes reduced (he revenue lax (ange
from an effecive rate of 11 3% 1 2020 to just 19% [or the
financial year to March 2021 Furthe delai’s of this are set
out 10 the Manager's Report

The Boars has anrounced a final dividend of 9000 per
share, barging the full vear dnaderd to 14 20p per share
(2020 14 00p) ar overall increase of 14% on the prior year
idividend The Board 15 conscious af the income aspirations
of some of our invesior base and, althaugh tmis divicend
15 et fully covered, the Company has significant revenue
reserves available As long as the Board has a reasonasie
expectalion of income returning 1o previous levess In the
medium e, the Boasd 1s nappy to martain a modest
leve: of dividend prograssion

REVENUE GUTLOOK

Wi hin oor portfaling the manager anticipates ncome

for the year ta March 2022 to be split into three broadly
equal parts with one third suffening a reduction and in
some cases significant cuts or even suspensions, a third
wiath incame returning to pre-pandemic levels, and the
baignce offering some level of increase We do not expect
total meame levels to return to pre-COVIO-19 levels watlun
the currert financial year although we do expect an
improverent relaive to 2020/21

After atlowing for the proposed dividend, revenue reserves
wilt stilt amount to 12 “8p per share giving plenty aof
capadty for the board to supplement the dradend sgam

N 2021/22. providing a return to pre-Cowvid levels car
reasonably he entiipated 10 the medium term

Ordinary Share flass Performance: Total Return over 10 years (rebased)

200 # Benchmark Total Return [l TR Property Share Price Total Return <. TR Property Net Asset Value Totat Return

180
160
140
120
100

Mar-10 Mar-11 Mar-12 Mar-13 Mar-14 Mar-15

Mar-16 Mar-17 Mar-18 Mar-19 Mar-20 Mar-21

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

w
4
3
=
™
=
o
F]
m
°
o
]
-




Chairman’s Statement 1

NET DEBT AND CURRENCIES
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DISCOUNT AND SHARE REPURCHASES

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
FACTORS ('£5G")



AWARDS

The Trust was the winner in the Speciabist Equities
category of the Citywire Investment Trust Awards. This is
particularly pleasing as we were in competition with Trusts
specialising in & broad range of equities and alternatives.

CITYWIRE
WINNER

THVESTMENT TRUST 3420
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Manager’s Report

Marcus Phayre-Mudge
Fund Manager

Capital is clearly seeking real assets.
There has been several recent instances
of private equity acquiring listed
properties companies. This will continue
if public companies are undervalued.
Such market dynamics provides us with
a strong valuation underpin.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

PERFORMANCE

The Nel Assel Value otal return for the vear fo 3" March
2021 was 207%, shead of the benchmark total returr of
15 9% At the ntenm stage, | reported thal Conlirental
European praperty companies had sigmificant’y
autperformed thewr UK counterparts (returns of 11 3% v
21%) The second hat! saw the complete reverse The UK
peformance in the secone hall was sa strong that the

12 month perfarmance of 3939% (In GRP) nutperformed
Continenta Larope al 18 7% (in FUR)

The intual impact of the pandemic on European real estate
equinies saw ne benchimark lall 36% from the pre-Covid
seak of 1918 February to the trough on 18 March 2020 Our
financial vear therefore startec close  these deprassec
ievels and the steady recovery since ten 1s eflected in
tne healthy iqures for the vear ander review However it
15 worth nolirg 1at colleclively thie seclon termains nearly
15% helow the pre-Covid peak

TS extraorginary yea, has ceary seen ke no other and

the gullr performance ol [he dilferent 1ea. estate sectors
(end therr respecive lislec comparies) iaquies the same

adective Tae yeal can be neally Cividec into ore ard post
£e Kaccine arncanceman:

From March 1o Cclober investors fotused on owihing
sustaimable, pardemic poof ircome sdck as residenual,
supermarke’s and healthcd e alorgside logistics,
WAEI0USING anc ircusiaal whede the yaderlying 1eants
businesses Nad ienacec open and 1 many cases

sare hwing Consume faarg seciors sucy 2s renal,
estaurants, Fole. and l2isure were snunnad e dinds ol
Poan European real estate comnares 1700 24
tFe T moning fiom e ough on
8 wvech 2025 our agisics Jincusiial goun elnes

=34% Gerar esidenha <80 @g g e <354 hr sl
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seclors had been standing at large discounts giver the
masket’s expectation of further asset value dectines and
they enjoyed significant price recovery Stocks such as
Hammerson ard Shatleshury, who had both carned out
emergency capial raises (more on Lhis later), enjoyed
100% and 85% pnice appreciation from their respeclive
(pre-vacane announcement) capital raise prices

The Trusl was defensively positioned as we entered the
pandermic with overwelghts Lo Europedn PRS (privale
rented seclon) particulatly in Germany, supermarkets

{UK and Nordics), nealthcare (mainy UK) and logistics /
industnal across both the UK and Furope These exposuies
drove much of the relalive outperformance from March to
NoveT ber

condon exposed stoces suffered sarticularly as office
workers have not returned {we estimate office utilisation
rates at ¢25% versus a Continental average of over 50%)
and tris combined wath tne collapse 17 tounsm {botn
domastic and interrayona ) has temporarly hollowad cut
oJr glabal city Our UK office exposure was concentrated
1 decentralised offices through (LS and McKay whilst

we avorded Londor retail focused names such as Capoo
and Shaflesbary as well as thase busmnesses with short
occupational ‘eases such as Workspace,

As e Teliel [ reopeaing /- efation” tade gathered
mamentum, | dosed our upderweight exposare 1o
Europedn shopping certres, hought back into sarme Central
Londor retait and renewed our expasure 10 office markets
particutarly those chies with the shorter commile bmes
Essertially 1 was stili shying away from the laigest two
conurbations {london and Pans) whitst adding to smalier
ores such as Madnd and Dublin and mairtainming exposure
o decentrzhsed office sectars in the UK, Sweden and
Germany

The pandemuc has turned mue on s kead and ir our
corner of the equity marke! 10 way Lhe performance aof
Swiss properly companies which was much weaker than
Ristory would heve piedicled Tradiionaliy a sale haven,
these stocks did notinttially recove” from the tarch iows
with investo s focused on the problematic retail exposure
of the fargest histed companies We continge to be
unde~welght the Giodp
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Anothel positive surprise has been in self-starage which
reported very steady numbers through the warst of ihe
veal Whilst our stock selectior in the UK was correct
(Salestore total relurn +27% versus 8ig Yellow +14%), the
tunaway success wds Shuiguard, the Continenlal player
eturning +48%, which we didn't own in our defence, the

stock enjoyed strong demand {rom index trackers as it
entered valous benchmarks mudyear

thost of 2020 was an understandanly subdued

perod for M&A corporate actrity with ane particulal
exception, Nonweqian offices Entra (where we were 3
top 20 saareholder) was the subject of a bidang war
between twa Swedish hsted players, Casteilum and
Samrhallsbyggnadsholaget (also known as SBE) whilst
nerther successfully ganed control, the share puce total
feturn was 57%, our mast successrul investment 1 the
seriod

The portfoho nas some gearing This was reduced 11
Febraary and darch 2020 but has sulsequertly ~etuined
to pre-pandemic levels Why have geanng in voialile
trres? The Trusl contirues 1o take advantage of 11s
tlosed enced structure and holds 2 number of 1higuid
small cap stocks These well-rur companies (even when
axposed o outperfarming subsectors) often suffer from
hmiled myvestor attention, Herg deemed (oo small As A
consequence, 10 r1sing mar<ets they often anderperform
“hetr larger beethrer: {in market parlance their 'beta’ 1s less
‘han one) Acading samre geanng helps compensate 'oi
these lower heta names. Cur experience 15 that over time
the undmeg praperty fundamentals will be recognisec
and, if not, then the market wall take them private of
melge lhem ‘ogether Our physical property exposure also
sits outside our benchmark and addiional geanng ensures
that we are not underexposed to equilies versus oul
benchmark given that a proportion of Capitaiis vested e
physical sroperty

OFFiCES

Cf all the seqmems of the cormmercial rea’ estate
andscane, the fulue demand ‘or offices remains the
hairdesl Lo forecast The Lwo und2niable consequences of
1@ pancemic, for this asset class, has been the realisation
hal employees of corpoiates of ali sizes can work
remolely {for lorg penodsy if required and secondly tha

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST 9



19

Manager’s Report /oo

the next generation ol ‘best in class’ office accommadation
will be utiisea very differently with tenanss having new
priotises duiltinlo these demands will be the overarching
need Tor energy ethicency, carbon neutrality and
susianabihty through the life cycle of the bullding

The take up higures [or the fast year (across the 15 major
abies we manitar) offers Iitte comparative vaie given the
inabrty fo: businesses to physically relocate n many of
these HﬂfK&lS from Maren 2020 Taking Lordon as a case
pomt, awl\ 5 erOf ed that West Fnd take up fell from
44msq fhn 2019 to 17m 0 2020 Office utilisation rales
through 2920 .rwd Inta 2627 have vaned hugely A broac
ule of thumo was that the larger the aty (ond the longer
the average commute nme) the lower the othce utilisaton
tate Gererally ne smaier alies a so hag higher levels of
oimmuting oy onivate transport or where workars were
usirg overground putiic lansport Scandiraviat ard swiss
cilies nave seen aimost nar nahsed utihsation rales whilst
ondan ane Pans remain sub 33% Lookirg forwars what
IS IMPOrtant 10 Us 15 e amaunt of new space which was
scheduled to compiele (corstruclionr was halled ‘or very
50070 penods 17 reost markels) and wnethe there are
sigrs of dermanc as we Tove into the post vaccne penod

Looking across Burope a5 4 whoe, e combined effecr of
redaced weast™g actiaty and corstruchion corpletions 'ec
1o 130hps nCrease ' vadancy 10 ar averdage of 5 9% (BN
dala) This sing:e statistic clearly hices 3 wide "ange of
levers Unsurbnsimngly, concor and Pans mave exoenenced
the gxeaﬁ' mncreases fror 5% 1o ~eaty 84 but Dubir
colleg's the wonder $00n Wi vatarcy 1Uessitg o
avet G% TS 1% 4 qood 2xarp 2 of 4 sieal rarket whers
) cerand sake me IToer of targe
raetors AT efy; m:hme"j hf- Geyer e nIstonca

ot e gfice sandre wjj ~as 457 been
2’ tor el by 2im i
Badimgs

Cpartie i
5 Armgai T2

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

a 27% dechine in p-anniyg appiications for bnldings

over 20 sto\'eys i 2020 wnen compared with 2019 We
were suronsed that the fall wasn't larger but 73% of all
apphcations were 11 the latter part of the year and hints at
Jeveloper conlidence regarding demand far rew buld

Investment de nand has remained very resilient almost

egardless of shofi-lerm weakness 10 occupalioral
markels The wetght of capital seekang real assets 1s

a4 theme which will recur through this report The rse

im ke long end of the curve as the reflation theme

galhers momentum s droving very damaging for fixed

income structures High quality offices - offering 'arge lol

sizes - with secure income celiverng 3 5-4% net yiela

15 altraclive versus nagative vielding Sover—”\gr. 20Ngs.

Further ap e nisk curve, op Aturshc capital a.se emans

very aclive and hisie At spedahsts such as

Great Portlard [siates aﬂd D weni London nave found if

hard 1o cepioy capral aridst hierce compeliig)

The 2021 T3RE EMEA Inveslor intertions Survey ighigats
London a3 still the most attractive aity for imvestment

In Europa vatk an estmated €40-455n of glabal equity
ao<ng o oe r‘qwlm:u 1710 the merkel acoss a 'l types
of builcings This is the wighes: figure since the sarvey
S370NG racking demdnd in 2072 Whilst varsacthon
yorames siwed ast year, the firsl two To7ts of 2027
{fradinonaly, & gaiel ime) have seen voiumes each
EET5T gredler ther (e same e 1n 20°% Part of the
London alacion is thal yie ¢s md vicampress durnng
e gy ancerlamty -‘Pamc, sty ook much cheape
Dan e mg Euronean alies PnsT the EU-U< Trade ard

Couperanot Agreement we expec: s gaz

SR

RETAEL

>3t 12 arits T othe 7T
Ctbe valoatian commgril,
BN TeCUITeMETT T G0 3

reTess the rml) 3

ot ratE STnce Tarkst ke
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this and retarl tandlords across the globe have heen
fracing at very large discounts 1o then (o longer valid)
last pubhished fiqures

The woes of retal are well urderstood The pandemic
has acceierated Liends which were well established
Reopening of economies will see footfall return to
shopning centres but the levels of sustainable rents
remain the subrect of masket forces |0 the UK the loss
of a huge number of well known brands either through
barkruptey ar 1etreal has resuiled In average vacancy
levels ir shopping centres reaching over 15% (M5S0 data)

This means the negoliation hoot rermeairs firmly on the
tenarts’ fool and we predict & Luither 15% lalis 1 rental
values The one area where thete are clear signs of price
stabihisation 15 i retall warehousing Goen ainwith plenty
of fee parking, this type of relad asset sits wel m an
omni-charmel environment whee retaler margins are
maximised through chek and coilect Alfordability 15 the
eterrar watchword ard whiist there are some parks with
very figh rents (often fashion retalles 'ec) the majonty will
see modes: declines in rental values Occupancy cost 1atios
are also not budened by escalating se~vice chaiges

AC0ss urgpe, the picture 15 ere ruanced valuers are
even more conservative than their UK counterparts and
capilalisation rates are yel ¢ mave matenally In sore
countries, 1etaless have beer given huge amounts of
government suppor and as a result rental dehinguency

15 genaraly lower than i the LK In addilian, many
snoppiag cenlies aie ancnored Sy hypermarkets (which
have remaned opent and not depariment stares (a UK/
US concept roionger (1t lor pursose beyorg a hendfl

of tounist destirations such as Seilndges and Galenes
Lafayetle) There have been lower levels of retarer
bankruptcy across Conlirental Farope and we put

this dowr 1o two faclois less overrenbing and the UK
nsolency egislation On this satter sal, o huge number
of UK retarers have taken advantage of the CVA {company
voluntary admirisiiation) to tarce 1andiards (generally a
laige credion) w accept carporate reconstructions which
unduly damage therr interests A recent High Court ruing
Involving te ovelly indeblec retaller dew Loak, reinforced
this tenant fnendly legis.etior
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Investors remain very Greumspect Wwards ths asset dfass
Income irsecunty has resulted ininvestors requirning much
higher initial yields CBRE estimale that UK prime shopping
centre yielos nave roved (1om 4 5% Lo 7% in Lhe last

5 years wilth poarer secondary schemes i the high teens
or hiteraily unsaieable Retail warehousing hias bucked the
depressing trend at least from an investar perspeclive
Investors are increasingly confident that they are able

{0 measure tenant affordability and this 1s the key to
determining pricing Ir the last coupie of months we Fave
seen compettive bidding for a nurnber of retall warehouse
schemes, something not seen since 2018

DISTRIBUTION AND INDUSTRIAL

UK industnal and logistics take up hit a record 597m uq fi

1 2020 Whilst the pardemic suppressed demand in fnany
other parts of the property mar<et, 1t clearly stmulated
logistics ang business activity which utised industra.
properly Amazon again accounted for a sizeable (20%)
porlion of the sclivity and it was this XL segment {250,000 +
s 1) which was the major senefinary of the surging on«ane
demand The oniine share of retall sales rose lrom 18 2% n
2019 10 779% 0 2029 hitling a new high of 36 3% in January
2021 as we returned o lockdown This will scale back as we
reapen hir the boost to onling scale and efficency s here 1o
stay Sunply has responded but has been more than matched
by this demand As a consequence, supply has faller o
734m sg M, down 6% on the vear, and this trghtening has
accurred 1N every size bracket

Renlal growth continues Lo march on but there nas seer
a broadening of growth rates acrass the regions Greater
London and the Eas: sMidlands “ecoider! growtn of aver
7o whilst average rates across tne country at 3 9% Such
strong rental growth, the secaie mcome and the positive
autlook has driven both domestic and mternational buyers
20 pay record prces for this sector whethes 1tis last mile
uran Jnits, XL big boxes o7 terraces of weil localad
dustngl units Pame yielgs arg 35 16 4% enc even sho™
Ncome 15 nol deternng investoss as evidencad by Lhe sale
of owr Bristol distnibuhian unit at 4 5% imtial yield wilk
35years urexpired

The same piclure of rude health 1s evident across
Conuneatal Furope According to B3NP take up increased

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST 11
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14% across the 6 largest European economies and vacancy

races dropped to 5 5%, their lowest and a.l agamnst a
backdrop of a shatp cmfla( on i GOP Again it was a
surge 0 e-comimerce and home delivery which drove
demard. Pnime vields across Europe tighlered 25bps m
2020, matching the LK with ng signs of decomprassion
even as the long end of the curve tses Investment
demand 1s Caly glopal with US and Asiar nstitutional
capilal competing with more domestic iong term capiial
all determined Lo patiopate 10 this stractural shift

RESIDENTIAL

As expected ihe secto” has temained hignly reshent
dunng the pandemic The mejonty of our rvestmenls aie
N Cenman and Swedish '1ousmg where renls are subject
o staze control Tre remairing expoesure 1s Fin'and and U
UK where ients are onen-markel The formes offer grr_aAe\
secunty vtk rents uec to ingexdlion whilst ibe [aiter
of'ers more opaor.rnty to caplaie marker growrh but
Wt (e commensyraie nisk if vacaroy fis2s anc markes
ients fall
bign accupancy feve's resultag in the sector @1aining its
Dot anly German housing nas expenenced pice nses 1t
viTdgiy dls ts sub-markets

As exslaeg 2arien Berin remained (ne gullier
25 e Siate of Berim iroosed a 5 year ren: eagze
tietendeckel} Toe subsequenl Constitatinnal Cal
WRICT confimec that 120 Comliols are determined at H“e
Federal, ~ar '-‘a?»ﬁ leve:, cammeust alter theyear end 0
mid-Apnl d b s outcome @
1en 3 4= of pot

O acon out cued

JD 25 I3V 0pers a;‘.amed e opuicome of 17e appeal
Aent remars the cheapes! agra’ an, i ivesie ™ Fyrons

oo iant
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Dunng the cnsis, the secunty of 1Imcome aad very

those which have not (student accommodation, hotets)
Share pnce performance was an amplified reflection of
not oniy the underiying property perlormance but aiso
the dramatic shift ininvestar sentiment Self storage
share prices have tradiionally pe-formed paarty in
SIWANG £LaNOMIC Londilinns as the income 15 consicered
shorl term ang volatile However the pandemic has
focused Nvestors’ minds on Lhe emergiag stiengtn of

this sector where a smali groun of 0oeraiois (Mostly
iIsted companies) nave the finaraal muscle (o dominate
the price compdnson websiies Ancther emerging tend
has heen the Inueasing Husiress Uaage of a plocuct
tradimonally seen as :ne domain o pivate costomers
Businesses have seer the ments of iImmediate, nassle free
access to shadl a1 longer term storage The supply chain
distuntion danng the sandemic heightered the need o
snace as he mantra became a iittle moge just I ¢ase arc
a hitle less qust 10 ame” Our se {starage group returred
-46%% from the [ow poirl (1800 March 2020) 1o e end

of Cctaber Howeve, {.om November 2020 fo the end of
sarch 2521 they have collectrvely feturaed just <4 19g
Aclassic examp'e of a swalch m sentiment as mvesions
orAtRC Ay (Tom the Covid relabne wInIers group Nt
e nad underze-iormed #nd 1ooked

Fe v ue names which
Veny (ean an PIsion imetics

Tanother
complete rave

sufferec ac

TNaltyes sub-se0 we expanerdees the

rse Siudent accommocaic businessas
rapse 1 1mcome and Lnite (our only
ed e helgr refanaing rents which was the
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Incame REIT jaised o total of £490m 10 thiee separate

transachions thraugh the vear and now has a markel

cap ol over £900m Cibus also raised camtal (SEK

900m) In two tranches to make further acquisitions The
la:qer supermarke: operators have been able to atiract

customers through then online network which the hard

discounters (Lidl, Aih) are not able to offer Volumes

and margins will normalise post the pandemic but these

aperalars have had the opportunity to prove the resilience

of their omni-channel model which utilises last mile

distribution frem therr retwors of stares 1115 one of the

few paits of the rerail landscape where physical stores are
truly irtegral to te online joumey

CEBT AND EQUITY MARKETS

Property companies remaired busy on debt refinanaings
throughout the pandermic and e huge amourt of cenlial
bank suppart and government stmulus ensured a healthy,
liguid market where pnang did rat weaken According to
EPRA, €15 20n was raised in 2019 at an average coupon o
18% and 2020 saw £15 6bn at a cost of 16% These figures
ate rot direcly comparable as the mix of debt offerings in
each perod was different but they are a clear indicator as o
the heallth and prce stabity in the cebt markets. German
residential companies were agdin busy with Vonovia raising
€2 500 m four kansaclions borrowing 10-year money at 1%
Later in October, Geana, Euroaejs ‘arqem office REIT aised
€200man a 2034 term sond at (0 86%

Early i te crisis, we saws 2 number of sirong busmesses
trading at premiums raise equity capitar for apportunistic
expansion This was i sectors wilk clear underlying
demard. 1amely healthcare (Assure, Aedifica, Primary
Health Properties), self-siorage (Big Yetlow), logistics/
ndustnal (Londonsdetnc, Seqro, YGP ). supermarkels
(Supermarke incoire REIT Qbas) and Germar residertia.
{vonavia, ADO Properaes, LEG) The Autumn saw
OppPOTLIMISHC ralses in Sweden and Norway (Belder,
Kloverr ard horwegiar Properties) a “egicn which bad
expeienced jow evels of lockdown 1esticiions More
recently in fedruary and Masch this year we saw rerewed
activily in the L as 1ne vacane raloutimoroved
senliment, with raises from Target Realthcare, X, Tiiax
Lurosox ana Supe‘mawet income REIT agary Continental
European raises 111 2027 have so far heen conlined 10
healthcare (Cofinirrma) ard studert accommodation: (Xiar)
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Post the summer we saw the beginang of an expected
surge of more delensive 1aises as companies finally
came under cashflow and valualion pressure In the end
It was just a handful of retall focused names who had
beer mismanaqging then halance sheels long before

the pandemic Hammerson's £600m raise effectively
recapitalised the balance sheet with 3 24 for 1 aghts 1ssue
accomnpanted by the {previously anrounced) departure of
the CEQ completing the overdue C-suite shuffle of Charr,
CFO and CFO in late October. Shaftesbury announced a
£300m plaaing and oper offer Locking back then tmiag
was spectacularly unfortunate as the annrcuncement of the
first vacanes came less than a fortnignt later

These game changing announcements immediately

alt “red expectations and there 1s nowhers beller to
dlustrate the point than the co-porate saga at Uniban-
Rodamcof\\/e theld (URW) URW 1ad announced a €9br
‘Reset” plan comprising €3 5bn cepital raise, dividend
cencellation and a planned €4bn of disposals 4 group
ot activist shareholders lead by Leon Bresslar {the (kO
of Uniball from 1992 to 2005) launched & campaign to
oppose these AGM proposals and launch an alternative
strategy which cid not include a deeply discounted ¢apital
ralse They proposed the sale of the US {ex westfield)
portfolio ang g relurn Lo their ioots as an owner of
prime Furopean 5honp| g centres Their NmingG was
forturate, with the 10tn Novembes AGM comiryg jusl
a‘ter tne vacane arouncement and the improvemen:
Invesion sentiment even for deeply indebted bUnlI]ESsE?S
Essentally convirang mvestars that they didn’t need

to put good meney after bad” and that the seif help
strategy would succeed Tney were successful in ther
campaign and shaieholders voled agamst the Reset’
nlan This Ied L0 ihe departure of the Chairman, CEC
and CFO and the promation of exsling semor managers
lo the Boara The share prce, which bad troughed at
€35 per share, subsequently doubled amidst the cosing
of shart positions This cornarate tale neatiy encapsulates
the dramatic change i nvestor sentimen: (and pricing
of previcdsly unloved busimesses) which we saw from
november oniwards

INVESTMENT ACTIVITY - PROPERTY SHARES
Turnover {purchases and sales divided by Lwoy totalled
£458m equating to 36% of Lhe average net assels over
the peried This was hroadly in line with tast year’s

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST 13
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Manager’s Repoit .=

We ircieased the capacity on our ICBC Ioan faclity duning
the yeai and the remaming loans were renewed at
existing levels we did see small (ncieases on macgns

0N SOme renew a\s We also looked at the potential o
take ot news o extend our longer-lerm debl Our Furo
derominated \o(m rote 15 due for repayment 11 2024 and
the Sterling note in 2031 however the fiexibility of the
sngi- ler™ faciiles 15 vaivable in more volalile markets
and has certainly warked welt 1or gs in the culyent year

We corlrue (o explore raw opnions 17 all markets

OUTLOOK

As economies emerge from the gup of the pandermic,
nvestoss have focused 00 assessing wheiner e damage
{07 growtn) was temporary, longer lasting or permanent
2eal estate nvestors are no exceplion and e 3nge
of premiums / discounts o net assel valdes of listed
cambanies hianhghts the breadth of expecalions across
the prapety spectrum Tag dilficulty 1s that tnere 1s no
precedent for e prafile of recovery n tenart demand
aCI05s SO 'wc!‘. [ thrs asset ciass Clearly exsting
structurai snifts nave ceer accelerated and rew ones have
emerged wIch may prove more pe nanert man the
mar<ets carreaily exoect Al of this urceranty 1eads us to
focus on incame sustarannity ana those mar<ets where -

i demand does retain - suoply 15 consUained

wWhnst terant demand 15 hard 1o gauge we co berelit
from a perign inzrdng ervionmert Debl markets aie as
ACCOMIT udan J as they bave ever heen, evenif ine ‘org
enc of fe curve 1s nsing We ses ne reasas for margirs o
'dm‘ in the near ter— 'Wf'd\O’\ a1y pressuies are hyrding
2ne el mmme dnset val lect fhese exDactahions
Prope:w.;,- affe s 1mcome wee s e eithe
(incex-1~ked] Bl
axpansian Our

awectly

L0 2O UM

Tne esosun

rented jesicertia secrat (zarhoatml, n G
atc s *'DGL"" Ay tne —arket contimyzs o g
anly m( 05 DJT 3 e stead

- that 2 let

Garmar,
: ‘-Jd"’ apc e (et
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federar iaw resulung i local criies getting more contiol
aver .ents However the rent freeze ir Berlin (uver the
last 18 manths) resuiteid in a reduction 1o the number af
available apaitiments as well as 4 siowing in the pace of
new apartment delivery We trust that common sense
will prevail over political "oqma Flsewhere, undervalued
Ncome siieams are evident in supermarkets and in

parts of the healthcare rnrwket Alongside index-linked
sustainabihly we will also mamiam exposure to Lhe
greates: growth oopartumiies The slructura shifts in
2lan behawiowr are shill orgowrg Bvolution n the speed
al delivery ard poas! pandemic supply cram dynamics

wil dinve growth across the logistics landscape frem ‘hig
box 1o Sest mile” we wili cortinue Lo awn e developers
where we see 170 eases in the value of landbarks as well
A5 growing develpment margins Investor demana fos he
end moddct shows ro sign of abating

Office rarkels wil remair volatle Businesses wiil speng
hme \.m-'nrkmg cdl ey ‘equremants i a 305t pandenmir
worid Interaction and collzaboraton wil, drve oliice usage
Tasks mr can he “uifilled withaut physical interacuon il
he timelabied for remote working A new balance will
develop wath ore sure fire cettenly, the prarium beng
attached o best ir tlass newly JJ\|' space will complete
eTvionmeTta credentals Deve opers will respond to

NS QeTand and we expetl @ atte.erauon 1t puttdings
oeing idenfied for refurhisnmer: earlier thas g eviausly
ervisager Obsoescerca of the eqsiing oiiice stock wilf
acceierae

Positae wedar endn eaty Nay, SUModwen Fraperies
antoJrces inan an offer of 5427 peishare iom
ackstons, a 2% premiuim Lo e ast cushsbed Ny
rac the supeort of the 2onic THs compan, nes 3 lar gﬁ
rateg o rdhank, a gn cualily 10gIsTIcs 2ot a0 ard
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Portfolio

Distributien of Investments v
as at 31 March g
2021 2021 2020 2020 -
£000 % _foo0 % a
UK Securities o E
- quoted 395,644 28.3 352,188 30.4 3
UK investment Properties 83,0M 5.9 94,510 81
UK Total 478,715 342 446698 385
Continental Europe Securities
- quoted S 921,801 65.8 708,597 611
Investments held at fairvalue 1,400,516 1000 155,295 996
- CFD {creditor)/debter’ (141) - 8,698 07 I UK Securities
- TRS creditos? ) ) o - - (3,808) {0.3) B UK Property
Total Investment Pasitions 1,400,375 1000 1160185  100.0 Continental Europe
Investment Exposure
as at 31 March
20N 2021 2020 2020
o ) o £'000 % £'000 %
UK Securities
- quoted 395,644 25.6 352,188 289
- CFD exposure? 45,41 2.9 32,257 2.6
- TRS exposure* - - 6,598 0.5
UK Investment Properties 33,07 5.5 94,510 78
UK Total 524156 340 485583 398
Continental Europe Securities
- quoted 921,801 59.5 708,597 58.2
- CF[.J exposure? 100,560 65 44 20 B caulties
]E@ﬁlignves‘tr_ngn{expﬁaﬁsruirgfﬂ N . ___ 1,546,517 _100.0 1,218,621 100.0 B UK Property
Portfolio Summary
as at 31 March
2 2020 2019 2018 2017
e £'000 £000 £'000 £000 £000
Total investments £1,400  £1155m  £129Im  £1316m £1745m
Net assets £1,326 £1136m £1,328m £1,256m £1,118m
UK guoted property shares 28% 31% 33% 31% 9%
Overseas quoted property shares 66% 61% 59% 62% 63%
Direct property (externally vaived) 6% 8% 8% 7% 8%

Net Currency Exposures
as at 31 March

2020 2020
Company Benchmark
ok
GBP 270 26.8
EUR 53.0 531
CHF 6.7 6.6 79 19
SEK 129 12.9 1.0 13
NOK 13 13 11 09
1 Netunsealised (loss)/gain on CFD contracts held as balance sheet (creditar)/debtor.
2 Net unrealised toss on tofal return swap (TRS) contract held as balance sheel creditor
3 Grass value of CFD positions.
4 Grass value of TRS position
5 Total investments illustrating market exposure including the gross value ot CFD and TRS positions. TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST 17
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Investment Portfolio by Country

as at 31 March 2021

Austria
€A immobilien

Belgium

warehousing and Distribution de Pauw
Aedifica

Cofinimmo

VGP

Xior

Care Property

Montea

Intervest Offices & Warehouses
wereldhave

Finland
Kojamo
Citycon

France
Argan
Gecina
Covivio
Klépierre
Altarea

Germany

Yonovia

LEG

Deutsche wohnen
Argundtown

VIB Vermoegen
TAG Immobilien
Alstria

Deutsche Euroshop

Irefand
Hibernia REIT
Irish Residential Properties

Nethetiands
Eutocomimercial Properties
Unibait-Rodamco-westtield
N3l

Norway
Entra

Spain
Arima Real estate
Merlin_

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

9,092

9,092

24,mM
16,502
13,677
8,070
5,926
4,81
2,329
1923
247

18286

17,500
2,170
19,670

53,987
24,036
13,457
10,364
1,351
103,195

145,982
63,904
54,499
19,306
37,980
33,294
8,81
5,283
329,059

20,998
2,990

23988

5,077
14,499

1,099

43,675

16,199

16,199

21,102
19,901

41,003

Market
value
%

05

278

15
1.4

T

Sweden
Kungsieden
wihiborgs

Cibus

Fabege
Castellum
Fastighets Balder
Nyfosa

Catena

Samhalls
Pandox

Switzerland
PP

United Kingdom
SEGRO

Derwent London
Safestore Holdings
Landsec

Stenprop

Phoenix

Unite Group

Sirius

Picton

CLS Holdings
Londenmetric Property
McKay Securities
Secyre Income REIT
Supermarket income REIT
Tritax turobox

PRS REIT

Assura

Target Healthcare
Primary Health Preperties
Atrato Capital

Capital & Regional
Capital & Counties

Direct Property

CFD Positions
{included in curtent tiabilities) o

Total Investment Positions

Cormnpanies shawn by country of listing.

36,061
23,390
18,201
17,594
16,805
16,216
12,008
8,933
3,737
2,690
155,635

41,999
41,999

60,357
33,584
32,193
31,327
36,477
25,213
25,143
22,241
21,330
20,077
19,903
18,104
15,551
9,614
7,624
6,189
5,194
4,418
3,848
1,468
1,062
717
395,644

83,07

(141)

_ 1400375

Market
valye
%

25
17
13
12
12
12
0o
0.6
0.3
02
LN




Twelve Largest Equity Investments

VOINoOVIA

1. VONOVIA (GERMANY)

31 march
2020
Shareholding value  £146.0m  (£144.4m)

o of investrnent 9.4% (1.8%)

portfoliot
% of equity owned 0.5% {0.7%)
Share price _€55.70 (€44.86)

SEGRO

2. SEGRO {UK)

31 March
— 2020
Shareholding value £67.8m (£38.7m)

% uf investment aa%  (3.2%)

portfolio?
% of equity owned 0.6% (0.5%)
Share price 938.0p (764.0p}

LEG

3. LEG (GERMANY)

31 March
2020

Vﬁﬁareholding value  £63.9m (£75.3m)
"% of investment

portalio! 4.1% {6.2%)
% of equity owned 0.9% {1.2%)
Share price €122 (£1027)

Vonavia is a German listed residential
company and the Jargest real estate
company in Continental Europe by market
capitalization.

At the end of 2020, the company owned

a porttolio of EUR56.8bn split between
Germany (84%), Sweden (11%) and
Austria (5%). Vonovia has developed a
large in-house craftsman organization
which allows the company to run a
strategy focusing on modernizing its
portfolio. The company is involved in the
whole value chain of the residential sector
via its rental business {(81% of group
EBITDA), its value-add branch (energy

and multimedia related services, 8%),

its third-party development business

(6%) and its recurring saies program
(5%). Finally, the residential sector is
subject to strict regulations in Germany

in particular. Vonovia’s management has
been particularly pro-active with public
authorities, complying with regulations
and assuming a social role which should
allow them to benefit from critical political
goodwill in the future. In 2020, Vonovia
delivered again strong results in absolute
and relative terms. The company delivered
a +17% total accounting return (computed
as the growth in NAV + dividend paid over
the year} against +14% on average for the
main listed residential peers. The like for
like rental growth at +3.1% was resilient
and one cf the highest in the residential
sector despite the impact of the Berlin
rental freeze which implied a negative
rental adjustment in November 2020. The
total shareholder return since listing in
July 2013 has been +314%.

aotes

Segro has become the largest UK REIT by
market cap, and is the largest operator
of logistics and industrial property listed
in the UK, with a total portfolic of £13bn
{split 53% in the UK, 47% in Continental
Europe, with 66% urban warehouses,
32% big boxes and 2% other uses). in
the UK, the group is mainly exposed to
Greater London industrial and logistics.
Rental growth in these markets has
been extremely strong as there remains
an acute supply-demand imbalance,
fuelled by tenants’ requirements to

deal with the growth in e-commerce.

in Europe, Germany and France are the
group’s largest markets with Italy third;
these markets have a tower, but still
paositive, rental growth outicok (and are
geoqgraphically less space-constrained)
but continue to see yield compression
as iavestors have paid keener yields for
access to strong income. The logistics
sector has proved particutarly resilient
during the COVID crisis, with high

rent collection. Segro has extensive
development exposure that it manages
to largely pre-let and develop at yields
significantly in excess of investment
values (¢.6-7% yield on cost vs. an EPRA
net initial yield of 3.8% at FY20). We
expect this to drive both earnings and
NAV growth, as well as high sharehelder
total returns. The five-year total
shareholder return has been 177%.

LEG is a German residential company
focused on the ecenomically strong
region of North Rhine-Westphalia. it is
one of the largest real estate companies
in Germany with more than 144,000 units
under management and a combined
value of €14.6bn. In addition to the
strong focus on NRW, the company

is exploring opportunities on B and C
locations in adjacent states with the view
to leverage their market access as well
as their existing platform still within strict
and consesvative financial criteria. The
company has a distinct advantage to be
less exposed to requlatory risk than peers
with a Berlin exposure and to benefit
from 2 relatively high share of state
subsidised tenants (25% of the total).
The very low average rent per sqm at
EUR5.96 as well as the relatively low value
per sqm of EUR,1503 make the campany
particularly well suited to weather any
potential macro-economic shock. in
addition, the company has shown over
the years a conservative management

on the Habilities side which continued to
be the case in 2020 with a LTV of 37.6%
(maximum target set at 43% for 2021),
an average debt maturity of 74 years (8.1
years in 2019) and a net debt to adjusted
EBITDA of 11.8x. In 2020, LEG delivered

a strong total accounting return of 20%
ahead of the sector average at 14%. the
five-year total shareholder return has
beert +106%.

= Ihe peicentage of Investment portfo ‘o pos Lors sel out above rclude expostres through (*D for botk the incwv dual pos tors and the poitfclio
»The Investment Poitto ic by CouLntly pos.t 6rs set sul on page 32 aie the okye al boidings 2r y Acluced ntke pvestments Fed ot fed vd ve i the Salerce sheet ihe
proht or 1oy pas hions on the CFG confracts ¢ e 1ot the investifert expesiie) aie alsg shuwn o page 18 and aie roudec n the Be ance Sheet as debtors or creditors

in the Curreni 2ssets
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Twelve Largest Equity investments ..

DEUTSCHE
WOHNEN

e

4. DEUTSCHE WOHNEN
{GERMANY)

31 march
S 2020

;hareholding value  £54.5m  (£36.4m)
% of investment

portfolio’ 3.5% (3.0%)
% of equity owned 0.5% {0.3%)
Share price €39.78 _,,(€34'7.Tl

Deutsche Wohnen is Germany’s second
largest residential company with the bulk
of its exposure to Greater Berlin (76%

of the total portfolio F¥}. The company
owns a high-quality portfolio consisting of
mare than 155,000 units with a combined
value of €26bn. In addition to the rental
business, the company is present in the
Nursing and Assisted Living business
which around represented 12% of the
Group EBITDA in 2020 (target to get to
15% in the medium-term).The company
benefits from its development exposure
with a total investment cost of EUR6.9bn
(27% of GAV) split between build-to-hofd
(EUR4.3bn, 62% of the pipefine) and build-
to-sell (EURZ.6bn, 38% of the pipeline).

in a context of the implementation of

the rental freeze in Berlin, the company
showed a resilient financial performance
in 2020 with a total accounting return of
14% in line with German residential peers.
The Greater Berlin portfolio was valued

at EUR2,853 per sqm on average which
leaves significant upside potential in the
future. As expected, post FY20 results we
had the positive unequivocal detision
from the court that the rental freeze

was anti-constitutional and therefore
tancelled. The five-year total shareholder
return has been +62%.

me perretage of ue

Ire cvestirert #orth

e L ert asapts
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IFARGAN
5. ARGAN (FRANCE]

31 March
| 2020

Shareholding value £54.0m (E£46.8m)
% of investment

portfoliot 35%  (38%)
% of equity owned 3.5%  (3.5%)
Share price €80.4 (€676)

Argan is a French company, created in
2000 by jean-Claude te Lan, which has
been listed since 2007. The objective

of the company has been to build a
pertiolio of premium logistic assets which
guarantee a stable and high occupancy
rate at around 100%. The company is
vertically integrated and has fuli controt
of the entire value chain by identifying
futyre needs of prospective and current
tenants and developing assets on their
behalt. Therefore, Argan is able to capture
the developer margin while having little
to no risk on the letting side. In 2620,

the portfolio value amounted to EUR3bn
{100% exposed to France, 27% exposed to
Greater Paris region, 16% to the North of
France and 13% around Lyan).

The company delivered solid 2020 results
with an EPRA NRV per share up 19%

YoY and 3 DPS up 11%. The funding of

the company is based on a conservative
mix of 90% amortizable mortgage loans
with an average maturity of 8 years

and 10% of bonds. The relatively low
dividend payout at below 50% allows the
cornpany to retain cash and reinvest in
new development projects while repaying
debts. The management of the company
has been assumed by its founder jean-
Claude Le Lan who owns alongside family
members 40% of the share capital which
is a strong guarantee of alignment. The
five-year total sharehalder return has
been +307%

SF Gedtorocth e o g

groLten rite ny

gecina

6. GECINA (FRANCE)

31 Macch
2020

Sh;reholding value  £53.9m  {E47.5m)
% of investment

portfolio® 3.5% (3.5%)
% of equity owned 0.7% {0.5%;
Share price €174 (£1207)

Gecina is the largest office landlord in
Europe with a portiolio of more than
€14bn focused almost exclusively on
the Paris region (97% of the total office
value) and with a high share in Paris ity
(60% of the tatal office value). it owns
also a partfalio of €3.6bn of residential
assets (of which EUR367m in student
housing) predominantly located in

the Paris regien. Finally, the company
owns a portfolio of exclusive high

street retail assets for a value of €1.6bn
located in Paris city. The management is
capitalizing on a devefopment pipeline
of more than €3.5bn (17% of GAV) to be
delivered in the next five years. This is a
continuation of the total return strategy
which has been implemented by the
company over the last couple of years:
in essence, redeveloping assets where
the management sees value creation
potential and disposing mature assets

to crystalize capital gains. Since the end
of 2014, the company has delivered 30
projects and generated EUR1.1bn of value
creation (EURIS per share). In 2020, the
company showed resilience with 99% rent
collection, stable portfolio valuation and
Like for like rental growth of +2.3%. The
financial position of the company is very
sofid with an LTV at 35.6% and an average
debt maturity of 7.1 years.

The five-year shareholder total return has
been +21.6%,

smiorsare the porfe o
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KLEMERRE

7. KLEPIERRE (FRANCE)

safestare

8. SAFESTORE (UK}

EsFiE Y 31 March

L 201 2020

Shareholding value £51.3m {Nil)
% of investment

portfoliot 3.3% %)

% of equity owned 1.0% {0%)

Share price
Klepierre is a Eurapean shopping

center operator, managing around 140
centers with a total portfolio valuation
of EUR22bn. The main exposures are

in France/Belgium (39% of total), Italy
(18%), Scandinavia (17%) and Iberia
(10%). The company, like the rest of
shopping center owners, was impacted
by the COVID erisis in 2020 and therefore
reported an EPS down 27% YoY and an
EPRA NTA per share dawn 15% YoY. On

a refative basis, the company benefits
from its focus on Continental Europe
where shopping centers are anchored
by food retailers contrary to UK or US
centers anchored by department stores
which have been undergoing significant
challenges {partly driven by online
cornpetition). The financial pasition of
the company is also more solid than its
direct peers with an LTV of 41.4% and

a net debt to EBITDA ratio of 10.8x. The
board benefits from the experience of
David Simon (Chairman of the Supervisory
Board), Chairman and CEQ of Simon
Property Group which owns a 21%

stake in Kleppierre. The five-year total
sharehelder return has been -34%.

~otes

€19.89  (€1757)

Shareholding value £44.0m -(£219m)

% of investment

portfolio” 2.8%  (2.3%)
% of equity owned 2.6% {1.9%)
Share price 796p (641p)

31 March JELR LG
2021 R

0[S|p

Swss Property

9. PSP (SWITZERLAND)

31 March
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ghareholding value  £42.0m (€m})
% of investment "

postiolio! 27%  (2:3%)
% of equity owned 1.0% (0.6%)
Share price €115.20  (€120.70)

Safestore is the UK’s largest self-starage
operator, owning ¢.125 UK stores,
weighted towards tondon and the South
East (€.60%). In addition the company has
a large footprint in the Paris market and
has recently been expanding into new
European cities {through both JV structures
and outright ownership) taking foothelds
in Holland, Spain and Belgium. Safestore
has a best in class operating platform
which, aleng with peer Big Yellow, allows
it to dominate the UK storage market,
particularly in terms of online search.

The company has driven consistent
earnings growth both organically (through
like-for-like occupancy and rate growth,
opening new developments) and through
acquisitions, a trend we expect to
continue over the medium term; the self-
storage market has proved remarkably
resilient during the COVID-19 pandemic.
The five-year total shareholder return has
been 172%.

PSP Swiss Property is one of Switzedand’s
leading real estate companies owning
properties vatued at around CHFB.6bn.
These are mainly office and business
premises in prime focations in
Switzerland's key economic centers.
Zurich represents 51% of the company's
exposure {Geneva at 14%). Vacancy rate
has consistently trended downward from
a level at 8.5% in 2018 to an historic

low of 3.0% at FY20. The company
reported solid results in 2020 with EPS
(excl revaluation) stable and NAV per
share growing by 3%. The company will
benefit from a development pipeline
adding EUR34m of rents (11% of current)
in the next three years. The pipeline is
mostly exposed to Zurich (85% of total
investment) and has a current pre-let
ratio of 77%. The financial profile of the
company is very corservative with an LTV
of 35%, average cost of debt of 0.47% and
a loan maturity of 5.5 years. The five-year
total shareholder return has been 48%.

= Ihe percertage ot irvestrent portlolio gosit ons set oot abgve incude exposuies threugh CFD for both the e divenal positions ang e porticho
»The Imvestment Partfolio by Courtiy pasit ons set gut on page 18 are the physica Fo cings ony ncludet n the pvestirerts beic at far value n the Baiance Sheet 1he

prott on loss positises or the CFD tontidets (12 nel the investment exposule)

I 1he Currert desels

are alsg shown on page 18 anc ére hoivded o the Balaree Sheet as deblais of ectors
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Twelve Largest Equity Investments . -

G&AROUNDTOWN :

10. AROUNDTOWN {GERMANY)

31 March EIRSE] )]
_ 2021 BRIy

;Shareholding value £39.3m  (£20.3m)
% of investment

2.5% .
portfolio? (1.7%)
% of equity owned 0.5% (0.3%)

Share price £6.07 (€4.55)

Vi B Vermdgen AG

11. VIB VERMOEGEN (GERMANY)

31 March
—_ _.. 2020

Shareholding value £38.0m (£22.9m)
% of investment

o
portfolio* 2.5% (19%)
% of equity owned 5.5% (41%)
Share price ] €29.25 ({€22.80)

DERWENT
LONDON

12. DERWENT LONDON (UK)

31 March
2020

Shareholding value £37.6m (Nil)
% of investment

portfoliot 2.4% (0%)
% of equity owned 1.0% (0%)
Share price 3228p (3270p}

Aroundtown is 3 diversified German-
based property company that owns a
EUR24.5bn portfolio. It has a diversified
commercial portfolio with exposure to
Office (60% of the commercial portfolio),
Hotels (28%), Retail (9%) and Logistics
(3%). The majority of its exposure is

in Germany and the Nethertands (86%
together). Fhe company is also exposed
to German Residential (14% of total GAV)
through its 39% holding in Grand City. The
partfolio has grown significantly since
Argundtown was listed in 2015, through a
series of deais, in particular, the takeover
completed in early 2020 of listed German
peer TLG immabilien. Mr Yakir Gabay
(advisory board deputy Chairman) who
founded the comnpany, still owns a 10%
stake in the company via its vehicle Avisco
Group (down from 27% pre TLG deal). In
2020, the company closed EURZ.3bn of
disposals at a +3% margin to book value.
This year, the company will continue to
streamline the portfolio with a disposal
pipeline of EURSO0m while buying

back shares for a maximum amount of
EURS00Om. The five-year total sharehofder
return has been 58%.

oo Loalns

csor e Lrboesrein o2
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VIB is a German company developing,
buying and halding commercial
properties, primarily in the high-growth
regions of Southern Germany. The
company pursues a develop or buy

and hold strategy aiming at growing

its earning base while maintaining a

solid financial structure, The real estate
portfolio (EUR1.4bn) includes logistics and
light industrial properties {70% of total
rents), garden centers and DIY stores
(M), grocery and discounters (7.5%). The
company benefits from a higher yielding
partfolio than peers at 6.8% implying

a superior £PS yield and more potential
for yield compression and therefore NAY
growth in a mid to lang-term horizon. The
vacancy rate has averaged 1.26% over the
last five years. Between 2016 and 2020,
FFO per share increased by 41%, NAV per
share increased by 42% and DPS increased
by 36%. In 2020, the company maintained
a solid momentum with EPS growing by
+3% and NAV per share growing by 9%.
The five-year totat shareholder return has
been 93%.

Derwent London is a London Office

owner and developer, with a £5.4bn
portfolio covering ¢.5.5m sq ft, focused
primarily in the West End and “tech belt”
(Old Street, Cerkenwell etc.) areas of
Lendon. 2020 has been a difficult year

for office landlords following the impact
of COVID-19, which both brought the
transaction market and occupier market
to a halt, and left ongoing uncertainty
over future office use as the necessity and
poplarity of working from home grew.
We believe the role of the office remains
important however, and think that
Derwent London is the best placed London
office landlord to weather the COVID-19
storm given a) its very detensive balance
sheet (LTV 18%), b} the ongoing spread
between prime office yields in London
and other European cities {c.100bp), which
we believe will support valuations even
as ERVs soften and c) the company’s high
quality development capabilities which
continue to create value as schemes like
Soho Place, The Featherstone Building and
19-35 Baker Street complete. The five-year
tota! shareholider return has been 18%.




Investment Properties
as at 31 March 20

Spread of Direct Portfolio by Capital Value (%)

as at 31 Maich 2021

Wést End of London
lnner Landon™
South west

Total

Retail Industrial
 42.9% -
1.6% 31.2%

- 9. 2%

44.5% 40.4%

“lnnel London defllined as inside the north and South Lircular.

Lease Lengths within the Direct Property Portfolio

as al 31 March 201

0to 5 years

5 to 10 years
10 to 15 years
15 to 20 years
20+ years

_ Gross rental income

Contracted Rent
as atl 31 March

24% Year 1
17% Years 2-5
53% Years 5+
0%
6%

Residential
and
Ground Rents Other
14.5% 0.6% 58.0%
- 32.8%
- - 9.2%_
14.5% 0.6% 100.0%
£3,000,000
£10,000,000
£19,000,000

VALUE IN EXCESS OF £10 MILLION VALUE LESS THAN £10 MILLION

Ferrier Street Industrial Estate,
wandsworth, London SW18

The Colonnades, Bishops Bridge
Road, London W2

Mixed Use

Sector

fenl;;r;.wu Freehold -
Size (sq ft} 64,000

Principal  Waitrose Ltd, Grahérr'r'{ér Gre-éﬁ,ﬁ
tenants Happy Lamb Hot Pot,

1Rebel, Specsavers

The property comprises a large mixed-
use block in Bayswater, constructed
in the mid-1970s. The site extends to
approximately 2 acres on the north
east corner of the junction of Bishops
Bridge Road and Porchester Road,
close to Bayswater tube station and
the Whiteleys Shopping Centre. The
commercial element was extended
and refurbished in 2015 with a new
20 year lease being agreed with
Waitrose,

Sector

10 Centre, Gloucester Business
Park, Gloucester GL3

“pvEn e o

Sector Industrial

industrial
Tenure Freehold S _ Tenure Freehold B
Size (sq ft) 36,000 B size (sq ft) 63,000
Principal  Kougar Tool Hire itd T Principal  Infusion GB
tenants Page Lacquer tenants

Lockdown Baker

Site of just over an acre, 50

metres from Wandsworth Town
railway station in an area that is
predominantly residential. The estate
comprises 16 small industrial units
genersally let to a mix of small to
medium-sized private companies.
Planning permission granted in
Decernber 2019 for a mixed-use
employment led redevelopment.

The 10 Centre comprises six industrial
units accupied by two tenants and sits
on a 4.5-acre site. Gloucester Business
Park is located to the east of junction
11A of the M5 and one mile to the
east of Gloucester City Centre. The
property also has easy access to the
A7 providing good links to the m4
via junction 15.
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Investment Objective and Benchmark

The Company’s Objective is to maximise shareholders’ total return
by investing in the shares and securities of property companies
and property related businesses internationally and aiso in
investment property located in the UK.

The benchmark is the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed Europe
Capped Net Total Return Index in Stetling. The index, cailculated
by FTSE, is free-float based and as at 31 March 2021 had 105
constituent companies. The index limits exposure to any one
company to 10% and reweights the other constituents pro-rata.
The benchmark website www.epra.com contains further details
about the index and performance,

Business Model

. The Company’s business model follows that of an externally managed
investment trust. '

The Company has no employees. its wholly non-executive Board of Directors
retains respensibility for corporate strategy; corporate governance; risk and
centrol assessment; the overall investment and dividend policies; setting limits
on gearing and asset alfocation and monitoring investment performance.

The Board has appointed BMO Investment Business Limited as the Alternative
investrent Fund Manager (“AIFM”) with portfolio management delegated to
Thames River Capital LLP. Marcus Phayre-Mudge acts as fund Manager to the
Company on behalf of Thames River Capital LLP and Alban Lhonneur is Deputy
Fund Manager. George Gay is the Direct Property Manager and joanne Elliott the
Finance Manager. They are supported by a team of equity and portfolio analysts.

Further information in relfation to the Board and the arrangements under the
Investment Management Agreement ¢an be found in the Report of the Directors
on pages 41 to 43.

In accordance with the Alternative investment Fund Managers Directive
("AtFMD™), BNP Paribas has been appointed as Depositary to the Company.
BNP Paribas also provide custodial and administsation services to the Company.
Company secretarial services are provided by Link Company Matters.

The specific terms of the Investment Management Agreement are set oul on
pages 53 and 54.
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Strategy and Investment Policies
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Key Performance tndicators

The Board assesses the performance of the Manager in meeting the Trust's objective against
the following Key Performance tndicators {KPIs )

KPL Board manitoring and outcome

Net Asset Value Total Return relative to the benchmark

The Directlors regard the oul-performance of the - The Board reviews the performance 1n detail al each
Company's net asset value total retai in performance meeling and discusses the results and outlook with the
i compansan with the benchmark as being an overall Managel

measure of value delivered 1o the shareholders” over the

longer-term Outcome

1year 5 years

NAY Tetal Retuin” (Annualised) 20.7%

77%

Benchmark lotar Returin (Annualised} 15.9%  43%

NAV lgia Returr s talcLiates by re rvesting e dvidencs n the assels ard
tre Corrpany ‘o the relevart ex-d viderd qate ©v dends aie deemed to be
1e- rvestec on the ex o videncs gate o the bendhimare

Delivering a reliable dividend which is growing over the lenger term

The prirapel ebjecive of the Compary 15 a tatal retarn - The Boarg reviews statemerts on ircome recetved to date
| ary

abjettive, nowever the Fund Marager aise 31ms (o anc income forecasts at each Teeung
deliver 3 relisbie cradend with growth ave” the longer
tem Outcome
1year 5years
Compoue Anauai Dividend Groywin 14%  11.2%
Compouna Annual RPI 1.5%  2.6%

“the fira cocerd 1 the e senies div e by e g divecers in the
perod rasec e 1he power ol 1oawdec oy the Lmber of years 0 the ser s

The Discount or Premium at which the Company's shares trade compared with Net Asset Value

willst exoeclalion of Investiment pe-formence 1s a key  « The Boarg (axes powels af each AGL (0 buy-Dack 41d
driver of the share pnce discon L of premium e the het issue shares Wher corsidenns the ments of sirare huy-
Assef Yaiue of aininvestmen: 1-ust over the anger-termn, pack or sssuance, 11e Board looks at a rumber of factors in
there are penogs whan 1he ¢scodn: (a1 wider The addition to the shot and longer-term discount or premigm
Boatd 1s eware o the vulnerabilily of & sectar-soeciahs? o NAY Lo assess wnether aciion wodld be hetehiaal 1o
vust 13 2 change ol investor senliment (osaids (rat shaiehoizers averal Particular attenuor 15 paid to the

sectan of to penads of wader markal pcettansy,, and the cureny markel serumen:, the potentigi imoac of any
iepact 1hat can hawe ar the discourt shars buy-padk actry oo tre hgaiciy of the shares and

on Jrgoing Charges ove he lorger ieim

Oytcome

1year 5years

ALE AL DSOS 10.2%  6.3%

Tora numeer of s aies epuihases Nil 150,000

Average dary iscolrt throughout the pence of share proe to
MAY w th reorre Saurce 3 oombers
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KPt
Level of Ongoing Charges

The Board 1s conscious of expenses and ans Lo deliver a
halance between excellent service ond costs

The AIC detintticn of Ongoing Charges includes any diedt
property costs in addition o the management [2es gnid
all other expenses incurred it runming 3 publicly histed
company As no other invesiment trusts nold part of then
porifolic 1n direct property (they either nold 100% of thenr
portfolio as property secusities or as direct property), in
addition to Ongoing Charges as defined by the AIC, thes
statishic 1s snown without direct property costs to allow

a clearer companson of gverall administration ¢osts with
other funds investng in secusilies

The Boaid moritars the Ongomg Charges, in compansan
to a renge of other Invesiment Fusts of similar size, both
property sector specialists and other sector specalists

Board monitoring and outcome

Expenses are budgeted for each financial year and the
Board reviews reqular reperts on actual and forecast
expenses throughaut the year

Outcomne
5 years

1 year

Ongoing charges excluding

0,
performance fees 0.65%

0.65%
Ongaing charges excluding perlormance

0,
fees and Direct Property Costs 0.63%

0.62%

The ongoiny crarges ale compelitive when compared to
the peer group

investment Trust Status

The Company musl conunue to aperate 1n order 1o meet
{re reguements for Secuon 1158 of the Corporation Tax
ALt 2016

The Board reviews hinarcia information ang forecasts at
each meeting which set out the requirements autimed
Section 1153

The Cirectors believe that the corditiors and orcoing
requirements have been met in respect of [he year to
31 Marcn 2021 and that the Company wiil continue 1
meet the requirements

The KPIs aie considered to be Aliernalive Performarce Measures as defined iater in the Annual Renort

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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Principal and Emerging Risks and Uncertainties

In delivenng wng-lerm returns 1o shareholders, the Board must also rdentily and monitar the n1sks that have heen taken
i ovder b acheve that return The Board has included below detenls ol the pnncipal ang emerging nisks and ynceriainties
fating the Company and the appropnate measures taken 10 order 1o mitgate these nsks as far as practicable

The Baard also considers new and emerqing risks adding appropiate menitonng ang miigation measties accardingly

The impact of the COVID-19 nandemic. the iesponse o) linaraar markets, the unknown duratian af the pardemic and
ANgaIng iMpacl on eccnomies aiound the wortd together with apeationat changes in response 1o goveriment gaidehnes
continues to increase some of the nsks lisied below in companson witn orior years

Risk identified Board monitoring and mitigation

Share price performs pootly in comparison to the underlying NAV

The shares of the Company are listed on the Londan - The Board moniars the level of discount of premium at
Stock Exchange and the share pnce is delermined by which the snares aze trading over the short and longer-
suppiy and demand The shares may trade at 3 discount term

ar premium Lo the Company's uncerlying NAY and this

v [y f.. £ aade sl f 1 ar )
Ciscount o premigm may f'ucluate over tire fhe Board encourages ergagement with tne sharerolders

Tre Board receives 1epoils 2L each meeling o0 e achvly
of tne Company s brokers, PR agent and neelings and
events atlended by the Fund Manager

+ The Campaiy's shares are avarlanle thiough the 3M0
shere scremes and the Campady sarhiapates 10 the actve
markeurg of these sCemes e shaes are 4'so widely
avanable on onen architectre platorms and can be held

crecly b

nrough the Company's registrar

< The Board 'akes the powers o buy-back and 1o 15508
shares at each AGK

Poor investment performance of the portfolio relative to the benchmark

T2 Company s potoho 1s actvely Mmaraged e addingn - The Manage™s obpechve s o outperiorm the bepchmark
Wrmvestrent secyries the Lampany a:so invests i The 3Dafu reqularty, reviews the (oimpany's iong-term
commeicia property and accordingly, the portioud mey strategy end invesiment guidelines anc the Maage: s
MOLT0n0wy oF outnerfarr the retarr o* the penchmark reletive JosIens aganist trese

The Managerment Fngagenert Commitlee “eviews (e
tanager s cefformarce ennaally The 3oerd 1as tre
50urers W charge re Margoeril deermes appiophid:e

)
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Risk identified
Market risk

Bolb share prices and exchange rates may move rapidly
and adversely impact the value of the Coimpany’s
portfolio.

Although the pertiolio 1s dwversiiied across a aumber of
geographical regrons, the investmenl mandate 1s focused
on a sinyle seclur and therefore the portiono wil be
sensitive towards the property secter, as well as global
aquity markets more generally

Properly companies are subject to many factors whicn
can adversely atfect thei investmenl performance, these
include the generar economic and financal envireament
in which thetr tenarts operate, nterest rates, avalabilily
of Investmient and development finance and regulations
1ssued by goverrments and authorities

Aithough we have now exited the Earopean Union the
stiucluie ol our future reationship with Conunental
Europe 1s stil evolving and there could be ar impact on
DCCURAtoN AC10ss each sectar,

The COVID-12 global pandermic aomiatec the financial
year This has changed Lhe way we live and work,
creating unprecedented pncertainty tegarding the impac?
an economies and property markeis around the world
botn in the short and longer tenm

Ay strenglthening or weakering o' Sterling will Fave

a diect impact as a propertion of our dalance Sheel 1s
Feld in non-GBP dernominated currendies The curency
expusJre 15 maintained e re wath the bercamark ang
will chapge over time As al 31 March 2027, 77 1% of Lhe
Trust's exaosure des Lo currendaes other than GBP

Board monitoring and mitigation

The Board receves and considers a reqular report from
the Manager detailing asse! allocation, investment
JeCISIoNs, CUMSncy exposires, gearng levels and ratucnale
in relgtion to the prevailing markel conditions

The report considess the potentiai impact of Biewt and the
hanager's response 1N positioning the poitiolio

The report considers the current and potential future
impact of the COVID-19 panderiic and the ongaing
imphcation for the property marcel and valuations overall
and by each sector
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties continyid

Risk \dentified Board monitoring and mitigation

The Company is unable to maintain dividend growth

Lawer earmings 1 the underlying portfole putting - The Qooard recerves and considers requtar Income
prassure on the Company's abihity to grow the dividend forecasts

could result from a number of lactors: ‘
Income forecast sensitivity o changes 1n FX rates 15 aiso

lower earmings and distributions in rvestee monitored
companigs Campanies It some property sectors

continue 1o be negatively impeacted by the COVIG-19
pardemic Compames in some sectors cancelled or

The Company has substantiai revenue resarves which can
be drawn Jpon when required

reduced dividends duning tite 'ast inancial year 35a . tha gaare witi continue to manitor the 1mpact of COVID-19
Drecadtionary measure Lo prolect their balance sheets and the lorg term imphications for income generanan

I~ the short term Althiough mast have retuived to

payirg divicends, some are at a iower ievel thar

previcusly 2nd others are continuirg 1o withheld

divigencs,

« prownged vacanass in the direct progerty partfoho
and lease of rertal renegoliatiors as a resull of
COvIG-19,

sirengtheniog Stellng reoucing the vatue of overseas
dradend receipis in Stethng terms The Company

ngs seen a matenal ncease in the level of earnings
Freecent yeais A sigrficant factorin thys was the
weakening of Steriing ‘oliowaryg the Grexit degision
Slering strengthened 10 tre lasl quarier of the
financiai yea: 1915 May CoNUNUe O feverse agan

I~ the near o medium term as the loage term
imazhcations of Brexit ard the COVID-19 pardermic and
the imoact on the UK ¢nd Earopesn econoimies are
andersicad Strengihenng of Sterling would lead 1o a
faltir earnings

+adwverse changes in the tax treatmer: of divigenas of
atretincome receved oy the Comasary, a~d

+charges m the umirg of diade e recaipls from

nvestae corpaTies
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Risk Identified

Accounting and operational risks

isruption ar failure of systems and processes
underpmning the services provided by third parties and
the nsk that these supphers provide a sub-standard
service

The impact of the COVID-19 pandermic and the
operalional iespunse liom the manager and service
praviders has been closely imomtored

Board monitoring and mitigation

Third party service providers pioduce penodic reports to
the Board on their contiol erviconments and business
CantNuAation provisions on a 1egulad Basis
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[he fanacemenl Engagement Commitlee considers the
pecformance of each af the service providers on a r@qular
basis and considers therr ongoing appointment and terms
and conditions,

The Cuslodian and Depository are responsibie foi the
safequarding of assets In the event of a loss of assets
the Depository must ~eturn assets of aridentical type
ar corresponding amount unless able Lo demonstrate
that the loss was the resull of an evert beyond therr
reasorable control

fMonitoring the quality and timeiiness of service as
service providers respond to COVID-19 iegulations and
quidehnes, in particular with widespread home working
and consideration aof the duraihity of the arrangements
Many arganisations are now planning to mcorpoiate
home working imto their operational st:ucture as a
perranent feature

Financial risks

The Company's investment activities expose 1t 1o a
variety of fmanaal risks which include counterparty
crecit nsk, hewdity nsk aed the valuation of finanaial
mstiwments Any nmpact of the COYID-19 pandemic nas
heen consideread

Detals of :hese nsks together with the policies for
managing these nisks are found 1t the Notes to the
Finanaal Statementsn the full Annual Repaits and
Accounts,

Loss of Investment Trust Status

The Company has been accapted by HM Revenue &
Customs as an investment trust, subject Lo contiruing
to meet the relevant eligibility condittons As such the
Company 1s exempt from capital gains tax cn the profits
realised from tne sale of investments.

Any breach of the relevant eligibility condittons could
lead to the Company losing investment trust status and
being subjec: o carporalion tax ar cagital gains realised
within the Company’s portfoio

The investment Manager manitors the mvestment
portfolo, Incorre and proposed dividend levels to ensure
lhal the orowvisions of CTA 2010 are not breached The
results are ~eported to t1e Board at 2ach meeting

The income forecasts are reviewad by the Company's 1ax
adviscer thiough the year who aiso reports to the Board
ar the year-end tax position and 1eports on CTA 2010
comphance
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32

Principal Risks and Uncertainties (ontinyed

Risk identified Boand monitoring and mitigation

tegal, requlatary and reporting risks

Farlure to comply with the London Stock Exchange
Listing Rules and Disclosure Guidance ard Transparency
cules, faiure lo meet the requirernerts under the
Allernative Investment Funds Directive, the provisions
of the Companies Act 2006 and other UK, Furopean
and overseas leqislation aflecting UK campanies
Falture to meet the required accourting standards o
make appropriate disclosuras w the Intenm and Annua
Reports

The Board secewves regula requlalory updates from
the Manager, Company Secretaly, legat advisors and
the Auditors. The Board consigers these reports and
recommendations and takes action accordingly

The Board recerses an annual report and update fom the
Depository

Internal cneckhists and review piocedures are 1n place at
service providers

inappropriate use of gearing

Gearing, either thiough the use of bark gebl or trrough
the use of qefvalives may be ubtised hom e 1o tme

Whitst the use of geanng s intended to enhance the NAY

total return, 1wall have the opposite effect when the
return of the Cormpany s nvestmert portfolio 1s negative
ot where (he cosl of debt 15 higrer than (7e ieturm from
the portfolio

The Board recenes reqular ieporls from the Manager on
the levels of geanng in the portfona These are consideres
acainst the geanng imits setr the Investrment Cuidelnes
and also  the contex! of cuirent markel condilions and
sentirent The cost of debt s monitored and o balance
sought between teim, cost ard lexbilty

Personnel changes at Investment Manager

vass of poctiolto mandger or ather key staff
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Ire Charman canducts reqular meeings withn the fund
Management teaim

The fee asls proteris the core inlrastiuctace and depth
anc qualiyy 2souices Tre fee slruclare Incenlivisss
cutperformance andis fundamentzhin the ability 1o retain
key staff



Viability Statement

In accordance with provision 3t of the UK Corporate
Governance Code, which requires the Company to assess
the prospects of the Company over the Jonger term, the
Directors have assessed the prospects of the Company
over the coming five years 1his perod 1s used by the
Board dunng the strategic planning process ang the Board
consider Lhis penod of ime appropriate for a business of
our nalure and size

This assessment takes account of the Company's current
position and the polcies and pracesses for managqing the
principal and emerging nsks set aul on pages 28 to 32 and
the Compary's abihity t6 continue n operation and meel its
liabilities as they fall due over the penod of assessment

In making this statement the Board camed out 3 robust
assessmert ol the principal and emerging nsis facing the
Company, Including tose that might threaten s business
madel, future performance, solvecy and liquidity

it reaching Lthen conciusions the Directors hava reviewed
five-year forecasts for the Company with sensiivity
analysis to a number of assumptions, iNvestes company
dividend growth, interest rate, foreign exchange rate. tax
rate and asset value growth

In the assessment of the viability of the Company
the Directors have noted that:

The Company has & iong-term investment sirateqy
under whch 1tinvests mainly in readily realisabe,
pubhcly asted secunties and which restncts e level of
bor-gwings

01 the current portfoio, 50% could be guidated within
ve tading days anc 694 within 10 trading days

Or a Group 2asis Current assess exceed current
iabihities at the Barance Sheet Dale

The Company invesis in «eal eslate related companies
wihic hold real estate assets, and invests w1 comreraal
real eslate diectly These investiments provide cash
receipts i ie form of dividends and rental income

The Company 1s able to take advantage of its closed-
ended Investment Trust stiucture and able 1o hold a
proportion of ils portfoho n less hgwid direct property
with a view (o lang-lerm outperfonmance
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Al the Balance Sheet Date the Company had
£35 mulion undrawn on 155 revolving loan faciliies

The structure has atse enabled the Company o
secure [ong-tern financnyg. LGRS0 nlhon loar ioles
Issued I 2016 are due Lo mature at parin 2026 and
GBP15 mullion loan notes issuad on the same date are
due to mature at paimn 2031

The impact of COVID-19 on the LK ard Europedn
commercial property markels remains a consideration
Thes resulted in a reduction in dividend receipls Irom
investee companies in the year to 3% March 2021 with
some companies withholding or reducing daidends
The majanty of companies have returned to paying
dividends although some at lower levels than belore
the pandermic As a result an improverment in 17coime
I5 anficipated 1n the forthcoming year The longer
term impact on some sectars 15 stdl difficult to assess,
however ine company has low exposure to these
sectors

The dnect property portfolio has been well positioned
tr respect of Yie COVID-19 cnsis and rental collection 1o
date nas been robust. We have very imitad exposure
to relail and soree smaller occupers in tie hospilahty
sectar, howevel, overall the expected drop in income
from the direct portfolioin 2020/21 was not maternal
and likewise 15 not expecled to e i the forthcorming

s I
yeal

The expenses of the Company are predictabie and
modest in comparison with the assets Regular anc
obust momtoenng of revenue and expendilure forecasts
ate undertaken threughout the year The Company
could suffer a recuction in earnimgs of 95% and sull be
able lo mael 1ts habiiities as tmey fell due
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Viability Statement contimued

Ite Company has no employees and consequently
does not have redundancy or othe” employment
reialed habities or responsibilities.

Ine Company -elains Litle 1o 1its assels held by the
Custodiar which are subgect o fuithe: safeguards
imposed ar the Deposiary

The impact of Biexil and COVIG-19 have heen
considered in te.ms of the potential effect or Sterhng
724 of the portfolo s exposed to currences other than
Sterhing

The following assumptions have been made in
assessing the longer-term viability:

real Lstete wull conbnue Lo be arinvesiasle secior of
int2rnauanal stock markets and invesiars wil conunue
to wish o nave exposure 1o that sector

C.osed-erdad Investment Trusts wi corlirue 1o be
warled by irvestons 4a¢ regulation o Lax legis abion
will 7ot change to an extent lo Teke the stoacture
urattractiye 1 comparnson w other mvastimert
producs

The pe-formance of the Company will conuaue 1o he
sahs‘aclory should e perforrance be less than the
doard deems w0 be selislactory 1t nas 1w appropnate
powers Lo renlace the rvestrent Manage:

The Board has concluded that the Company will be
able to continue in operation and meet its liabilities
as they fall due over the coming five years. The
Company’s business model, capital structure and
strategy have enabled the Company to operate
over many decades, and the Board expects this to
continue into the future.
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Corporate Responsibility

Approach

Environmental, Soaal and Governance ("ESG") factors

£an presen t both opportunities and threats to the
petformance we aim 1o deliver to our shareholders. The
Board 1s therefore committed o taking a responsible
approach on FSG matters This covers the Company's own
responsibifities on governonce and reporting and, the most
matenal way in which the Company can have an impacr,
tiough responsible ownership ol te svestinents Uidl die
made on its behalf by 1ls Manager

As a leng-lerm inveslar, governance and sustainabifity
corsiderations have always been embedded in ow
Manager’s Investment Pracess ESG nisk assessments

and consideraticns are integrated into the detailed
fundamental investment research and analysis that takes
piace on any polenual nvestment before 1 15 considerad
for inclusion in the sortfolic and continues on an ongong
basis lor all investments held

This approach 1s i ine with the definitien of ap Articie
&6 Fund under the EU's Sustainable tinance Disclosure
Regulations Whast this 1s currently European not UK
requiation it 15 nonetheless a widely ulihsed definition

There are twe ‘undamental cansiderations to nvestment
In property companies the assets themselves and thew
management The Manager seeks to invest 113 sustanable
assets which are managed by qualty teams in a well
governed corporate structure. As a resus, there has
been a lang-standing and strang culture of stewardship
the tdanager’s investmenrt approach The Marager
belizvas that engaging with companies is best in the
first instance, rather than simply divesting or excluding
inyestment apportunities However, there are Instances
where governance matters have driven a decision nol te
Invest In & company As one of the iargest teams 1avesting
In Pan-European real estate equities. our Manager meels
wilh & significant number of the management teams of
Imvestee and potential investee companies each year and
has a robust record of engagemeant with an agenaa of
reducing nsk, IMproving performance and ercouraging
hest practice Whilst ikely an elevated number reflecting
the impact of Covid, over the tourse of the year, our
management team participated i 380 indvidual or group
meetngs with camparies and their management teams

{arporate Governance dischosure iequirements have
ricreased traispalercy enormously in recent years
and erabled informed engagement, with sotal end

empioyment praclices also gaining ncreased focus and
disclosure Frvironmental measures are now rapidly
coming to the fore and with wider disclosure requuiements
being placed upon our investee companies, as a result the
Manager 1s able lo scrutinise moere easily other measures
such as chmate change and sustainability poiicies and
outcomes
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Company Corporate Governance and Reporting

The Board also recognises the impaoitance of the
Company’s own Governance and disclosures The
Company’s compliance with the revised AIC Code of
Corpolate Governance 15 detaited 1n the Carporate
Governance Slatement on page 44 of this Annual Repait.

Lnder Section 414 of the Companies Acl 2006 there is the
reguirterment to detal information about employee and
human rights, mcluding information about any policies

it has i relation to tiese malters and effectiveness

of these policies. As the Trust has no employees. this
reqJirement does nol apply The Company 15 not within
the scope of the UK Modern Slavery Acl 2013 because it
fas not exceeded the turnover threshald and 1s therefore
1ot obliged to meake a stavery and humar trafficking
statement The Oiractars are satisfied that, to the best of
their knowledqge, the Company’s pnincipal mpplae.fs, whigh
are listed an page 108, camphy with the pravisions of the
UK Modern Slavery Act 2015

The Board currently comprises thiee mate Directors and
two female Directors. The aclivities of the Norminalion
Commitlee 1n relatior to the board changes are referred
toin the hamination Commitiee Renort on pages 31 and
52 The Board's diversity policy 1s authned in more detar!
in the Corporate Goverrance Report The Manager has er
equal opportunity policy which s set out on its website
Ly DM Com

Governance of Investee Companies and Exercise of
Voting Power

The Board has approved a corporate governance voling
policy which, 1n s opinion, accards with cuient best
practice whilst maintaining a pnmary focus on financial
retums

The exarase of voting ngnts attached 1o the poitfolio
has beer delegaled w the nnd ager Whete practicable,
all shareholdings were voted al a!l tompa Ty meelngs
in the firanaal year in accordance with 3M0GAM'S

own corporate governance poliaes Tus ensures thal
a strong, consistent agproach 1s take 1 ta oroxy voling
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Corporate Responsibility & i,
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As can be seenin the chart abave. the fund's portfolio
wesghled carbon intensity was broadly i ine wath thal of
the benchmark, whilst significantly lower than the wider

gtohat equity index  (his reflects tae fact thal for property,

this 15 largely measuning the impact of ongoing emissions
from unming a buitding whereas the wider index includes
operating companies with manufactusing capabihities and
the need Lo distnbule goods worldwide

Far the property sector, the focus s cerrently on the
energy efficiency of buldings onee they are occupied,
but we expecl in time maore atlention wall be paid to
the carbon emitted 11 gelung them built and eventuaily
disrmantled which accounts lor a iarge prooortion of 3
budding’s emussicns over its lifespan

The message 15 that this 1s still an aiea where 1L 1s difficult
lo make fully informed decisions The assessments from
the vanous data praviders reach different conclusions

as they co not all score 10 a consistent way. We expect
this toimprove and change but 1t will he a joumey Cu
Manager 1s dedicating a [ol of resource 0 the analysis

of the informatior availiab e ard also has the benefit

of the knowledge of BMOs award winning Responsible
nvestment Team, As data coverage Improves, our
Manager will in turn be able to engage witn our Investee
COMPanIes on envIrenmental Matters and report 1o ol
snareholders in more deoth

Direct Property Portfolio

The Management team recogiises the importance of
sustainabilty in our busimess and in the direcl property
assets whick we invest 11, boid ard manage on behaif of
our investars. Property iImpacts upon e evisonment,
the heglth and wellbemny of occupiers, and me
communities 10 which they are situated. Specific 1ssues
relevant to physical praperty investment portiolio include,
for example, responsible and sustamabie refurhishment
practices, efficient use of resouices Lhicughoul ther
operation, ard design anc sefvices (o support the heaith
and wellbeing of occupriers and local communities

Environmental Audits are condacled on &l our bulldings
or1or to purchase The Company will take 1emedial

action or enforce tenant abligations to do so wherever
apprepniate 10 managing Envirgnmental, Social and
Governance issues across Lhe direct portfolio - our
Manager engages with occupiers, external managers and
suppliers  As a responsibie steward of the Company’s
assels, our Manager 1s committed to improving
sustainabiity charactenstics through interventions that aie
carefully planned and executed
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Our Manager has strong, direct izlationships with
accuplers and 1s committed 1o working with them to
develop the data, measurement tools and resources to
set and achieve meanirgful sustainability largelts for the
assets i the portfoho - As part of this, and working with
the portfolo property managers, a Sustanability Roadmap
1s being implemented which targets Diodiversity net gain
across the portfolio by 2075, improving energy, water ard
waste efficency, transitioning ta 100% renewable energy
and reducing greenhalse gas emissions in hne with
chmate science

By order of the Board

David Watson
Chairnan

3 June 2021
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Directors

DAVID WATSON
Chairman

Appointed:

April 2012

Experience:

David became Chairman following
the retirement of Hugh Seaborn on
28 July 2020. Since 30 September
2018 David had served as the Board’s
Senior independent Director when he
simultaneousty handed Chairmanship
of the Audit Committee to Tim, a
positien he was appointed to on 1
January 2013, He spent 9 years as
Finance Director of M&G Group ple,
where he was a director of four
equity investment trusts, and more
recently at Aviva plc as Chief Finance
Officer of Aviva General Insurance.
He is a Chartered Accountant and

has had a distinguished career in the
Financial Services industry.

Skifls and Contribution to the Board:
Throughout his executive career, David
has accumulated relevant skitls in
finance, audit and risk managerent
and experience in the investment
industry. His experience as $ID and
Chair in @ number of boards have built
significant experience in shareholder
and investor engagement.

Other Appointments:
David is currently Chairman of
Aegon Asset Management UK plc
and he is a Director and Chairs the
Audit Committee at the Prudentia)
Assurance Company.
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KATE BOLSOVER
Non-Executive Director

SARAH-JANE CURTIS
Non-Executive Director

Appointed: Appointed:
October 2019 January 2020
Experience: Experience:

Kate previously worked for Cazenove
Group and }.P. Morgan {azenove
between 1995 and 2005 where she
was Managing Director of the mutual
fund business, and tatterly director of
Corporate Communications. Prior to
this, she worked extensively in the
investment fund industry and was
managing Director of Baring’s mutual
fund group. Kate was also previously
a non-executive director of JPMorgan
American Investment Trust plc until
2016, Seniof Independent Directar of
Montanaro UK Smaller Companies
Trust until 2019 and Chairman and
Trustee of Tomorrow’s People until
2017,

skills and Contribution to the Board:
From her executive experience, Kate
contributes significant and relevant
skills of the investrnent industry to
the Trust. Kate's fole in vafious boards
alse gives her the relevant experience
in investor and shareholder
engagement.

Other Appointments:

Kate is currently Chairman of
Fidelity Asian Values PLC and Seniof
Independent Director of invesco Bond
Income Plus Limited. She is also a
non-executive Director of Baillie
Gifford & Co Ltd.

sarah-Jane is a Member of the Royal
institution of Charteted Surveyors.
Sarah-Jane was previously Business
Director at Bicester Village for Value
Retail. Before this, 5arah-)ane was
Director, Covent Garden for Capital
and Counties PLC. She has aiso
worked for Grosvenor for 24 years
including as London Estate Director
(retail/Residential) and Fund Manager
for LiverpoolONE.

skills and Contribution to the Board:
Sarah-Jane has gained extensive
experience during her varied

career, particularly in the retail, and
expefience sectors and for Fund and
Investment management activities.

oOther Appointments:

Sarah-jane is currently Property
Director of Bicester Motion as well as
a consultant to Value Retail PLC.




SIMON MARRISON
Senior iIndependent Director

ar

TIM GILLBANKS
Chairman of the Audit Committee

Appointed: Appointed:
September 2011 january 2018
Experience: Experience:

Simon joined the Board of the
Company an 28 September 2011 and
became Senior independent Director
on 28th July 2020. He has over 30
years’ experience in the European
property investment industry, He is
currently senior advisor for European
Real Estate at KKR (Kohlberg Kravis
Roberts). Prior to this he spent 19 years
at LaSalle Investment Management
where he was European (EQ for 12
years with responsibility for a portfolio
of over €20 billion across Europe.
Simon has been based in Paris since
1990 having started his career in
London. Until 1997 he was a partner
at Heatey & Baker (now Cushman &
Wakefield) and from 1997 to 2001 he
was at Rodamco where he became
Country Manager for France. He joined
LaSalle in 2001 as Managing Director
for Continental Europe.

Tim is a Chartered Accountani, with
30 years’ experience in the financial
services and investment industry.
Most recently he spent 13 years at
Columbia Threadneedle investments,
initially as Chief Financial Officer, then
Chief Operating Officer and finally as
interim Chief Executive Officer.

skills and Contribution to the Board:
Siman brings in a wealth of
experience, particularly in the
European property market. He has
gained feadership and management
skills in his executive roles and
relevant skitls in investment
management,

skills and Contribution to the Board:
Tim brings & wide experience,
particularly in financial services

and investment management. His
previous financial experience during
his executive career informs him in
his role as the Chairman of the Audit
Committee.

Other Appointments:
Senior advisar for European Real Estate
at KKR (Kohtberg Kravis Roberts)

Other Appointments:
Tim is currently 3 Non-Executive
Director for Henderson Global
Investors Limited and Henderson
Group Holdings Asset Management
Limited. He is also Vice-Chair of the
Board of Trustees of Blood Cancer UK.

Al direciors are independent of the manager and are membars of the Audi Commitlee
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MARCUS PHAYRE-MUDGE

Marcus Phayre-Mudge, Fund Manager, joined the
Management team for the Company at Henderson Global
Investors in January 1997, initially managing the Company’s
direct property portfolio and latterly focusing on real estate
equities, managing a number of UK and Pan European reai
estate equity funds in addition to activities in the Trust.
Marcus moved to Thames River Capital in October 2004
where he is also fund manager of Tharnes River Property
Growth & Inceme Fund Limited. Prior to joining Henderson,
Marcus was an investment surveyor at Knight Frank

(1990) and was made an Associate Partner in the fund
management division (1995). He qualified as a Chartered
Surveyor in 1992 and has a BSc (Hons) in Land Management
from Reading University.

Py N

GEORGE GAY

'
albi
JO ELLIOTT

Jo Elliott, Finance Managey, has been Finance Manager
since 1995, first at Henderson Global Investots then, since
January 2005, at Tharnes River Capital, when she joined
as CFO for the property team. She joined Henderson
Global Investors in 1995, where she most recently hefd
the position of Director of Property, Finance & Operations,
Europe. Previously she was Corporate Finance Manager
with Londor and Edinburgh Trust plc and prior to that was
an investment/treasury analyst with Heron Corporation
plc. Jo has a BSc (Hons) in Zoology from the University of
Nottingham and qualified as a Chartered Accountant with
Ernst & Young in 1988. o is a Non-Executive Director and
Audit Committee Chair of Polar Capital Global Financials
Trust plc.

ALBAN LHONNEUR

George Gay, Direct Property Fund Manager, has been the
Direct Property Fund Manager since 2008. He joined Thames
River Capital in 2005 as assistant direct property manager
and qualified as a Chartered Surveyor in 2006. George was
previousty at niche City investment agent, Morgan Pepper
where as an investment graduate he gained considerabie
industry experience. He has an MA in Property Valuation and
Law from City University.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

Alban Lhenneur, Deputy Fund Manager, joined Thames
River Capital in August 2008. He was previously at Citigroup
Global Markets as an Equity Research analyst focusing on
Continental European Real £state. Prios to that he was at
Societe Generale Securities, where he focused on transport
equity research. He has a BS¢ in Business and Management
from the ESC Toulouse including one year at the Brunel
University, London. He zlso attended CERAM Nice High
Business School. in 2005 he obtained a post-graduate
Specialised Master in Finance in 2005 from ESCP-EAP



Report of the Directors

The Directors present the audited inanaal statements of
the Group and the Company and their Strategic Report
and Repott of Directors for the year ended 31 March

2021 The Group compises TR Properly Investment Trust
plc and (s wholly cwned subsidianes As permitted hy
leqislation, some matters normally included 1n the &eport
af the [ J|r9cto|s have been inciuded In the Strateqic Repait
hecause the Boare considers them to be of sirategic
importance Therefore, the review of the busmess of the
Company, recent evels and oullook can be found on
pages 4 1o 35

STATUS

The Campany 1s en mvestmenl company, as defined in
Section 833 of the Companies Act 2006 and apesates as
an investment trust 1N accorcarce with Section 1158 o the
Corporation Tax Act 2010

The Company has a single share class, Ordinary shares,
with a2 nominal value ol 25p each which are premium
listed on the Lordan Stock Exchange

The Company has receved corfirmation from Hivl Revenue
g Customs thal the Company has been accepted as
ar approved 1yesiment trust for accounting penods
commencrg on or afler 1 April 2012 subject to the
Company continuing lo meel the ehgiility condiions of
Sectian 1158 Corporatiar Tax Act 2010 ard Lhe orgoiny
-'cquuemenrs for approved comparies 1n Chapter 3

fPart 2 Investment Trust {(Approved Company) (Tax)
R@gu fations 2011 (Slatutory Instrurnent 2011/2959)

The Duectors are of the opinton that the Company has
conducled ard will continue o conduct 1its affas so as

to mantain nvestmeart tust slatus The Company has
also conducted its affarrs, and will continue o conduct

s affars, i such a way as to comply with the Individual
Savings Accounts Regulations The Crdinary shares car be
Pec i Individual Savings Accounis {ISAS)

RESULTS AND DHVIDENDS

AL 31 Marcl 2027 the 1et assets of the Company amounted
to £1,326 million (2020 £1,13¢ mulan), on 3 per saaie
basis 41797 (2020 358 11p) per snare

Revenue eamings per share far the yvear amounted (o

12 250 (2920 14 62p) and the Directors recommend the
davimert of afinal dividend of 900 (2020 8 80p) per
snate bnaging the total dividerd for the vear to 34 20p
(2019 14600} In armvang al thesr dividend pro:)osa\ the
Boad also reviewed the income foecasts for the year 0
tarch 2022

Ferormarce details are set out i the finanaal thghhghts
an page 2 and the outcome of what the Directars consider

to be the Key Petformance Indicalors an pages 26 and 27
The Charman's Statement and the Managers Repail give
full details and anaiysis of he results for the vea

SHARE CAPITAL AND BUY-BACK ACTIVITY

AL 31 March 2027 the Company Fad 317,350,980
(7020 317.350,980) Ordinary shares 1n 1ssue

I the AGM In 2020 the Directors were given power Lo
buy back 47570971 Ordinary shares Since this AGM the
Directors have not houth back any Ordimary shares at
fhe nominat value of 25p each under this authonty The
outstanding authanty s therefore 47.570,911 shares
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Tais authonty will expiie at the 2021 AGM  The Company
will seek to renew tne power to make markel purchases
of Ordinary snares at this years AGM

Since 3 Apnl 2027 to the date of this report, the Company
has made no market purchases for cancelialion The Boaic
has not set a specfic discount at which shares wib be
repurchased

MANAGEMENT ARRANGEMENTS AND FEES

elalls of the maragement arraagements and ‘ees are
s@toul 19 the Repart of tre Managemenl Engagement
Zommillee beqineing on page 53 Tolal fees pa
to the Manager in any one yea: (Management and
Performance Fees) may not exceed 4 99% of Gioup
Equity Shareholders’ Funds Total fees payable for the
vedr 1o 31 karch 2021 amount 1o 12% (2020 0 &%) of
Group Equity Sharehalders Funds Inciuded i this were
serformance fees eaned in the year ended 31 karc 2027
ol £9559000 (2020 £2,683,600),

BASIS OFf ACCOUNTING AND {FRS

The Gioup and Company financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2021 have been prepared o1 4 going
concern basis 10 accerdance wath International Finanoal
Jeporting Standards {IFRS), which comprise standards and
interpretations approved by the internahional Accounting
Starda:ds Board (IASB). together with interpretations

of the 1aternational Accounting Standards and Standing
lite. pretaiiens Committee approved by the Internatioral
Actour umg Standards Corrmutlee (ASC) that reman in
effect. 10 the exient that they bave been adopted by the
FUI()pPaﬂ Uimon and as regards the Grodp and Carrpany
financial statements, as applied in accordaice wath the
provisions of the Compeanies Act 20045

The accourling policies are set outin note 1o the
firancial Slalements an pages 73 10 77

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The (ompaﬂy's Financial Instruments comprise ils
investment portfolio, cash balances, borrewings ang
debtors and creditors that arise directly from its operations
such as sales and purchases awaiting seitlernent. profit

or 1ass balances on denvalive Instruments and accrued
iIncome and expenses. The inanaal nsk management
objectives and pohaies ansing from its financia
instruments and expasuie of the Compary o sk are
disclosed i note 11 to the financial statemeants

GOING CONCERN

The Directors” assessment of the longer-term viability of
the Company 1s set oul on pages 33 and 34

in assessing Going Concern, the Board has made a detailed
assessmenl of the abilily of the Company 37d Group to

eat its laniines as they fall due. includirg stigss and
hauidity tests which considered the elfects of substantial
falls i investmert valuzlions, substanual “edactions
In revenue recerved and seductions in markel icuidiy
nclading the effects and poterual etfects of the cantinued
aconomic 1Tadct cadsed by the Coronavirus oandenic The
Board 15 satisiiec wiih the aperationa: resilierce of service
sroviders desorte (COV'0-19 anrd continues Lo monitor therr
perfonrence tiroughout the pandemic

Ir fight o tesling carnec oul, the overall levels of ike
mvestment guicity feld by the Company and the
swgrmcml 1el assel portioho positon, and cespite (e
small et current hability positon of the Parent Comaany
anc Gfoup tne Crractors are salishied thal the Company
and the Group heve 3uquaLD inencial resources o
contirue in pperaaca for at ieast the next "2 norths
foliowing the signing of the firangal siatereis and
therefore 1t 15 appiosn2ie o acopt the going concer
ol accourting

INTERNAL CONTROLS

responsibingy 1o the Group's
sysiems ol interma’ corials ard for reviewas therr
effecyeress The Poriota Marager 1s resaorsible mor the
day to day 1rvestTert management dedsiars on aetiell
0f the Croap ACCDUNLUNG 307 CMoan, s2rela

mave both oeen JuUis0d (ec

The Boarc bas averal

- senvices

Gl 10 ae s _)()J« rj,/:d Broge
—aiamad, and e ranaal o
tne busirass a7 c for D.JD!,C;.-“DC |
NEES I(J'L‘-F"mar r i

A0C 15K [AnE 2ye
e Croun hy g se

2na attnbyticn sta
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end Tpsv gralszs,
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AFM and Partfoli Manager reparts and quartely comrol
reports Key nisks have been identified ard controls put |
place Lo mitigate ther, including those not directly hc
responsibility of the AIFM or Partfolio Manager The key
risks are explained in more detaii in the Strateqic Renarl
or pages 28 1o 32

The effectiveness of 2ach third party provider s internal
contiols 15 assessed on a contnuing basss by the Comphance
and Risk departrments of the AIFM and Portfoho Manager,
the Adrmimistrater and the Company Secretary Each
maimtams its owr system of internal controis, and the Board
and Audit Committee receive regular repoils from them

The control syslems are designed 1o provide reasonable, but
not absalute assurance against malenal misstatement a
‘0ss and Lo manage, rather than eliminate, sk of failure 1o
aceve objeclives

As the Company has no empigyees and 115 operauonal
funclions ale undertzken by third pacties, the Audit
Commutlee does rot cansicer i necessary for the Comaany
te establish its own inleraal sudil functior Instead, the
Audit Comimittee relies on interra: control repo s recevad
fro-mits prncipal service providers Lo saiisly itself as ta the
cortrols e place

The Boa:d has estabiished a process foridentfying.
evaluating and menaging any major nsks faced by the
Gioup Tae Boars urdertakes an annual 1eview of the
Group’s systern of iaterral controls 1 line witn the Turnbull
cuigance Business nisks have also been ana'ysed ny

12 B0 md and record *d 17 A ISk map that 1< reviewed
2guarly Each quarter the Board ssceives o formal
rﬂpor from each of the r—\\F Poit’oio Marager, the
Admiristraion ard the Companty Secretary detaling the
5'ens taken to moritor the aeas of ns<, ncuding “hose
tna: ere not diecty ther responsmility, and wich report
the details of any <pown inte nal cuatrol failures

» of mformanon and the

P50 Consides me

The Bgard

Interaclion wetween tie 1hird pdaity semvice providers and
the roniiois 10 nace o ensuie accuracy A3 ’fJfT‘D teress
of the recording of assets and ircome The 30ar7 recarves
d report fror the Port®olio tlarager selting aut tﬁe @y
CoCtraisar operation

Toe 30ar) also has direct 20029 o campan, s202taal

a7L108 Ar ] SanIL?s '-’3‘--|('“r‘ By _ink CC-?";;‘“‘“: b

SPITR, 172U s roime “‘.E*f‘ “p rese
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key rnisks wdentified by the Auditors are considesed by the
Audit Committee to enswe robust internai controls and
monitorning procedures are in place inrespect of these
rsks on an ongoing basis

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING {THE "AGM”)

The AGM will be held on 27 July 2027 at 2 36om at the Royal
Automobile Cluty, 83/97 Palk Mall, London SW1Y SHS The Natice
of AGM 15 set out on pages 100 and 107, The 1ull text of the
resclutions and an explanation of each s contained i the
Notice of AGM and explanatory notes on pages 104 1o 107

MATERIAL INTERESTS

There were na conlracts subsising during or at the end

of the year in which a director of the Zompany 15 or was
malenally nterested and which 1s ar was significant 1n
retalion to the Company's business ~o Direclor has a
corliact of senvice with the Company. Turtner details
regarding the appomntment ietters can be found on page 52,

DONATIONS

The Company made ro politica. or chantabie corations
duning the year (2020 £nii)

LISTING RULE DISCLOSURE

The Comoany confirms that there are no 1tems which
require disclosure under Listing Rule 98 4R 11 1espect of
the year ended 37 March 2021

YOTING INTERESTS

Rights and Qbtigations Aftaching o Shaies

Sub,ect (o apalicable statutes and other shareholders ngms,
silares may be issued with such nghts and restnctions as
the Company may by ordinary resaulion decide, or (If there
15 no such resolution or sg far as it does nol make speeific
provisian} as the Board may decide Subyec: Lo the Articles,
the Companies Acl 2006 ard other shareholders nghts,
urssued shares are ai the disposai of the Boaid

Yoting

Al ¢ general meeling ol the Compeny, wwhen young Is
urderldken by way of a pot, each share a'fards its owner
one vole

Rastrictions on Yooy

No member stal be entiiled o vote f he has bean
served Wt aesincion notice (as defirec i the Articles)
afler farlure to provide the Company with information
conceining intezests i those shaes iequired o be
provided under the Companies Ac 2006

Doadines for vet nyg ighs
votes are exercisable al the general meeting of te Company
m respect of which the Business being voled upon is beirg

heard Votes may be exercised In person, by proxy, of N
relation 1o coiporate members, by corporate representatives

Tng Articles provide a deadhine for subrmussion of proxy
forms of not less than 48 hours {or such shoiler time
as lhe Board may determmine) before the meeting (rol
excluding non-working ¢ays)

Transfes of Shares

Any shares 1n the Company may e held 1n uncertificated
form and, subject to the Arucles. title to uncertificated shares
may be transferred by means of a relevant systerr Subject
to the Articles, any member may transfer all or any of his
rettificaled shares by ar instrument of Lransfer in any usual
form or in any other form which the Board may appiove
significant Voting Rights

AL 3T March 2027, no shareholders hela over 3% of vating
rnghts on a discretionary basis bowever, at 31 March 202
the following shareholders held over 34 of the voting
nghts on a ron-discretionary basis

Sharehaolder
Brewin Dolphin Ltd
Retail Investors - UK

Interactive Investor Share Dealing Services 7.4%
Rathbone Investment Management Ltd 51%
Hargreaves Lansdown Asset Management Ltd 51%
Quitter Cheviat Investment Management Ltd 39%
Investec Wealth & Investment itd 3.8%
Charles Stanley Group plc 3.0%

see sbove for furtner .nformat an or ke voting rghts of Ordinary shares
Sirce 31 March 2021 to the datre of this eport, the
Company has not been informed of eny notfiable changes
wilh respect to the Ordinary shares

Articies of AssoGatian

The Company’s Articles of Assocation gy orly be
armended by a special resa:ution at a General Meeting of
the shareholders

Amendrrents to the Artides of Assoaation will be
propasad at the 2021 AGN and furthar detatls are sel oul
or page "04 ta 107

Corpurat Gereraanie

Full details are given in the Corporate Goveinance Repors
on pages 44 10 50 The Corporate Governarce Repo:t lorms
part of this Directors” Repor!
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The Board of Diectars 1s accountahle o shareholders for
the governance of the Company's alfarrs

Th1s slatement descnibes how the pnincipies of the 2078
edition of UK Corporale Governance Code ("the Code™)
Issued by the Finarcial Reporting Counal (the “FRC™) a0
2013 have Heen applied to the affairs of the Company The
Code can be viewed at www i org uk

Appiication of the AL Code's Pringiples
i applying the principle of the Code, the Directors
have afso taken account of the 2019 Cade of Corporate

Governance pubhshed by the AIC (the "alC Cade”), of whick

the Company s a member 1he AIC Code establishes the
framewarc of best practice specifically for the Boarcs of
Investment trust companies. furthermore, the AlC Coge
has {ull endtorsemnent af the FRC. which means thal AlC
members w0 teport against the AIC Code, on the who.e,
=eel their obhigations under the Cade and tre related
disC'osure reguirements cortained 1 the Listirg Rules The
AIC Code can ne viewed al www theair (o uk

[eviewy

eleyvar:

The Directars believe that duning the pesiod uader
they have comalied with the mair prinaples and :
srovisions of 1~e Code, insofar as they apply to the
Company’s basiness, and with the provisiors of the AC Code

oz St ytane oang

Tompi’
ihe Directars note that e Comaany did nol comply wih
e foifowg provisions of the Code i the vedr erded

31 March 2027

Provisior 5 Due 1o the naiure and structee of the
Company e Board of pon-executive cireclons does rot
feel It 15 aporooiieie 1o appoint & chie’ exed tive

Provisior. 24 The Board beliaves that 4l Direcrors,
inciuding the Charrmar, shoald sit or ell of 1he Boards
Carmrimttess

Provision 24 as the Co™
ooeratunal turcunns a e urderta<en by thid o
AdIt Comﬂ Ines rat comside il aopra
ash s oven nterna: aadr

Sany nas no ﬁmpu ees ang s
1 hes, me

> or te

COBS N0 TAve 2 spaTae
[=e fymchars ol 4
are caned oy =

coAL

Lmintee
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Camposition and Independence of the 8oard

The Boald cunrently consists of five directors, all of whom
ale non-executive The Board's independence, including
thal of the Chanman. has been considered and all of the
Diseclors are deemed to be independent in characte: and
have ro telationships or arcdmsiances which are kely 1o
aftect ther judgement

The Bodid subscribes ta the view expressed i the AlC
Code thal tong-senving Directors should not be prevented
from forming part of an independent majonty It does not
consider that the length of a Director’s tenure, in 1solalion,
reduces bus or ber abm ty to act ingependenlly The
Board's poiicy on tenure 15 that conhinuity and expenence
add sigmticant’y (o the strength of the Board although
tne Board believes in the meits of an angong and
Jtogressive refresnment of s corrposting

Drversify

The Boarc recognises the beaet of cversity and as of the
date of this report the Board corsists of three men and
wa women

Diversily 1s laken nto account as part of the recruitment,
appomntment ard succession planamng process and

e Boacd s also aware of the developing corporate
govenence with regard 1o ethmaily of irciviaual

Directors The Board s commited to ADPOIGING the most
appropriete candidate, “egardless of gender of othe forms

ol dive.sity and tharefore no teigels have been set against
yvRich 1o eport

Pawviers of tne Dieciors

Subject to the Comzany’s Alcies of Assaciation, the
Comparies At 2056 and any dnections given by spedal
resointicn, the 5asiness of the Campany 15 managed

by the Board who may exerase aii the powers of the
Company, whether refaling 1o the Tanagemert of the
business of the Company or not n oarticulan the Boad
Tay exarase a ' the sowers of the (o™oany 1o horow
morey 2010 morlgage o charge ary of its utdettekings
LIDLET Y, 2535805 Jnj Jncaler czoital and tossua

exentarzs and other secunties and ra gre Scﬂmr\iy o

anee cblojabile, o ohugaiion of the Camoany to any hid
st
SaTty
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DIRECTORS and believe that they remain indepenrdent in character

The Chairman 1s Mr watson and the Sefior Independent and judgement

Drecton s & darnson far Watson succeeded Mr Seaborn
4y Chanrman when he retired from the Board of Director
following the AGM on 28 July 2020 Mr Marnisan succeeded

Duectors gie nol compensaled by the Company Tor loss of
othce it an event of g takeover bicd,

i Wwatson as the Senior independent Direcior on this BOARD COMMITTEES
date he Uireclors’ biographies, on pages 38 and 39, The Board nas estabished an Audit Commuttee, a
demanstiate the breadth of investment, commeraal and Nominatior Commitiee and a Management Lngagement
professional experience relevant 1o thel” positions as Commiliee, which also cames aul the functions of
Directors ol the Company a Remuneration Commitlee Al lhe Cirectors of the

Company are noa-executive and serve on each Commitlee
of the Board It has been the Company's policy Lo
include all Diectors on all Commiltees This ercourages
unity, clear commmunication and prevents duphication of
#s Bolsover, Ms Curtis, Mr Gillbanks, M1 Marnsan, discussion hetween the Board and the Commuiilees
Mrwatson welll alf retire at the forthcoming AGA
accardance with the Code and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-elechon An Directors are regarded as
beirg free of any confhcts of interest and no 1ssues in
respect of independence anise The Board nas concluded
that all Cirectors continue to make valuacle contibutions

Directors’ retnement by rotation and re-election 1s subject
to the Alticles of Association In accordance with the Code,
all directors wall be subject 1o anrual re-election

The roles and ~esponsibilities of each Commuttee are set
oul on the indrvidual Commuitiee reports which follow Each
Commitiee has written terms of reference which clearly
aeline s responsibilines and duties These can be found
on the Company’s website, are avdilabie on requesl and
wiil also be avalable for mspectior at the AGM

BOARD MEETINGS
The aumber of meetings of the Board and Comeittees held dunng the year under review, and the attendance of
individual Directors, are shawn below

David Watson 6 6 2 2 1 1 1 1

Tim Gillbanks 6 6 2 p) 1 1 1 1
Simon Marrison 6 6 2 2 1 1 1 1
Kate Bolsover 6 & 2 2 1 1 1 1
Sarah-jane Curtis 6 6 2 2 1 1 1 1

in addition te formal Board and Commuttee meestings, the Lirectors also attend a number of 1nformal meetings Lo
represent ihe interests of the Company. and to discuss operational markets and succession plarning

THE BOARD

The Board 1s responsibie for e e'lective stewardshiz of the Company's alfairs Certair strategic 1ssues 472 monitored

by the Board at meetings agairst a framewsr< which nas been agreed with the Marager Addiiona: meelings may

be arranged as required Tae Boerd has a ‘ormal schedule of mattess speafically teserved for its decision, which are
cateqgonsed Jncer vanous headings, ncluding stiategy. managenierl, structare, capital, ‘nancial reporhing. internal
contiols, geanng, assel allocation, share prce discourt. cortracts, investment policy. firance, nsk, investment restractions,
perfarmance, corporale qovernance and Board membe:ship and appomiments

In order to erable them o discharge therr espoasibihies. all Girecios have full and nmely access o relevart nforration
At each meeting, the Board reviews the Company's investment serformarce and considers firancial analyses and other
reports of an operabional nature The Board monitors comphance wath the Company's objectives andas responsible for
sefting assel allocation and 1avestrment ard geanng mits vathin which the Portfolio Manager has discretion o act and
thus supervises the management of the mvestment portfalio, which 15 cortsactually delegated Lo the Portfolo iManager
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Corporate Governance Report 0+

The Board has responsibility for the approval of
investmentis i unguoted investments and any
investments 1 funds managed or adwvised 2y the Portiolio
Manager 1t has also adopted a procedure for Directars,

i the furtherance of thmr duties. 1o take independent
professiona: advice al the expense of the Company

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

In e with the Compames Act 2006, Lhe Boad has the
power 1o authonse any potenual confhcis of interest that may
anse and impose such imiis or condilions as it thinks fit A
register of potenual conflicts 1s maintained and 15 reviewed al
every Board meeting to ensure all details are kept up-to-date
Approsniate authonsation will be sought prior Lo the
appointment ol ary new Duector or if any new conflicts anse

RELATIONS WilH SHAREHOLDERS

Shareholder refations are given hign Jﬂor\l‘;; ‘ne Board,
the AlFkY and the Portfolio Mapages T pu'ne medium
Df woleh the Compary commumcate’ wuh shaleholders

s thiough the Intenim and Annual Reports whice arm to
_)rowde shid desswith a clear understanding of the
Compary’s aciivilies ana their =esuits This infarmatior 1s
supplemented oy the dary calculation of the Net Assel
value of the Compary’s Ordinary shares waich s publishec
on the London Si0ck Exchange.

This information 15 also available on the (mwpam"
websile, www iprope -ty com together wath a moeatny
lactsheel and Marage. commer:ary

IL1s the sntentior of the 3oard that the Arrual Repar: end
ACCOUNTS arg Notice of the AGM be 1ssuer! Lo shareboldas
S0 45 1 prov |c1» atleast iwenty working days nohice of
t~e AGY Sharenaiders wishing to lodge cuesions i
advance of the AGR, or 1o canfact the Board ai 2y othe
e a.e1mated o do so by wting o the Company
secretary at me registered acd ess grven ar page "08

Cenaral preseptat \cm are green 12 both shareholce s and
anah,sts forowirg the uu;lmlw of ime aniuat resdlls
Al meetngs hetwess the Manage a~d srare-“old»;s are
reoorted i the Boarc

SECTION 172 L0

MBPANIES ACT 2304

o accorderce
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investment Objective and helps to ensure that oll decisions
are made 1t a responsible and sustainable way

Upan appointment. Directors” are provided with a det
induction cuthning then dulies, legally ard requlatory, as

a Director ol 3 UK public imited company and cortinue ta
requlatly recewe relevant technical updates and training
Under their letter of appamntment, the Direciors also have
access Lo the advice and services of the Company Sedeldry,
and when deemed necessary, Lthe ireclors have the
opportunity o seek independent professionat advice in the
furtherance of they duties as a direclor, at the Company's
expense The Company has a schedule of fMatlers Reserved
for the Boare which clearly descnbes the Board's duties

and responsibiliies :n acddilion. (ere aie also the Terns

of Refererces of the Boarcd's Commutless which outine

the responsibihities that aie delegated from the Board

The Terms of References are reviewed al least annually to
consider any requiatory and hest pracuca developmen's

DECISION MAKING

The impailance of stakenoide considerations,
pa’llfu\ar i Lhe cortext of decision-makirg, 1s fe
brought to the Board’s attention by the Company
Secretary aad taken inta account at every Board
meeling, and o saper remiading Directors of that s
tab'ed al the sul of avery 3nard meeting The Board
corsiders e mpac #ny matenal decision wi |
nave on al reevent Slaku oiders to ensure that it
making a decisior Iha' pro-roles the long-term success
ol the Company, wﬁethe- ths e, for examoig, ir
relation to divicends, newy iInvestiment gosortunines o-
he Company s forvaie stateqy, in addition, the Boarg,
a\om; with the fasege | nold a meetirg focused or
ateg” oA ar arndal basis 1o look ahead r the maree:
aid a al 1aNos and how 1S may

gulariy

ate poterhal scen

mpau 'm ormpary s stakeboiders

STAKEHOLDERS
The 3oard recognises the need

3
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Shareholders

Shareholder support is
assential to the existence of
the Company and delivery
of long term strategy of the
business.

The Manager

Holding the Company’s

shares offers investors a

liquid investment vehicle
through which they can cbtain
exposure to the Company's
diversified portfolio. The
Investment Manager’s
performance is critical for

the Company to successfully
deliver its investment strategy
and meet its objective.

The Company has over 3,000 Shareholders, including institutional and retail investors. The
Board is committed to maintaining open channels of communication and to engage with

Shareholders in a manner they find most meaningful in order to gain an understanding of
their views. These include the channels below:

Annual General Meeting - the Company welcomes and encourages attendance and
participation from Sharehalders at its AGM. Shareholders have the opportunity to meet the
Directors and Manager and to address questions to them directly. The Manager attends the
AGM and provides a presentation on the Company’s performance and the future outlook. The
Company values any feedback and questions it may receive from Shareholders ahead of and
during the AGM and takes action or makes changes, when and as appropriate.
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Publications - The annual and half year reports are made available on the website
and sent to shareholders. These publications provide information on the Company and
its portfolio of investments and a better understanding of the Trust's financial positian.
This is supplemented by daily publication of the NAV on the Stock Exchange and
manthly factsheets on the Company’s website. The Campany is open to feedback from
shareholders to improve its publications.

shareholder meetings - The Manager meets with shareholders periodically and often and
feedback is shared with the Board.

Waorking with the Brokers - The Manager and Brokers work tagether to maintain dialegue
with shareholders and prospective investors at scheduled meetings. The Board is provided
with regular updates at meetings and outside meetings if required.

Shareholder concerns - in the event that Shareholders wish to raise issues or concerns
with the Board, they are welcome to do s at any time by writing to the Chairman at the
registered office. The Senicr Independent Director is also available to Shareholders if they
have concerns that contact through the normal channel of the Chairman has failed to resclve
or for which such contact is inappropriate.

Maintaining a close and constructive working relationship with the Manager is crucial, as
the Board and the Manager both aim to continue to achieve cansistent, long-term returns in
line with the Company's investment objective. important components in the collaboration
with the Manager, representative of the Company’s culture include those listed below.

Encouraging open, honest and collaborative discussions at all levels, allowing time and
spate for original and innovative thinking.

Ensunng that the impact on the Manager is fully considered and understood before any
business decision is mace.

Ensuring that any potential conflicts of interest are avoided or managed effectively.

The Board holds detailed discussions with the Manager on all key strategic and operational
topics on an ongoing basis. (n addition, the Chairman reqularly meets with the Manager to
ensure a close dialogue is maintained.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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Depository and the Broker

A range of advisers enables
the Company to function as
an investment trust and a
constituent of the FTSE 250 to
ensufe it meets its relevant
obligations.

External Service Providers, particularly the Company Secretary, the Administratos, the Registrar and the

The Board maintains regular contact with its key external providers and receives reqular

reporting from them through the Board and committee meetings, as well as outside of
the reqular meeting cycle. Their advice, as well as their needs and views are routinely
taken into account. The Management Engagement Committee formally assesses their
performance, fees and continuing appointment at least annually to ensure that the

key service providers continue to function at an acceptable level and are appropriately
remunerated to deliver the expected level of service, The Audit Committee reviews and
evaluates the cantrol environments in place at each service provider as appropriate.

Lenders

Availability of funding and
liquidity are crucial to the
Company’s ability to take
advantage of investment
opportunities as they arise.

Regulators

The Company can only
operate with the approval
of its requlators who have
a legitimate interest in how
the Company operates in
the market and treats its
shareholders.

The Board needs to demonstrate te lenders that it is 3 well-managed business, capable of
consistently delivering long-term returns.

The Board regularly considers how it meets various regulatory and statutory obligations and

follows voluntary and best-practice guidance, including how any governance decisions it
makes can have an impact on its stakeholders, bath in the shorter and in the longer-term.

investee Companies

Portfolio companies are
ultimately shareholders
assets and the Board
recagnises the importance

of good stewardship and
communication with investee
companies in meeting the
Company's investrment
abjective and strateqy.
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The Manager communicates regularly with portfolio companies and is an engaged

shareholder (on behalf of the Company).
The Board monitars the Manager’s stewardship arrangements and receives regular feedback

on meetings with the management of partfolio companies and voting at their general
meetings.
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dridends The Board recognises the impariance of dividends
to shareholders and after carelul review of the Company’s
leveniue forecasis and reserves together with the investment
outlook with the Manager. the Board decided that,
notwithstanding the exceptional market condiions. 1t would
draw on the revenue reserve Lo support the dividend

PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT

Dunng the year the-Boaid continued Lo focus on the
performance of the Manager in achieving the Company's
investment objective within an appropriate nsk framework
tollowarg the emergence of the COVIO-19 pandermic in March
2020, the focus widened to consider the potential impact of
COVID-19 on the Company (ncluding portfolio activity, nsks and
opportunities, geanng, ievenue forecasts and 1he operations
of other thid party providersy to ersure Lthat the portfolio had
sufficient 1esiience together wath the Company s operational
structure o meel the unprecedentad arcumstances.

DIRECTORATE

The Board’s poiicy on lenure was reviewed during the

year The stability of the Board dunng one of the most
challenging penods was corsidered importart particutar'y
as appoiatments had been made 1o the Board in Ociober
2019 and January 2020 Therefole, ac changes were made
lo the Board composiion dunng the linancial year Howsaver,
tne Board 15 mindful of the importance of having a suitable
succession plaa espeaally as David Watson has served on
the Board since 7012 and Siman Marrisor sice 2077

CULTURE AND BUSINESS CONDU(T

The Board 1s 10 agreement that hiaving a good corporate
cutture. particulariy inits engagemnent with the Manager,
shareholders and other key stakeholders will aid delivery
of its long term stialegy The Board promotes a culture
of openness, 1n ine with this puipose through angeing
engagement wilh its service providers and the Manager

The Cirectors agree that establishing and mamtaining

a heaithy corporate culture within the Board and in s
interaction with the tanager, Shareholders ard othes
stakehalders wilt suppor: the delivery of its purpose, values
and strategy The Boaid seeks to promole a culture of
openness, debate and Integnty through argeng dialogue
a1d engagement with (15 service provicers, prnaipelty the
Manager The Board sinves to ensure that its culiure 15 1n
ine with the Company's pursose, vaes and stralegy

The Company has a number of polices and procedures
1 place to assist with maintaiming a culture of good

governance including those relating to diversity,

Directans’ conllicts of interest and Directors” dealings n

the Company's shares The Board assesses and manitors
comphance with these pelicies as well as the general
culture of the Board regulaily thiough Board meetings and
in particular duning the annual evaluation process which 1s
undertaken by each Directar {for more information see the
Board evaluation sectian an page 5T)

The Board secks to appoint the best possible service
providers and evaluales their service on g requiar basts
as described on page 53 The Board considers the culture
of the Manager and other service providers, including
their pailaies, practices and behaviour, thraugh regular
leporting from these stakehclders and in particular durning
the anrual review of the perfarmance and continuing
appomlment of all service providers.
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EMPLOYEE, SOCIAL IMPACT AND WIDER
COMMUNITY

The Board recognises (the requirement under the Companies
Act 2006 to detail information about human fighis,
employees and community 1ssues, mcluding miormaton
about any policies 1t has in relation to these matlers and
the elfectiveness of these policies These requirements,
praclicaliy, are nat apphicable to the Company as it has no
amployees, all the Directoss are nan-executive and 1t has
outsourced all operational funchions 1o third-party service
providers Therefore, the Comaany has not 1eported funthes
i resuect of these provisions

DIRECTORS INDEMNITY

Directors” and Officers” labihity insurance cover 150
place in respect of the Directors The Compeany's Arlicles
of Assaciation pravide, subject to the provisions of LK
legislation, an indemnity for Crrectors in respect of costs
which they may incur relating 1o the defence of ary
proceedings brought against them arising out of ther
posiions as Directors, n which they are acquitied o
Judgement s giver 1n their favour by the cour:

Ta the extent permilted by ‘aw and by the Company's
Articles of Assouanan, the Company nas enlered inlo
deeds af indemnity for the benefit of each Diector of
lhe Comaany In iespect of llabihbes which may atlach 1o
thermn n their capacity as Cireclors of the Company These
provisicrs, which are qualifying third party indemmniiy
provisicons as defined by section 234 of the Campanies
Act 2006, were introduced i January 2007 ang currently
remain i force
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DIRECTORS STATEMENT AS TO DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

The Directors who were merbers of the Board at the time
of appraving the Directors” repart are hsted on pages 38
and 39 Hoving made enguines of fellow direclors and ol
the Company's auditors, eacn ol these Direclors confirms
that

o tre pest of each Diector’s knowledge and beliel.
here 15 no Information (that 1s, nformation needed by
he Company’s auditors in connection wilh predanng
their reporl) of which the Company's auditors are
unaware, and

t
f
t

each Director nas laken all the steps a Director might
reasonably be expected ta have taken (o be aware of
relevant andit information and ta establish that the
Company’s auditors are aware of that information

Thisinformaten is giver and should be interpreted in
arcordance with tne provisions of Section 438 of the
Companies Acl 2006

By order of the Board

David Watgon
Chalrman

3 June 2071
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Report of the Nomination Committee

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Charman My Watson

KEY RESPONSIBILITIES

Review the Board and its Committees and make
recommendations in relation o structure, size and
composition, the balance of knowledqge, expenente
and skill ranges,

Consider cuccossion plannig and lene policy and
aversee the development of a diverse pipeline,

Consider the re-giection of Diectars, and
Review the outcome of the board evaiuation process

The Nomination Committee meets al least on an annual
Basis, and mare frequently as and wher required and last
mel in Maich 2021

ACTIVITY DURING THE YEAR

The Comimittee discussed succession planmng of the
Board, the tenure and diversity policies

The Committee annually reviews the size and structure

of the Board and wall contintie 16 réview succession
planning and further recruitment and lake nto account the
recoammendations of external Board evaluations

BOARD EVALUATION

Followang the engagement of Tim Stephenson of
Stephenson & Co, to facltate an independent evaluation
of the effectiveness of the Board, 1ts commiilees and
the performance of each direclor for the year ended

31 March 2020 The annual evaluation for the year endec
31 March 2021 was camed oul by the Company 1:us
took the form of questionnaires followed by discussions
to idenkify the effectiveness of the Board's activities,
including its Commuittees.

The Chanman also reviewed with each Director tharr
mdnadual performance, contnbubion and commitmet
The appraisat of the Chairman followed the same format
anc was ied by Simon Marnson The results of the
evalualion process were presented 1o ard considered by
the Boarc There were ro significant actions ansing from
the evsliration process and it was agreed that the current
composttion of the Board and its Commuttees reflected a
sultable mix of skills and expenence, and that the Boarg
as a whole, the indrvidual Directors and its Committees
were functioning effeciively

Alter careful consideration, particularly of the Board's Policy
Governing Board Members’ Tenure and Reappointment, all
of the directors, will be offering themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming AGM It s considered that each of them
ment re-election by shareholders Further information on

each directors’ skilts and then contnibution to the Board are
outhned n the diectors’ bicgraphies an pages 38 and 39

In accordance with the provisions of the Code, 1l s the
ntention of the Board lo engage an external laullalor fo
assist with the performance evaluation every Lhree years
and the next extenal evaluation will be carned out for
the vear ended 31 March 2023 The Board will continue 1o
complete an internal beard evaluation annually withir the
intervening years

BOARD'S POLICY ON TENURE

in line with the update of the Code 1n 20*8. the AIC has
updated its Code of Coiporale Governance in 2019 The AlC
lecommended, under Provisioen 24, a different approach Lo
tenure In relation to Investment companies, considenng
how they differ ta chairs of operating companies, where
the Board does not have a chief execulive The Board took
Into consideration the appioach and introduced the Palicy
Governing Board Members Tenure and Reappointment’
This policy outhnes the Company's aporoach to tenure and
reappointment of non-executive directars 1t fighhights the
Board’s belief that the value brought through continurty
and expenence of Directors with longer penods of service
is not anly desirable, but 2ssential in an investment
combany The Board did nol feel that 1t would be
appropiate 1o set a speafic teaure imit for sndivaidoal
Drrectors or the Chairman of the Board or iis commiliees
Inslead. the Board will seek (o recruit a new Director on
average every three years so as reqularly o bing the
chalenge of fresh thinking into the Board’s discussions,
ensunng that on each occasion that the Board enters 1nto
new investment commitments, at least half the Board
members have difecl personal expenence of negaoliating
previous commitments with the ianager

DIRECTORS TRAINING

WEen a new Director 15 appointed, he/she 1s offered
tianming 1o suit therr needs Directors are also provided
with key informetion on the Company’s aclivities on

a reqular pasis, including requlatory and statutory
requirements and mternal contrals Changes affecting
Directors’ responsibilities are advised to the Board as they
anse Direclors ensure that they are updated on regu'alary,
statutory and industry matlers

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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MANAGEMENT FEES

The fee for the penad under review was o fixed fee of
£3.745.000 plus an ad valarem fee of 0 20%; pa based an
the net asset value {detetmined n accordance with the
AIC method of valuation) on the last day of march, Jure.
Seplerrber and December, payable quarterly in advance

The fee anangements have been reviewed by the Soard
for the year to 31 tarch 2022 and the fixed element of the
fee and the ad velorern 1ate will rematn unchanged.

The Board continues o consider that the fee structure
ahgns the inlerests of the shareholder and the Manager as
well as being highly compelitive

The lee arrangerments will contimue 1o be reviewed on on
annual basis

PERFORMANCE FEES

In addiion to 1ne management tees. the Board has aqwepd
o pay the Manager p@r armance related fees in respect of
an accounting period if certain performance objectives aie
achieved

A pericrmance fee 1s payabie (l the
net gssets [after deduction of
Fees and otie

olal return of adjusted
all Base Management
rexpenses), as defined ir the A, at

31 March each year autperforms the Lotai return of the
Comeany s nenchmark plus 14 (the “nurdle =ate”), s
putperioimanice (expressed as a peicentage) Js kKnown
as the “percentage outpesformance” Any fee paydbie
Wil be the amount equivalent 10 he adiusied nel assets
ai 31 Warcr each vear muitiphed by the percentage
outperformarce. then mutup'ied by 15% The maimur
cerformance fee nayable o6 a pencdas capued at15%
of the adiusted ne 3550ty However, IF the adjusied

net assels ai the end of any pentad are 1935 thap at ire
ceginting o' the penad, the maxmum performance les
sayable wii be Imited to 195 of the adwisted net assets

If the total relarn of sha-ehalders’ funds for ary
nerfoimancs penod 15 -ess rat e penchma o7 ine
retoygrt partaimiance petiac, sugh undermeris
lexprassed as 2 perreniage)
fatgre o formiatce Lenn 1

Al e camea fa
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be used for offset purposes anty and therefore cannot
have the elfect of creating a fee i a yedr where 3 fee
would not atherwise be payable or increasing the fee
in that year At 31 Marcn 2027 there 1s a cairy forward of
gulperformance of 18% (7020 138%)

No fee will be pavaple unless tne adjusted net assets
outperform the hurdle rate. atter taking into account
any accumulated percentage underperformance

brougnt forward at the begmming of the financial year
Performance fees earned In the year endec 31 March
2021 were £9.659.000 (2020. £2.6383,000) Tolal fees
pad Lo the Manager 10 any pne yeal (Management and
Performance Fees) may not exceed 4 99% af Group Equity
Shareholders’ funds. Total fees payable for the year Lo 31
March 2027 amount to 1 2% (2020 G 8%} of Group fquity
Sharenolders’ Funds

OEPOSITARY ARRANGEMENTS AND FEES

BNP Parbas was appointed as Depositary on 14 uly 204
i accordance with the AIFMD The Depositary's
responsibiities include- cash monitcring, segregation and
safe keening of the Company’s fnanaial instruments, anc
monitornng tne Company's comphance wilh imyestmen?
and leverage requireinents The Depostary lecewves

for 1ty services 3 fee of 2 0 pasis patnts per anrurm on
the first £150 mullior af the Company’s assels, ' 4 basis
DOINiS per annurm on asseis above £150 mition and

nelow £500 mtien and 0735 basis poinis on assels adove
£500 milion

REVIEW OF THIRD PARTY PROVIDERS FEES
Cusigdy and Adminisiiation Services aie proviced by

BNP Panbas and Company Secreanal services by Lirg
Company Matte's The iees for these services are charged
directly o the Compary and are coniained within

aurer adrunisieative expenses disclosed in rotes o lne
ACCOJNIS

David watson

3 June 207"



Directors’ Remuneration Report

INTRODUCTION

The Board has prepaied this report and the Directors’
Rermuneration Policy, in accordance with the requirements
of Schedute 8 of the Large and Medium Sized Companies
and Groups {(Accounts and Repoitsy Regulalions 2013, An
ordinary resclutton for the approval of this report will be
put to the members at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting.

The taw fequires the Company's Auditors, KPMG LLE

1o audit certain of the disclosures provided. Where
disclosures have been audited, they are indicated as such.
The Audilor's opimon 15 Included in the Independent
Audilor s Report’

ANNUAL STATEMENT FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF
THE COMMITTEE

The MEC melin March 2021 and considered the results
and feedback from the board evaluation alongside
othet factors The MEC also considered the frequency of
remunerglion increases for the Trust, feedback from the
market and nvestors an the level of frequency and the
current impact of the outbreak of coronavirus (COV:D-19)

Foltowing the MEC meeting in ®arch 2027, 1t was agreed
that the current level of remuneration for the Board of the
Trust remained appropriale It was also agreed thal the
Non-executive Director's {ee would 1eman al £35.000 per
annum with effect from 1 Apnl 2021 1L was further agreed
that the Directors holding the roie ol the Audit Committee
Chairman and Seniar Independent Direclor would contirue
lo recerve an additional £5,000 to reflect the increase 1n
therr responsibifities Moreover, 1t was agreed that the
Charrman's remuneralion would remain at £70,000

DIRECTORS REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company's policy is that the fees payable ta the
Directors should reflect the time spent by the Board on
the Company's affairs and Lhe 1esponsibiities borne by the
Directors and should be sulficient 1o enable candidates of
high calibre 1o be reczuted The policy 1s for te Charrman
of the Board, the chairman of the Audit Committee and
the Senior Independent Director to be paid Figher fees

than the other Direclors i recogiition of their more
onerous rales This policy was approved by the members
at the 2020 AGM. and the Directors” intention s that this
will contimue for the vear ending 31 March 2023

The Directars are remunerated in the form of fees,
payable monthly m arrears, 1o the Director personally or
1o a thiid party specihed by that Director There ate no
iorg-lerm incentive schemes. share oplion schemes of
pension arrangements and the fees are not specificaily
related to the Directors’ performance, either individually or
collectively
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The Board consists entirely of Non-executive Directors,
whe are appointed with the expectation that they will
serve for a peniod of three years Directars’ appointments
are reviewed lormally every three years thereafter by the
Board as a whole None of the Directors have a cantracl
of service and a Lirector may resign by nobice i wnting
t0 the Board al any ime, there are no notice pernds The
terms of then appoirtment are detailed in a letter to them
when they join the Board. As the Directors do not have
service contracts, the Company does not have a polcy on
termination payments

fhere 15 no notice petiod and no payments for loss of
ofice were made dunng the perod The Company's
articles of Association cunently imit the total aggreqgale
fees payable to the Board 1o £300,000 per annum

sharehaiders’ views in respect of Dnectors’ remureration
are communicated at the Company's AGM and are taken
irlo accoudt in formulating the Directors remunesation
policy. AL the {ast AGM, over 996% of shareholders voied
for the resolution appraving the Directors’ Remuneralion
Report (04% against) At the 2020 AGM. over 99% voled
for the resolution approving the Directars’ Remuneration
Pohcy (D 4% against), showimng significant shareholder
support

ihe components of the remune atior package for
Non-execdtive Directers, which are compnsed in the
Directors’ remuneratian policy of the Company are set oul
below, with a description and approach to delermination
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Fixed Fees Additional Fees 'Expenses Fees ‘ mhgf

The aggregate limit for the Additional fees may be paid  The Directors are entitled Board members are not

Fees for the Board as a whole to any Director who fulfils the to be paid all reasonable eligible for bonuses, pension
is £300,000 per annum, in role of the Chairman, who expenses properly incurred benefits, share options,
accordance to the Articles of  chairs any committee of the by them attending meetings  long-term incentive schemed
Assaciation, which is divided  Board or who is appointed with sharehelders or ather or other non-cash benetfits or
between the Directors as as the Senior Independent Directors or otherwise taxable expenses.

they may deem appropriate.  Director. in connection with the

Annual fees are set to These fees will be set discharge of their duties as

reflect the experience of at a competitive level to Directors.

each board member and reflect experience and time

time commitment required commitment.
by Board members to carry
out their duties and is
determined with refarence to
the appointment of Directors
of similar investment
companies.

ANNUAL REMUNERATION REPORT
For the year ended 31 March 2021, Diectors’ lees were paid at the aanual rates of Charman, £70.000 (2020 F70.000) |
and all olner girectors £33,300 (2020 £35000) An additioral £3,0001s paid per annum for each of the roles of Audit

Commutes Chairman and Seniod independent Qirecior The actual amounis paid o the ireclors duang the financral year

under revievy are s shown below

AMOUNT OF FACH DIRFCTOR'S EMOLUMENTS {AUDITED)

The fees payable in1espect of eact of the Directors who serves dun~g ine faanca’ year were as iollows

31 March 2020

£
Davigd Watson'™ £0,461 40,000
Siman Marrisgn!? 38,410 35,000
Tim Gillbanks 40,000 40,000
Kale Bolsover 35,000 17,500
Sarah-Jane Curtis 35,000 6,372
Hugh-Seaborn® 23,333 70,000
Total B ) i - m20a 208,872

shere g change akes place dung

25 to0n e tase above Thare are no

<L0T TIeC A e Al oF 28 1y FOAT

ACECTIRC a8 bet o CceLerert DUenmr o JB Ly S0

CEITEC ey LYA T AR I 22w 2020

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST



Directors’ Remuneration Report coore e

COMPANY PERFORMANCE

The graph below compares, for the ten years ended

31 March 2021, the percentage change over each peniod

In the share price total return to shareholders compared

to the share price total return of benchimark, which the
Board considers to be the most appropoate benchmark

for investrment performance measurement purposes AN
explanation of the performance of the Company 15 given in
the Chairrman’s Statement anrd Manager’s Repait

Performance Graph - Share Price Total Return for
Ordinary Share Class

4000
3500
3000
2500

2000

1500 /J/'\/\‘

1600

500

Mat-T1 MECR MAETE MR Mals Marle Mard? Marte Mar19 Maed Mar2l

B 1R Praperty Share Price Totai Retuin 8 Benchmark Total Return

Share Price Tatal Reluin assuimir g mveshment of £7,000 on 31 tarch 2017 arc
reinvestment gt ali dividends fexcludirg dealing expenses (Source Thames
Rver {djutel)

Rer¢hmer< fotd Refuim assumirg netonal myvestment rio the irdex of £1,0€0 on
3 Msich 2011 (Socurce Thames River Captal)

DIRECTORS INTERESTS IN SHARES {AUDITED)
The interests of the Cirectors in the shares of the
Company, at the beqinning and at the end of the year or
date of aspointment, If later, were as follows

Ordinary shares of 25 pence

TPl 31 March 2020

David Watson 36,083 35,692
Simon Marrison 43,367 42,326
Tim Gillbanks - -
Kate Bolsaver 2,360 2,360

Sarah-Jane Curtis - -

since 31 tarch 2021 ta the date of this report, there have
peen no supseguent cianges to the Directors’ Intesests in
the shares of the Company

Relative Importance of Spend on Pay

2o 2020
£000 £°000 Change
Dividends paid 44,429 43,794 1.4%
Duectors’ fees 232 209 11.0%

Five year change comparison
Over the last five years, Directors’ pay has ncreased as sel
oul it Lhe table helow

2016

) £0060 £'000 Change
Chairman 70,000 70,000 0%
Audit Committee
Chairman 40,000 35,000 14.3%
Senicr Independent
Director 40,000 35,000 14.3%
Director 35,000 30,000 16.7%

For and an behalf of the Board

Dawvid Watson

3 June 2021
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Report of the Audit Committee

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Chairman wr Gitlbanks

KEY RESPONSIBILITIES

« Rewvigw the internal financial and non-fimancial controls,

- Review reports from key thard party service providers,

- Consider and recommend Lo the Board lar appsoval the
contents of the draft Intenm and Annual Reports,

+ Review accounting policies and sigmficant financial
reporling Judgements,

- Monitor, together wilh the Manager, the Company™s
comphance with inanaal reporing and requlatory
requirements,

+ The review and supsequent proposal to the Board of
the intenm and finai dividends, and

- Considening the impact of providing non-audit serwices
un the external Auditor's ndependence and objecinatly

Representalives of the Manager's internai audii and
compliance deparliments may allend these committes
meeatings at the Committes Chairman's recuest

Representalves o1 tre Company's Auditor attend the
Comimitlee meelings at which the draft .ntenm and
Anrual Repart and Accounts @ e reviewed, a1d are given
e oppoitinity 1o speak 10 the Cammittee memers
witnodl the presence of ihe representatives of the
Manager

The Board [E{GQ”J"”S h“ requieent for the Audi
Commmitiee as 2 whole (o have comoelence relevant

lo the seclal and at \easl oie member wiik 1ecent and
relevant iinanoal expenence. The Chaiman #nd M
Watson are Chartered Accountants wits extensive and
recent expenence i the financia’ Services Nidustry The
ather members of tre Lommuiliee have ¢ combinalior ol
propersy. finanaal g e:lr‘enr and Dusi=ess expenaria
trrpygh selor 2os1ens helrt throughou: helr careess

ACTIVITY DURING THE YEAR

Corsiderzuo of the sk Llas ar, changes 1o tne
leenthoaa g impact af 11sks 31¢ cansaT gzl

qared o Boerd Lotronag 2

eI IERT Y

£ 07 2TErONg
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rsks and inclustan i the Risk Map il appropnate s
has included consideration of the ongaing COVID-19
pandemic and impacl across a range of risk categones,

The Group’s Irternal Contrals and consideration of the
Repoits thereon,

The ISAE/AAT and SSAETS reports of then equivalent
o™ BMO and BNP Palibas,

Wiether the Company should have 1ts own mlernal
audit furction,

The Externat Auditor’s Planming tMemorandum setting
oul the scope of the annual audit ard proposed key
areas of focus

The reports from the Auditors concerming then audit
of tre hinanaal Statements of the Company and
Consideration of Significant 1ssues i relation o tne
Financiat Staterments,

The appropriateness of, and ary changes to, the
accounting pahicies of the Campany. including the
reasonableress of any judgements required by such
aolicies,

The Viability Statermrent and consideration of the
preparation of the Financal Statements on a Going
Concern Basis taking account of forweard 'ooking incoms
‘olecasts, the hquidity of the 1nvesiment porticho ard
debt profiie,

The finarcial and other disc'osures in the Finanaal
Slaterrents,

The irformation presentec in the Intenm a1c Annazl
Repors to assess wether, laken as a whole, the
Repoits are fan. balanced end undersiandanie and the
irformation oresented will enable the sharenoiders (o
assess the Company's pasttion, perfatmance, Susiiess
madel arc siraiegy

The nerformence o ine exiana. audiiors, )
'h@w audi #‘es ard consicer the 334es 5”7"—?!. of

2y ANl SUDSRgUR ™ proposat o the Soard of

the irtenm ard “inar divicends, and

Treresena ot the Commiees [arms of Refe 2nce,
SN5NTG 2y TETIAIN apXOpTIae and (o onatt itk

the 2073 LK Coinnrats Soyereance Code




Report of the Audit Committee “uet Lo

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND MANAGEMENT OF
RISK

The Board has overalt respoasibiity far the Graup’s system
of internal Contiols and fol reviewing their effectiveness
Key risks identiiied by the Auditors are considered by the
Audit Committee to ensure that robust nternal controls
and monitoring procedures 19 respect of these are 10 place
on an ongaing basis. turther getalls can be found on

page 28 Lo 32

The Audit Committee received and considered reporls on
Internal Controls from the key service providers. No areas
of cancern were highlighted.

The Company’s Risk Map was considered to identily any
new risks and whether any adjustments were required lo
existing nsks, and the controls and mitigation measures
in place 1 respect of these nisks. The impact of COVID-13
the response of financial markets, the ongomng impacl

on economies arcund the world and operational changes
made by aur service providers (n r2sponse 1o governmel.
guidelines were considered and the nsk map adjusted
accordingly

Based on the processes and controis in place within the
BRO Graup and other significant service providers, the
Board has concurted that there 1s no current need for the
Company Lo have a dedicated interial audit furction

SIGNIFICANT ISSUES IN RELATION TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Comurittee has considered this report and financial
staternents and the viability Slaiement on pages 33

ard 34 The Committee considerad the Audilor's
assessment of risk of matena! misstatenent and reviewed
the internal conlrols in place i fespect of the key areas
identified and the process by which the Boaerd monitors
each of the procedures 1o give the Commitiee comfor:

on lnese nsks on an ongoing basis These risks are also
highlighted in the Company’s sk Map

Carrying amount of listed investments (Group
and Parent Company) - The Groups investmerts ae
picec for the dally NAY by BNP Panibas The quated
assets oie piced by the Administrator's Global Pricing,
Flatforr which uses independent external pricing
spurces The control process surrounding this is set
out 1 the BNP Panbas AAb 07/06 :nternal Contiols
Report and testirg by 11e eporting accountant for the
penod rezorted 10 31 December 2020 did nol -evea|
any significant exceptions The guarterly contiol reporl
1o the Board from BNP Paribas covering the penod up

to 3t March 2021 had no significant 1ssues to 1eport.
In addition the Manager estimates the NAV using
an alternative pniang soutce on a daily basis as an
independent check

The Auditors agreed 100% of the listed investments
of the portfolio to externally quoted pnices and
independently receved third party confirmations from
investment custodians and found the carrying value of
listed nvestments Lo be acceptable

valuation of Direct Property Investments (Group
and Parent Company) - The physical propeity
portfalia is valued every six months &y professionat
independent valuers

Krught Frank LLP vaue the porifolio on the basis of
Fan Value in accordance with the RICS Valuation -
Professional Standards VPS4 (1 5) Farr value and YPGA
*valuations for Inclusion in Financial Statements,
which apply the definition of Fair Value adopted by
the International Financial Reporting Standards 11RS 13
defines Fair vaiue as

“The amount for which an asset could be exchanged, a
habiiity seftled, or an equily sirument granted could
be exchanged, between knowledgeable, willing parties
1 an aim's fength transaction”

In undertaking thei valuation of each property, Kmght
Frank make their assessment on the basis of a coflauon
and analysts of appropniate comparable wvesiments,
rental and sale transactions, tagether wilh evidence

of demand within the wicinity of each property This
mformation 1s then applied to the praperties, taking
o account size, location, terms, covenant and other
matenal factors.

The bogrd has reviewad reports from the Manager and
the external valuer and detecmuned the valuaton o be
regsonable

the Auditars have sef oul thew delaifed testing and
procedures in respect of the Direct property valuation
aiid concluded that they found the Campany s valuatan
of investment praperties {0 be acceptable,

There has been nolhing krought Lo the Commitiees
attention in respect of the financial statements far the year
ended 31 March 2021 which was malenal or significant or
that the Committee fell should be broughl to shareholders’
attention
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AUDITOR ASSESSMENT AND INDEPENDENCE

The Company’s external auditoi, KPMG LLP was
appointed as the Company’s auditors at the 2016 AGM
The Commutiee expects o repeal a tender process no
later than 2026 i respect of the audit for the following
31 March year erd, 1n hne with the latest Corporate
Governance provisions

Dunng the year, KPMG presented ther Audit Plan for

the year end at the interim Committee meeting and the
Commillee considered the audit process and fee proposal
The Committee also reviewed KPMG's independence
pohties and procedures ncluding quahty assurance
procedures It was consigered that these policies are {il
for purpose and the Diectors are satishied that KPRG are
ndependent

Total ‘ees payable to the Auditer in respect of the audit for

the year to 31 March 2027 were £80,000 (2020 £80.000),
which were approved by the Audit Commullee

The Commullee has approved and implemented a policy
on the engagement of the Auditor to supply ren-audit
S8TVICes, TaKING INtg actouat tne “ecammendabions of
the Accounting Practices Goard with a view (o ensunng
chat the external Auditor does ot pravice non-audit
services tat have the potenliel toimeal or appeds (0
imaair the indepencence of their auditiole In agdition,
the Committee teviewed the actions putin place by the
Audilor 1o ensure trere was 2 clear sepatalion betweer
audit and advisory sevices The Commitlze does ant
Believe there to be any impedi—~ent Lo the Aucio s
objechivity and independence

e fees [or non-audil services [of the year o 31 Maich
were nil (2020 il

Full dewars of the Auditor’s fees are prowided in role & to
the ACcounts on page 79

The Board 1oted that M Kelly, the current ga-ner
appointed for the 2077 yea—end audis and wr corinuye
as sarteer only gntit the co~ciusion of e sear-end
agars M Merchant il raplace Y Kally as egdn paore

for me 2577 yea-eng audis N Lerchan

a5

-

nvestrent Trust Capamies

=)
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Following each audit, the Commiltee reviews the audit
process and considers s effectiveness and the quaity
of the services provided to the Company Within this
orocess, the Comimutiee (akes into consideraiion ther
own assessment, lhe self-evaluation of the auditor and
Ihe Audit Quality Review Report produced by the FRC in
order to monttar e progress of e Audilor's performance
comparahle with 11 oeer and the targets sel ny the FRC
The review foilowing the completion of the 2020 Audnt
concluded that the Committes was salisfied with the
Auditar’s effectiveness and performance

the Commitiee falt that KPMG had run an effective

and efficient audit process wiath appropnale challenge
Subsequently, 3 resolution to re-appoint KPMG LLP as
the Campany’s Auditar will ne put to shareholders at tre
forthcaming AGM

Tim Gillbanks

3 Jure 2021



Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in re

Group financial statements

The directors aie responsible for prepanng the Annual
Repall, the Stialeqic Report, the Directors Report and the
finanaal stalements in accordance with applicable law and
reqgulations

Company «aw requires the direclars to prepare Group
and Parent Company financial statements for each
financial year Under that law they are required 10
prepare the Group hnancial statements in accordarce
with international accounting standards in confarmaty
with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and
apphcable aw and have eiecled to prepare the Parent
Compary hinancial statements on the same basis In
addition the Group hirancial statements are required under
the UK Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules to
be prepared in accordance with international Financial
Reporting Standards adopled pursuant o Requlation (EC)
No 1606/2002 as it apphes in the Furopear Union

Under company law the dieclors must nol approve the
financial statements unless they are satisfied that they
give a trge and fain view of the state of affairs of the
Group and Parent Company and of the Group's probit of
loss for that penod In prepanng each ol the Group and
Parent Company linancial statements, the directors are
required g

select suitable accounting 2obaies and then apply them
consistently,

nake ,udgements anc estimates that are reasonable,
relevanl and reliable,

state whether they have been prepaied i accordance
witn international accounting standards in confor nity
with the requiremerts of the Companies Act 2006 and,
as recards the group finanaial statements, International
Finanaial Reperting Standards adopted pursuant 1o
Regulation (FC) o 160672002 as 1t apphes in the
European Umon,

assess the Group and Parert Company's abilily (o
conbinue as 4 going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related o going concare, and

use the gaing concern basis af accounting unless they
either intend to iquidate the Group or the Paient
Company o 10 cease aperahonrs, of have no realistic
aiternative bt to do so

The directors aie responsiby e for keepiag adequale
accounrling records that are sufhaent Lo show and explam
the Parent Company's tansactions and discose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial positior

ol the Parent Company and enable them to ensure that

ation to the

ils financial statements comply with the Comparies Act
2006. They are responsible for such internal contrel as
they determing 1s necessaly Lo enable the preparation
of financial statemeants that are free from materal
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and have
general responsiblity for taking such steps as are
reascnably open to them to sa’zquard the assets of
the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and cther
irreqularities

Under applicable law and requlations, the directoss are
also 1esponsible for prepanng a Strateqic Repait, Ciectors’
Report, Directlors’ Remuneration Reporl and Corporale
Governance Slaternent that comphes with that law and
those 1equlations.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and
inteqgnity of the corperate and inanaal infarmation
included on the Company’s website Legislation in the
UK goverming the preparation and dissemination of
financial staternents may aiffer from leqislation in other
Junsdictions

RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT OF THE DIRECTORS
IN RESPECT OF THE AMNUAL FINANCIAL REPORY

Lach of the cirectars confirms that to the best of they
know'edge

the inancial statements, prepared 1r accordance with
the applicable set of accourung standards. give a true
and {air vizw of the assets, llabilines, fmancia! position
and profit or loss of the Group and Parert Company and
the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as
awhole, and

the strateqic repoit ncudes a lair reviewy of the
development and performance of the business and the
position of the issuer and Lhe undertakings included

In the consolidation taken as & whoie, logether with 2
description of the principal nsks and urcertairties that
they face

The Direclors consider the arnuat report and accounts,
taken as a whole, 1s fairn balanced ard understandable
and provides the information necessary for skareholders
to assess the group's positior anc pesformarce. nusiness
mocet and st-ategy

8y order of the Boarg

David Watson

3,une 2027
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KPMG

independent auditor's report

to the members of TR Property Investment Trust plc

1. OUR OPINION IS UNMODIFIED

we have audited the financial statements of TR Property
Investment Trust Ple {"the Company”) lor the year ended
37 March 2021 which comprrse the Group Staterrent af
Lomprehensive Income, Group and Company Statements
of Changes in Equity, Group and Coinpany Balance Sheels,
Group and Company Cash Flow Siatements and the related
aotes including the accounting poicies in note 1

In our gpinion.

— The finanual statements give 4 Lrue and fair view of
the state of the Compary's alfairs as al 31 Maich 2027
and of the Group’s return for the year then ended,

The Group financiar statemeris have baen oroperty
prepared in accarcance with UK-adopted interranonal
accounting stangards,

— The Pareri Company finaraal sialements have been
properly prepared 1o accordarce vath Uk-adopied
nternationzl accounting standarcs 41d as apphed in
accodarce with the provisions of whe Compantes Act
2006, and

— The hnanaal stalemen:s have been preaaied 10
accordarce with the recuiremenis of the Companies
ACT 2006 ard, as regards the Group firancial

staterents, Arlice 4 of the (AS Reguiation @ the exter:

appheab'e

Basis for opinion

we conducled our audit i accordance with International
Standards on Auditng (UK) {"ISAs (UK}") and applicable
law Our responsibilinies are desciibed below. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained s a sufficent
and appropriate basis for our opmion Qur audit opimion 15
consistent with our repert to the audit committee

_

Materiality: £14.9m (2020:£12.5m)

Financial statements 1% (2020: 1%) of Total Assets

as a whole

Key audit matters vs 2020

Recurring risks Valuation of direct
propeity investments ‘r
Carrying amaunt of listed
investments i

Wwe were irst appainted as aucitor by the Diiectoss or

? Navernher 2016 The penod of tetar uninterupted
engagement 15 for the 5 finanaal years ended 31 Maich
2021 we have fullilled our ethicai responsibilities

under, and we remaln independent of the Comaany in
accotdance with, U ethicai requuermnents ircluding the
FRC Ethicar Standa.e as appled to hisled public interest
antities No non-audi services prohisiied by that stardard
Were proviced

2. KEY AUDIT MATTERS: INCLUDING QUR ASSESSMENT OF RISKS OF MATERIAL MISSTATEMENT

Key audic ima

financig. s

ters a2z lhose maztars that e oo orofessional judgemen:
TEMS 3o nc uee the mast sentficant assassed i1s<s of rdienal misstateme 1t (whethe ar qat dige 19

fraud) icentifiec by us, 10g ey trose o ad the greatest effeci on e gue

werg 0° most sighificance 17 ire aual o the

e a peator of

A1 audit stratesy,

2300725 15 the gudil, and diecang e eforts of the ergagemment tear e sammanse pelow e <@y audl’ madiers
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Independent auditor’s report : 7t 0

Valuation of direct Subjective valuation: we performed the delalled tests betow rather Lthan

property investments ~secking to rely on contiols, because the aature
5 6% (2020 75%) of the Boups  of the balance 15 such thal we would expect 1o

(Group and Parent tolal assets (by value) are held i ghiain audit evidence pamanly traugh the detalled

Company) nwestment propertizs procedures descrbed

(£83.1 milhon; The fan value of each prope Qur procedures ncluded §

2020 £94.5 mulhion) requires signicant E}‘,.lrmtluw, . . 2

. o -- Assessing valuer’s credentials: Using oul oven >

in partcular eath regard to ? 3

property valuation speciabist, we evaluated the
competence, expenence and mndependence of the
extermat valuer,

Refer 1o pages 58 10 60
(Audit Commitlee Repart),
page 74 and 75 {accounting
policy), and note 10 oa

the key estimated rental
value and yield assumpltions
The key assumpliuns will be

nages 82 to 85 (inancial impacted by a number of factors — 1ests of Detail: We compared the nformation
disclosures) '”’f—'Ud'”Q QUG“T‘;“ and condition provided by the Gloup 1o 1Ls exlemnal propert,
af the butlding and renant valuer for a sample of praperfies, such as rental
covenant strength mcoime and lenancy data to suppoiting decuments

The effect of th e ncluding lease agreements;
12 effect of these matlers

15 thal as part of our sk — Methodology choice: te held discussions with

assessment we determined the Group’s external propeity valuer to determine
thal the waiuation of nvestrment the valuation methodology used We m(\Ude oul
propeities has a high degree of own propeltly valuation specalist 1o assist |
astmation uncertamnty, with 3 cntically dbb\::Slﬂq the results of the valuer's \er,ort

b*;,- checking that the valuations were in accordance
Ath the RICS Yalualion Frofessional Stancards

t# Red ook and IFRS and that the methodology

adopted was appropnete by relerenca o

acceptable valustion prachice,

polential tange of ._asomh'C
autcomes greater than our
natenally for the financal
statements as 4 whole The
financial statements (note 10)
disclose the seasitivity estmated  — Benchmarking assumptions: with the
by the Groun assistance of adr own properly waluaticn speaalst,
we held discussions wath the Group's extemal
property valuer to undersiand mavernents in
property values For o sample of properties, we
assessed the key assurplions used by the valuer
upen which the valuations are based, including
those relating to estimated rental value and vield,
by making & companson to our own understancding
of the mar \<er_ and Lo ndnstey benchmarks,

— Assessing transparency: e als0 mﬂsde 2d the
adequacy of the Group’s discdosires about the degree
of estimatior and sersiisity 1o P(-, 1951 lmphf 1 made
when valung the direct property investiments

Our results:

— we found ‘he valuation of mvestmant prope-hes o
be acceptable (2020 acceptahle)

TR PROFERTY INVESTMENT TRUST 3



Yhe risk

Carrying amount of listed Low risk, high value:
investments

{Group and Parent)

(£1,3174 milhon; Group’s taral assets (by value)
2020 £1,060 1 milion) and 15 one of the key drivers o

The Group's portfeho of quoted
level 1 IW-PSUT]HH[S makes up
RR 29 (2020 84.4%) of the

Our response '
We performed the detailed lests below rather than

seeking Lo rely on controls, because the nature of

the balance 15 such that delaied testing s determined

to be the mast effectr.e manner of obtainmg

audit evidence

aur ofocedures ircluded

results e co nol consider these

Reler to pages 58 1o 60 nvesiments Lo be at o ligh nsk

{Audit Committee Report),  of sigrificant misstatement of

page 75 (accaunting policy} 1o he subject o 3 significant

and note 10 on peges 82 level of judgement because

ta 85 (hnancial disclosures)  they compnse hguid, quoted
investments Howaver, due to
then materality in the context

of the iingacal statements

whole, they are considerad to
[ one of the areds which had
the greatest effect on our overall
anait strateqy, and nl\n(,atmﬂ

ol resamces in planmirg a
completing our audf

3. OUR APPLICATION OF MATERIALITY AND AN
OVERVIEW OF THE SCOPE OF QUR AUDIT
watenaity for the ﬁnaﬂ(mr statements as a whole was
sl an £149m (2020 £72 5m), determinec with reference
1o a benchmark of otai assels, of which it epresencs
0% (2070 10%)

tatenality for the Parent Company, finenaal stalements as
2 whole veas et £141m (2020 12 0m) determined as 0 9%
of the tota, assets of the parert company (2020 1 5%}

In e wits our 4ucit met~odeogy, oul procecures on

indradual account balances and disciosures we e perforired

10 a Qwel threshold, periormance matenaity. so as to 1educe

to ar acceptable level the nisk that ncradualls immatenal
msstaterrents i indeacual account oalances ade up to 3 matenal
amodrt acloss the firanca s*ﬂere {5 as awhole Perfoimarce
natenality was sel at 757 (205 75%9) of maieslity for the
fir2~Cian stalements 4s 2 wvhole, ,mw.“ uuarﬂs (¥ *ﬂ 200
£94m) for ire Gioun and €155 {207 oy for the Parerd
Compan, aophed this age Ir o f*e‘ 2rTINAOr oF
.)eafm'man&; —aenait, D;(,nu:c Nie O ot iden:

INTICANNG an elan ater eyl o 15

adcrion, e apolied matena, o L2 Gr (2020

Do glng ntome,

J7a55 A g T 5e : Chr?HJ'E mLome gnd et

TEUInS oo Cotrac for diffe ences {9 amicn e bensne
TIsstAET e~y ¢ TesseT ATyt 0aT MmEenalty for
e fingrag statements 25 2 25013510,

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

— Test of detail: Agresing e valuation of 1002u0i
leval 3 listed investments in the poctfolo to
extemnally quoled prices, and

— Enquiry of custodians: Ayreeing 100% of level
1 hsted imvestmeant holdings i the portfolio Lo
independerthy recered turd party confiimations ‘
from imwestment custodians

Our results

wie found the carr g amaurt of histed
.

Ieastmierts 1o he acceptable (2020 acceplaple)

be expected to influerce the Company's members’
assessment of the finanaial pertarmance of the Corpary

Wwe agreed to report Lo the Auait Commitlee ary corrected ol
uncorracted dertified misstatements exceeding £5 75m
{2020 £063m) i addinon o otrer idertfied misstaterents

that warranted “2poring on wialtative grounds

Qur audit of the Company was underlaken 1o
nate-iality level specihed asove and was peiformed Dy a
sngle audit team

Toe auat team oedformed e auait of the Group as if 1t was
2 sngle agyregated set of hiraraelnformation Th|~ apcroach

s unchanged from the 3n0r year Tre audit of the Group was

performed using the Gioup matenaaty level set out above

Total Assets Group Materiality
£1,497m (2020: £1,256m) £14.9m {2020. £12 &m)

£14.9m

Whroe firarcia
staterrents matenauly
12020: £12 5}

£14.1m

Parert Compary
Matenaity
12020: €12 Orr)

£0.75m Misstaterrerts
reported 1o the audn
comrmittee (2020,

£0 63m)




Independent auditor’s repart oo of

4. GOING CONCERN

The Directors have prepared the finanaidl statements on
the going ceneern basis as they do not intend 1o hquidate
the Group or Company or to cease its operations, and

as they have condluded that the Group or Company's
‘mancial position means thal this 1s reaiistic They have
als concluded that there are no matenal urcertainties
that could have ¢ast significant doubt aver its ability to
continte as & gaing concere fnf at least a year from the
date ol appioval of the financial statements (“the going
concern penod”)

We used our knowledge of the Group, 1ts industry, and the
general econormic environment to identfy the inherent
nsks tots business model and analysed how those nsks
might affect the Group or Company’s inanaal rescurces

or ability to centinue operations over the going concern
period The nsks that we considered most likely o
adversely affect the Group of Company’s avatlable finarcal
resources and its ability to operate over this perod were

— Thempact of a significant reduction in the valuation
of mvestments and the impiications for the Group oi
Company's debl covenants,

— The hquidily of the mvestment portfcha and its abiity
to meet he lahilities of the Group as and when they
fall due, and

— The operalional resilience of key service organisalions

We considersc whether these nisks could plausioly affect
the quidity in the going concern peniod by assessing the
degree o' downside assumplion that, individually and
collectively, could result 1n a hquidity issue, taking into
account the Group or Company's current and projected
cash and tguid investment position (and the results of
therr reverse stress testing)

we considered whether the going concern disclosure In
note 1 to the finarcial statements gives a full and accurate
descriptior of the Directors” assessment of going concern,
including the identified nisks and re aled sersitivities

Qur canciusions based on this wark

We consider 11at the Direclors’ use of the going
concetn hasis of accounting in the preparation of the
financial stalesments (s appropriate,

— We have nozicentified, and concur with the Direclars’
assessment that there s nol, a matenal uncertainty
relatec to evenls o conditions that, indiiduaiy or
collectively, may cast significant doubdt an the Group or

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern fol
the gomng concern period,

— We have nothing matenal to add or draw attention to
I relabion o the Directors” statement in note 1to the
financial statements an the use of the goirg concern
basis of accounting with no malenal uncertainties thal
mey cast sianificant doubt aver the Group or Company s
use ol that basis for the going concern penad, and
we lound the gaing cancern disclosure 1n note 11a be
acceptable, and

— The related statement unde the Listing Rules sel out
on pages 41 and 42 1s matenaily consislent with the
financial statements and our audit knowledge,

However, as we cannot predict all future events or
condiions and as subsequenrt events may result in
outcomes that are inconsistent with judgements that
were reasonable at the bme they were made, the
above conclusions are not a quarantee that the Group or
Company will continue In operation

5. FRAUD AND BREACHES OF LAWS AND
REGULATIONS - ABILITY TO DETECT

Identifying and responding to rnsks of matenal
misstatement due to fraud

To identifly n1sks of matenal missiatement due 1o fraud
{“fraud nsks”y we assessed events or conditions that
could mdicate anncertive or pressure to cammit fraud
or provide dan oppartunity to commit fravd Our sk
assessment procedures inciuded

— Enquining of Dredlors as Lo the Group's hign-leve:
pohcies and procedures to prevent ang detect fraud, as
well as whether they heve knowledge of any actual,
suspected or alleged fraud,

— Assessing the segregation of duties i place between
the Directors, the Admimstrator ard the Groups
Investment Manager, and

-~ Regding Board and Audit Committee mirutes

As required by auditing standards, we perform procedures
1o address tne nsk of managemen: avernde of coaliols,
IN particytar 1o the nsk thai management may be

a posilion 1o make inappropriate accounting entries

We evalualed the design and implementation of the
conirols over jourral entries and other adjusiments and
made nguintes of the Adrministrator aboul inappropniate
ar unusual activily relaling to the processing of journal
entnes and other adjustments We substantively tesled all

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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matenal post-closimg entries and, based o1 the results of
our sk assessment pracedures and understanding uf the
process. including the segregation of duties between the
Directors and the administrator. ne further fugh-nisk journal
enities or ather adjustments were idertiied

On this audit we have rebutted the fraud nsk ~elated

0 1evenue recognition because the revenue 1s noi-
judgemental and siraightforward, with imited opoortunity
for manipulation we did notidentify any significant
unusuai transactions or additionat fraud nisks

Identifying and respending to risks of material
misstaternent due to non-compliance with laws and
regulations

We identiied areas of laws and requlations that could
reasonably he expected 0 have a matenal eflect on the finanaal
staterments from ow general commeirnia: and seclor expenence
and through discussion wath the Directors, the Investment
Manager and the Administratar (as required by auditing
standands) and discussed wwith the Direclors the poiicies and
procedures regarding comphance with laws ard requlations.

The polentiai effect of t1ese laws and regulations on the
finanaal siatements venes consideranly

Firstly, the Compary 15 subject to laws and requlations
that directiy affect the firancial staiemnents inclacing
financa reporting legisletion (including refatec comparies
legislation). aistibutanle profits legislatior, ard its
qualiicaiion as an vestmen® Tiust under UK taxation
legislatior, any breac af which coutd lead to the Gioup
losing vanods deducions ane exermrptions from UK
carporaton tax. and we assessed the extent of comp’iarce
with these iavss and “equiations as pari of our procedur=s
an the related Imanaial statemen: rems

Secondly. the Group 15 subject o many athe: iaws and

“equations where the consegaerces af non-complharce

toal have o matenal effec: on amounts or £isc'osures

mtre finardiai statements, ‘orinstance through the

irzositon of fres of hgatior e dentifiec the toliowirg
s 10se st Jkelv 10 nave such a7 effecl morey

, arbemy ana coruEion

and ceriemn assecss of compart iegislatinn

;the Granaz ~aiare of e Croup’

oo Aadinrg standatds BT e recuired

AuCH pracedues o wlemify nor-coma ance vath these

@vi5 30 reguATIens o ey of the Dirscin 5 300 the
ACTUNISTALN AT nsLEnion of 1ecy atar, and ieqal

coirespondatoe. The-etare 1 3 breacm of oueato-al
atians 58 1ol 2Isc ased 1o Js of evndert fom reesar:

Wil gt derec bat breack

Vi
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Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or
breaches of law or regulation

Owang to theinherent imitations of an audit, there 15 an
unavoidabie nisk that we may not have delecied some
matenal misstatements i the finaroal statements, even
though we nave properly piannad ard pertor ned oul
audit Ir accordance with auditing standards For example,
the further removed non-comphance with laws and
requlaticns 1s from the events and Lransactions reflecled
n the finanaial statements, the less hikely the inherentily
hmuted procedures required by audihng slandards wouid
idennfy

In addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher nisk
of non-detection of fraud, as these may involve collusian,
forgery, intentional omissions, misiepresentations, or the
avernide of internal controls Our 3udit pracedures are
designed o detecl matenal misstalement We aie not
responsible for preventing non-compiance or fiaud and
cannot be expected fo detect non-complance with all
lawys ard requlations

6. WE HAVE NOTHING TO REPORT ON THE OTHER
INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The Directors are respansible for the ather infermation
presented 17 e Annual Repoit togethe: wath the finanaal
statements Qur opirion on the financiat statements does
nat cover ihe other nformation and, accordirgiy, we do
not express ar audit opinion or, except as exphcty stated
below, any form of assurance conclusion thereon

Our responsilizy 1s to read the olner infarmation and,

11 doing so. consicer whether, based on our inanoal
stalemnenis aodit work, tnenformation therein 1

matenta, y misstated arincensislent with the financidl
staterrerls of sul eudt kaowledge 3ased solely on thet
work we bave noticentfizd matenal missiaiements i tre
ather information

Strategicrepors anc Directors repoit
Baser solely or ou wark or ke othe irformation

— o tave cobideified matena, sstale mens i e

Sreteqic repan 4272 the Cliectons repol,

— N 20T SIneN Tnse 1200715 B

seen cancs b e (oA




independent auditor’s report (o0 o

Directors’ remuneration tepoft

In our opinion the pail of the Directors’ Remuneration
Report to be audiled has been properly prepared in
accordance with the Compdnies Act 2006

Disclosures of emerging and principal risks and
langer-term viability

We are required (o perfarm proceduies to dent'y whether
there 1s a matenal inconsistency helween the Direclors
disclosures i sespect of ererqing and panapal asks and
the viability statement, and the firancial s.alements and
our audit knowledge

Based on those procedures, we have nothing malenal Lo
add or draw altention to in refation to.

— the Directors” confirmation within the Viability Statement
on pages 33 and 34 that they have carned out a robust
assessiment of the emerging and prinapal nsks facing the
Gioup, wcuding thase that would threaten 115 ousiness
model, fulaie performance, salvency and lquidity,

— the Principal Risks and Uncertainties disclosures
descrbing these risks and now emerging risis are
identified. and explaining how they are being managed
and mitigated, and

— the Directers” explanation n the viability Statement of
how they have assessed the prospects o the Company,
aver what period they have done so and why they
considered that peiod o be appropriate, and their
staternent as 16 whether they have a reasonable
exneciation that the Group wi'l be able to conunue
in operauon and meel ity habilites as trey fall due
over the penod of e gssessmen:, induding any
related disclosures diewirg attention to any necessary
qualifications ot assuirplions

We are also required 1o reviesw the Viability Slatement, sel
out on pages 33 a1d 34 under the listing Rules Based on
the above procedures, we Rave concluded that the above
disclosares are matena:ly consistent with the financial
staterner:s and our audit knowledge

Our worcis imited Lo assess)g Ihese matters in the
cortext of only the krowledge acquired dunng ous
firancial statements audit As we cannol precicl all Tuture
events or conditions and as subsequert events may

esdit 0 oulconmes that are jnconsislent with judgements
that were reasorable al the time they weie made. the
absence of anything 1o 1ecot or these stalements s nol a
guarainiee as o e Company's longer-term viabiily

Corporate governance disclosures

We are required Lo perform procedures to identify whether
there 1s a matenal incensistency between the Directors’
corporate governance disclosuies and the finanaal
statements and our audit knowledge.

dased on those procedures, we have concluded that fach
ol the following 15 matenally corsistent with the financial
statements and cur audit knowledge:

— the Dueclors stalement that they consider Lthat the
annual report and (inancal statements taken as a
whole 1s lan, halanced and understandable, and
provides the information necessary for shareholders to
assess the Group's pasiton and performance, business
model and strateqy,

— the section of the aanual report desciibing the work of
the Audit Committee, including the significant 15sues
that the audit committee considerad in relation (o
the finanaat statements. and how these 1ssues were
addressed, and

— the seciion of the annual repart thal describes

the review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems

We are required Lo review the parl of Corporate
Governance Statement ielating to the Group's compharce
with the provisions of the UK Carporate Governance Code
specified by the Listing Rutes (o oul review We have
nothing to report N this respect

7. WE HAVE NOTHING TO REPORT ON THE OTHER
MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO
REPORT BY EXCEPTION

Under the Compames Acl 2006, we are required to report
to you If, 1N our opIrion

adequate accounting records have nol been xept, or
returns agequate for aur audit have not beenr recenved
from branches not visited by Js, ar

— the finangia! stalements and the pait of the Directors
Remuneration Report to be audited are not in
agreement with :he accounting records and returns, ar

certain disclosures of Drectors remuneration specified
by law are 1ot made, or

— we have ot recerved ail the information and
explanatiors we require for our addit

We have nothing (o reporl i these respects
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8. RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES

Directors’ responsibilities

As explained maore fully in then stalement set out on
page 61, the Directors are respansible for the preparalion
of the firanaial slatements including being satisfied tha:
they give a true and fair view, such internal control as
they determine 1s necessary to enable the piepaation

of inanaal stalements that are free from matenal
misstatement, whether due to fraud or errer, as5es51ng
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matlers relaled o qoing concesn,
and using the gaing concern basis of accounting unless
they erther intend to iquidate the Company or (o cease
operatians, or have na realisuc dlternative but to do so

Auditor’s responsibilities

Qur opjectives are to oblain reasonable assarance about
whether the financial stalernents as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud o eirar, ard
{0 155U€ our abimon 1 an auditor's report Reasonable
assurarce 15 a high fevel of assurance, but does nol
guarantee that ar audit conducled In accordance wth 1SAS
(UK) wil- alwavs detect a matenas misstatement when 1t
exisis Misslelements can anse fram fraud o error and are
considered matenal i, indiaduaily or 1n aggreqgate, they
could reasonably be expected o 1afluence the ecoromic
deqsions of users taken on the 0asis of the inaraal
statements

Afuller descaption of our respansibilties s srovices on
the FRCS wensile ot
e org akfauditorsresponsinilities

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

9. THE PURPOSE OF OUR AUDIT WORK AND T0O
WHOM WE OWE QUR RESPONSIBILITIES

This report 1s made solety to the Grouns members, as

a body, in accordance wikh Chapter 3 of Parl 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 and the terms of our engagement by
the Company Our audit work has been undertaken so that
we might state to the Group's members those matters we
are required 1o state o thernin an auditor's repart and for
1o other purpose To the lullest extent permitted by law,
we do not accept ar assume responsibiity to anyone other
1nan the Group and the Group’s members, as a body, for
our audit work, for this report, or for the optnions we have
formed

Richard Kelly (Sanor Statutury Auditor)
for and on behait of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor

Chartered Accountants
Saltire Court

13 Canada Square
London

E74 561

3 june 2327



Group Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 March 2021

Notes Year ended 31 March 2021 Year ended 31 March 2020
Revenue Capital Total Revenue Capital Total
Return Return Return Return
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000
Income
tnvestment income 2 36,557 - 36,557 47112 - 712
Other cperating income 4 67 - 67 35 - 35
Gross reatal income 3 3,185 3,185 3,415 - 3,415
Service charge income 3 1,051 - 1,051 1,786 - 1786
Gains/(losses) on investments held at
fair value 10 - 196,582 196,582 - (153,614) (153,614)
Net movement on foreign exchange;
investments and loan notes - (3144) {3144) - 1,296 1,296
Net movement on foreign exchange; o
cash and cash equivalents - {1,474) (1,474) - 302 302 g %
Net returns on contracts for difference 10 3,320 17,978 21,298 5724 {41,276) (35,552) ZE
Net return on total refurn swap 0 - _(188) (188) - (3,808) (3,808) ¢
Total Income 44,180 209,754 253,934 58,072 (187,100) (129,028)
Expenses
Management and performance fees 5 (1,556) (14,328) (15,884) {1,570) (7,392) (8.962)
Direct property expenses, rent payable
and service charge costs 3 (1.321) - (1.321) (1.984) - (1,984}
Other administrative expenses 6 (1,231) {604) (1,835) (1,398) (615) (2,013)
Total operating expenses (4,108) {14,932) (19,040) (4,952} (8,007) {12,959}
Operating profit/{ioss) 40,072 194,822 234,894 53,120 (195,107) {141,987)
Finance costs 7 (416) (1,969) {2,385) (814) (2,443) {3,257}
ﬁdlit[(loss) from operations before B i
tax 39,656 192,853 232,509 52,306 (197,550) (145,244)
Taxation 8 (767) 2,667 1,900 (5912) 3,149 (2.763)
Total comprehensive income 38,839 195,520 234,409 46,394 (194,401)  (148,007)
Earnings/(loss) per Ordinary share 9 12.25p 61.61p 73.86p 14.62p (61.26)p {46.64)p

The Total column of this statement represents the Group's Statement of Comprehensive Income, prepared in accardance with IFRS. The
Revenue Retuin and Capital Return columns are supplementary to this and are prepared under guidance published by the Assaciation of
Investment Companies. All items in the above statement derive from continuing operations.

The Group does not have any other income or expense that is not included in the above statement therefcre “Total comprehensive
income” is also the profit for the year.

All income is attributable to the shareholders of the parent company.

The notes from pages 73 to 97 formn part of these Finandal Statements.
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Group and Company Statement of Changes in Equity

GROUP
For the year ended 31 March 2621 Notes share Share Capital Retained
Capital Premium  Redemption Earnings
Ordinary Account Reserve Ordinary
£/000 £000 £000 £000
At 31 March 2020 79,338 43,162 43,971 969,982 1,136,453
Total comprehensive income - - - 234,409 234,409
Dividends paid 7 - - - {44,429) (44,429)
At 31 March 2021 79,338 43,162 43,971 1,159,962 1,326,433
COMPANY
For the year ended 31 March 2021 Notes Share Share Capital Retained
Capital Premium  Redemption Earnings
Ordinary Account Reserve Ordinary
£000 £'000 £000 £000
At 31 March 2020 79,338 43,162 43,971 969,982 1,136,453
Total comprehensive income - - - 234,409 234,409
Dividends paid 17 - - - (44,429) (44,429)
At 31 March 2021 7 79,338 43,162 43,971 1,159,962 1,326,433
GROUP
For the year ended 31 March 2020 Notes Share Share Capital Retained
Capital Premium Redemption Earnings
ordinary Account Reserve Ordinary Total
£000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000
At 31 March 2019 79,338 43162 43,97 1,161,783 1,328,254
Total comprehensive income - - - {148,007) (148,007)
Dividends paid 17 - - - {43,794) (43,794)
At 31 March 2020 79,338 43,162 43,971 969,982 1,136,453
COMPANY
for the year ended 3t March 2020 Notes Share Share Capital Retained
Capital Prefmium Redemption Earnings
Ordinary Account Reserve Ordinary Total
£000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 31 March 2019 79338 43162 43,97 1,161,783 1,328,254
Tota! comprehensive income - - - {148,007) (148,007)
Dividends paid 17 - - - (43,794) {43,794)
At 31 march 2020 79338 43,162 43,91 969,982 1,136,453

The notes from pages 73 to 97 form part of these Financial Statements,
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Group and Company Balance Sheets

as at 31 March 2021

Notes Company Group Company
piirql 2020 2020
£000 £000 £000
Non-cuirent assefs
Investments held at fair value 10 1,400,516 1,400,516 1,155,295 1,155,295
Investments in subsidiaries 10 - 43,312 - 50,429
1,400,516 1,443,828 1,155,295 1,205,724
Deferred taxalion asset 12 686 686 - -
T ' 1,401,202 1,444,514 1,155,295 1,205,724
Current assets
Debtors 12 60,990 60,520 60,094 59972
Cash and tash equivalents 29114 29,112 40,129 40,127
90,104 89,632 100,223 100,099
Current liabilities 13 (107,280) (150,120) (59.711) (110,016)
Net current (liabilities)/assets - (17176) (60,488) 40,512 (8917)
Total assets less current liabilities 1,384,026 1,384,026 1,195,807 1,195,807
Non-current liabilities 13 {57,593) (57,593) (59,354) (59,354)
Net assets o 1,326,433 1326,433 1,136,453 1136,453
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 14 79,338 79,338 79338 79,338
Share premium account 15 43,162 43,162 43,162 43,162
Capital redemption reserve 15 43,97 43,971 43,97 43,97
Retained earnings 16 1,159,962 1,159,962 969,982 969,982
Equity shareholders’ funds 1,326,433 1,326,433 1,136,453 1,136,453
Net Assetf Value per:
Ordinary share 19 A17.97p 117.97p 358.11p 358.11p

These financial statements were approved by the directors of TR Property investment Trust plc (Company No:84492} and autharised for

issue on 3 June 2021.

D Watson
Director

The notes from pages 73 to 97 form part of these Finangial Statements.
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Group and Company Cash Flow Statements

for the year ended 31 March 2021

Company Group Company
2021 2020 2020
£'000 £000 £000
Recondiliation of profit/(loss) from operations before
tax 1o net cash outflow from opersting activities
Profit/(loss) from operations before tax 232,509 231,844 (145,244) (145,244)
Finance costs 2,385 2,385 3,257 3,257
(Gains)/losses on investments and derivatives held at fair
value through profit or loss {214,372) (207,255) 198,698 198,711
Net movernent on foreign exchange; cash and cash
equivalents and loan notes {179) (179) 859 859
(Increase)/decrease in accrued income {102) (102) 584 584
Sales of investments 353,167 353,167 316,841 316,841
Purchases of investments (370,496) {370,496) (383,67) (383,674)
Decrease/(increase) in sales setflement debtor 4,753 4,753 (1,217) (1,417}
(Decrease)/increase in purchase settlement creditor (5,781) (5,781) 4,501 4,501
{Increase}/decrease in other debtors (11,436) {(11,436) 4,447 4,447
Increasef(decrease) in other ereditors 2,451 (4,001) 2,047 2,034
Saip dividends included in investment income and net
returns on contracts for difference (8,489) {8,489) {3,818) (3.818)
Net cash outflow from operating activities before S o
interest and taxation {15,590) (15,590) (2,919) {2,919)
Interest paid {2,607) (2,607) (3.421) {3.421)
Taxation paid (1,915) (915 @32y @37
Net cash outflow from operating activities ' ﬂizo;nz) (20,12) (8.661) (8,661)
Financing activities
Equity dividends paid (a4,429) (44,429) (43.794) (43,794)
Drawdown of loans 55,000 55,000 40,000 40,000
Net cash from/{used in) fin‘aﬂfing activities 10,571 10,571 (3,754) (3,794)
Decrease in cash (9,541) (9,547) (12,455) (12,455)
Cash and cash equivalents at start of year 40,129 40,127 52,282 52,280
Net movement on foreign exchange; ash and cash
equivalents C(vama) (1,474) 302 302
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 29,114 29,112 40,129 40,127
Nofe
Dividends received 38,224 38,224 52,003 52,003
Interest received a5 45 37 37

The notes irom pages 73 to 97 form part of these Financiat Statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 have been prepared on a going concern basis, in accordance with
International Financia! Reporting Standards (IFRSs) adopted pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002 as it applies in the European
Union and in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. The financial statements have also been prepared in
accordance with the Statement of Recornmended Practice {SORP), “Financial Statements of Investment Trust Cornpanies and Venture
Capital Trusts,” to the extent that i is consistent with tFRS.

In assessing Going Concern the Board has made a detailed assessment of the ability of the Company and the Group to meet

its liabilities as they fall due, including stress and liquidity tests which considered the effects of substantial falls in investrment
valuations, substantial reductions in revenues received and reductions in market liquidity including the effects and potential eifects
of the current and likely ongoing economic impact caused by the Coronavirus pandemic. The Board is satisfied with the operational
tesilience of service providers despite COVID-19 and continues to monitor their performance throughout the pandemic.

In light of the testing camied out, the liquidity of the level 1 assets held by the Company and the significant net asset value position,
and despite the net current liability position of the Group and Parent Company (which could be mitigated by the sale of liquid fevel 1
investments), the Directors are satisfied that the Corpany and Group have adequate financial resources to contirue in operation

for at feast the next 12 months following the signing of the financial statements and therefare it is appropriate to adopt the going
concern basis of actounting.

The Group and Company financial statements are expressed in Slerting, which is their functional and presentational currency.
Sterling is the functional currency because it is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Group operates.
Values are rounded to the nearest thousand pounds (£'000) except where otherwise indicated.
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Key estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements necessarily requires the exercise of judgement, both in application of accounting
policies, which are set out below, and in the selection of assumptions used in the calculation of estimates. These estimates and
judgements are reviewed on an angoing basis and aie continually evaluated based on historical experience and other factors.
However, actual results may differ from these estimates. The only key estimate is considered to be the valuation of investment
properties. See section (f) of this note. There are not considered to be any key judgements.

a) Basis of consolidation
The Group financial statements consolidate the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries to 31 March 2021. All the
subsidiaries of the Company have been consolidated in these financial statements.

In accordance with IFRS10 the Company has been designated as an investment entity on the basis that:
- it obtains funds from investors and provides thase investars with investiment management services;

- it commits 10 its investars that its business purpose is to invest solely for returns from capital appreciation and investment
income; and

+ [t measures and evaluates perfermance of substantially ali of its investments on a far value basis.

Each of the subsidiaries of the Company was established for the scle purpose of operating or supporting the invesiment operations of
the Company {including raising additiona financing), and is not itself an investment entity. {FRS 10 sets out that in the case of contiolted
entities that support the investment activity of the investment entity, those entities sheuld be consolidated rather than presented as
investments at fair value. Accordingly the Company has consolidated the resuits and financial positions of those subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of their acquisition, being the date on which the Company abtains control, and continue
to be consatidated until the date that such controt ceases. The finandial statements of subsidiaries used in the preparation of the
censolidated financial statements are based on consistent accounting policies. All intra-group balances and transactions, including
unrealised profits arising therefrom, are eliminated. This is consistent with the presentation in previous years.

b) Income
Dividends receivable on equity shares are lreated as revenue for the year an an ex-dividend basis. Where no ex-dividend date is
available, dividends receivabie on or before the year end are treated as revenue for the year. Provision is made for any dividends
not expected to be received. Where the Group has elected to receive these dividends in the form of additional shares rather
than cash the amount of cash dividend foregone is recognised as income. Differences between the value of shares received and
the cash dividend foregone are recognised in the capital returns of the Group Statement of Comprehensive (ncome. The fixed
retums on debt securities are recognised or: a time apportionment basis so as to refiect the effective yield on each such security.
interest receivable from cash and short term deposits is accrued to the end of the year. Stock lending income is recognised on
an accruals basis. Underwriting commission is taken to revenue, unless any shares underwritten are required to be taken up, in
which case the proparticnate commission received is deducted from the cast of the investment.

Recognition of property rental inceme is set oul in section {f) of this note.

Recognition of income from contracts of difference is set out in section (g) of this note.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

9

Expenses

All expenses and finance costs are accounted for on an accruals basis. An analysis of retained earnings broken down into
revenue and capital items is given in note 16. In arriving at this breakdown, expenses have been presented as revenue items
except as follows:

- Expenses which are incidental to the acquisition or dispasal of an investment;

- Expenses are presented as capital where a connection with the maintenance or enhancement of the value of the
investments can be demonstrated, this includes irrecoverable VAT incurfed an costs relating to the extensicn of residential
feases as premiums received for extending or terminating ieases are recognised in the capital account;

= One quarter of the base management fee is charged to revenue, with three quarters allocated to capitat return to reflect the
Board's expectations of long term investment returns. All performance fees are charged to capital return;

 The tund administration, depositaty, custody and company secretarial services are charged directly to the Company and
are included within ‘Other administrative expenses’ in note 6. These expenses are charged on the same basis as the base
management fee; cne guarter to income and three quarters to capital.

d) Finance costs

The finance cost in respect of capital instruments other than equity shares is calculated so as to give a constant rate of return on
the cutstanding balance. One quarter of the finance cost is charged to revenue and three quarters to capital return.

¢) Taxation

f)

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation guthorities,
based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Income tax is charged or credited directly to equity if it relates to items that are credited or charged to equity. Otherwise income
tax is recegnised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Inceme.

The tax effect of different itemns of expenditure is allocated between capital and reverue using the Group’s effective rate of
tax for the year. The charge for taxation is based on the profit for the year and takes into account taxation deferred because of
tempaorary differences between the treatment of certain items for taxation and accounting purposes.

In accordance with the recommendations of the SORP the aliocation method used to calculate tax selief on expenses presented
against capital returns in the supplementary information in the Statement of Comprehensive income is the “maiginal basis”.
under this basis, if laxable income is capable of being offset entirely by expenses piesented in the revenue teturn column of the
Statement of Comprehensive Income, then no tax relief is transferied to the capital coiumn.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the Balance Sheet and the carresponding tax bases used in the computaticn of taxable profit, and is accounted

for using the balance sheet liability method. Delerred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable tempaorary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probabie that taxabte profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.

The Company is an investment trust under s.1158 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 and, as such, is not liable for tax or capital
gains. Capital gains arising in subsidiary companies are subject to capital gains tax.

Investment property

Investment property is measured initially at cost including transaction costs. Transaction costs include transier taxes, professional
fees for legal services and initial leasing commissigns to bring the property to the condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating. The carrying amount also includes the cost of replacing part of an existing investment property at the time that

cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met. The purchase and sale of properties is recognised to be effected on the date
unconditional contracts are exchanged.

Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is stated at fair value. Gains or losses arising fiem changes in the fair
values are included in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income 1n the year in which they arise.

tnvestrnent property is derecognised when it has been disposed of or permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic
benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of investment property are recognised in
the Group Statement of Comprehensive income in the year of disposal.

Gains or losses on the disposal of investment property are determined as the difference between net disposal proceeds and the
carrying value of the asset at the date of disposal.

Revaluation of investment properties

The Group carries its investment properties at fair value in accordance with (FRS 13, revalued twice a year, with changes in fair
values being recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive incorme. The Group engaged Knight Frank LLP as independent
valuation specialists ta determine fair value as at 31 March 2021.
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1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Valuations of investment properties
Determination of the fair value of investment properties has been prepared on the basis defined by the RICS valuation - Global
Standards (The Red Book Global Standards) as follows:

“The estimated amount for which a property should exchange on the date of valuation between a willing buyer and a willing
selter in an arm's length transaction after proper marketing wherein the parties had each acted knowtedgeably, prudently and
without compulsion.”

The valuation takes into account future cash flow from assets (such as lettings, tenants’ profiles, future revenue streams, capital values of
fixtures and fittings, piant and machinery, any environmental matters and the overall repair and condition of the property) and discount
rates applicable to those assets. These assumptions are based on local market conditions existing al the balance sheet date.

In arriving at their estimates of fair values as at 31 March 2027, the valuers have used their market knowledge and professional
judgement and have not only retied solely on historical transactional comparabies. Examples of inputs to the valuation can be seen
in the sensitivity analysis disclosed in note 10 {g).

Rental income
Rental incorme receivable under operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease, except for
contingent rental income which is recognised when it arises.
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Incentives for lessees to enter into lease agreements or other negotiated rent free periods agreed are spread evenly over the
lease term, even if the payments are not made on suth a basis. The lease term is the non-cancellable period of the lease
together with any further term for which the tenant has the option to continue the lease, where, at the inception of the lease,
the directors are reasonably certain that the tenant will exercise that option. Premiumns received to terminate or extend leases
are recognised in the capital account of the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income when they arise.

Service charges and expenses recoverable from tenants

Income arising from expenses recharged to tenants is recognised in the period in which the expense can be contractually
recovered. Service charges and other such receipts are included gross of the related costs in revenue as the directors consider
that the Group acts as principal in this respect.

g) Investments
when a puichase or sale is made under contract, the terms of which require delivery within the timelrame of the relevant
market, the investments concerned are recagnised or derecognised on the trade date.

All the Group’s investments are defined under IFRS as investments designated as fair value through profit or loss but are also
described in these financial statemnents as investments held at fair value.

All investments are designated upon initial recognition as held at fair value, and are measured at subsequent reporting dates at
fair value, which, for quoted investments, is deemed to be closing prices for stocks sourced from European stock exchanges and
for SETS stocks sourced from the London Stock Exchange. SETS is the London Stock Exchange electionic trading service covering
most of the market including ali the FTSE All -Share and the most liquid AlM corstituents. Ungquoted investments of investments
for which there is only an inactive market are held at fair value which is based on valuations made by the directors in accordance
with IPEVCA quidelines and using current market prices, trading condilions and the general economic climate.

In its financial statements the Company recognises the fair value of its investments in subsidiaries as being the adjusted net
asset value. The subsidiaries have historically been holding vehicles for direct property investment or financing vehicles. No
assets are curmently heid through the subsidiary structure and all financing instruments are directly held by the Company.

Changes in the fair value are recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income. On disposal, realised gains and
losses are also recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Derivatives

Derivatives are held at fair value based on traded prices. Gains and losses on derivative transactions are recognised in the Group
Statement of Comprehensive Income. Gains and losses on CFDs and total return swaps resulting from movements in the price
of the underlying stock are treated as capital. Dividends from the underlying investiment and financing costs ¢f CFDs and total
return swaps are treated as revenue/capital expenses.

Gains and losses on farward cureency conteacts used for capital hedging purposes are treated as capital.
Contracts for Difference ("CFDs”) are synthetic equities and are valued by reference to the investments’ underlying market values.

The sources of the returns under the derivative contract (e.q. notional dividends, financing casts, interest seturns and capital
changes) are aflocated to the revenue and capital accounts in alignment with the nature of the underlying source of income and
in accordance with the guidance given in the AlC SORP Notional dividend income or expenses arising on iong or short positions
are apportioned wholly to the revenue account. Notional interest expense on long positions is appartioned between revenue
and capitat in accordance with the Board’s long term expected returns of the Company (currently determined to be 25% to the
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

revenue account and 75% to capital reserves). Changes in value relating to underlying price movements of securities in relation
to CFD exposures are allocated whaolly to capital reserves.

h) Borrowings, loan notes and debentures
All loans and debentures are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received, less issue costs where applicable.
After initial recognition, all interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Amortised cost is caleulated by taking into account any discount or premium on settlement. The costs of arranging any interest
bearing loans are capitalised and amortised over the #fe of the foan on an effective interest rate basis.

i) Foreign currency teanslation
Transactions involving foreign currencies are converted at the rate ruling at the date of the transaction.

Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated into Sterling at the rate ruling on the balance sheet date. Foreign
exchange differences are recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income.

j) cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are measured at amortised cost and comprise cash in hand and demand depasits.

k) Dividends payable to shareholders
interim dividends are recognised in the period in which they are paid and final dividends are recognised when approved by
sharehatders.

1) Adoption of new and revised Standards
Standards and Interpretations effective in the current period
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previcus consolidated financial staterments except as noted below.

IFRS 3 amendments. The amendments provided more guidance on the definition of a business to assist in determining
whether a transaction results in an asset or a business acquisition. The amendments have not had an impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Amendments to IFRS 9, tAS 39 and iFRS 7. The amendments provided temporary reliefs
which enable hedge accaunting ta continue dufing the periad ol uncertainty before the replacement of an existing interest
rate benchmark with an alternative risk free interest rate. The amendments have not had a material impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

Armendments 1o IAS 1 and IAS 8 - Definition of Material. The International Accounting Standards Board refined its definition of
“material” and issued practical guidance on applying the concept of materiality. The amendments have not had a material impact
on the Group’s financial statements.

The Conceptual Framework for Firancial Reporting. The Conceptual Frarmework is not a standard however its purpose is to outline
a set of concepts for financial reporting, standard setting, guidance for preparers in developing consistent accounting poficies
and assistance to others in understanding and interpreting the standards. The Framework has not had a material impact on the
Group’s financial statements.

Early adoption of standards and interpretations

The standards issued before the reporting date that become effective after 31 March 2021 are not expected to have a material
effect on equity or piofit for the subsequent period. The Group has not early adopted any new International Financial Reparting
Standarg or (nterpretation. Standards, amendments and interpretations issued but nat yet effective up to the date of issuance of
the Group's financiaf statements are listed below:

IAS 1 Amendments - Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current (effective date amended to 1 January 2023). The
amendments specify the requirements for classitying liabilities as current or non-current. The amendments are not expected to
have & material impact on the Group’s financial statements.

IAS 1 Amendments - Disclosure of Accounting Policies (effective 1 January 2023). The amendments require an entity to disclose
its material accounting policy information instead of its significant accounting policies. The amendments contain guidance and
examples on identifying material accounting policy information. The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on
the Group’s financial statements.

IAS 8 Amendments - Definition of Accounting Estimates (effective 1 january 2023} The amendments define accounting estimates
s ‘monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject 1o measurement uncertainty”. The amendments alsa clarify the
interaction between an accounting policy and an accounting estimate. The amendments are not expected to have a malerial
impact on the Group's financial statements.

IAS 16 Amendments - Proceeds before Intended Use (effective 1 January 2022) The amendments intend to clarify the accounting
for the net proceeds from selling any items produced while bringing an item of property, plant and equipment into use. The
amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

1AS 37 aAmendments - Onerous Contracts - Cost of fulfiling contract (effective 1 January 2022) The amendments clarity that for
the purpose of assessing whether a conlract is onerous, the cost of fulfilling the contract includes both the incremental costs
of fulfilling that contract and an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfiling contracts. The amendments are not
expected to have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements.

IAS 39, IFRS 4, 7 9 and 16 Amendments - interest Rate Benchmark Reform (Phase 2) (effective 1 January 2021} IBOR reform refers
to the global reform of interest rate benchmarks which includes the replacernent of some interbank offered rates {IBOR) with
alternative benchmark rates. To ensure users of financial statements can understand the effect of the reform on a company’s
financial instruments and risk management strateqy, additional inforrmatien on the nature and extent of risks to which the
company is exposed arising from financial instrurents subject ta IBOR reform is required. In addition, details of the company’s
progress in corpleting its transitions o alternative benchmark rates is required.

IAS 41, IFRS 1, 9 and 16 Amendments - Annual Improvements 2018-20 Cycle (effective 1 January 2022) The minor improvements,
none of which will have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements, to the standards noted were endarsed in
Septemnber 2020.

IFRS 3 Amendments - Reference to the Conceptual framework {effective 1 January 2022) The amendments require that for
transactions within the scape of 1AS 37 or IFRIC 27, an acquirer applies 1AS 37 or IFRIC 21 (instead of the Conceptual Framework)
to identify the liabilities it has assumed in a business cambination. In addition, IFRS 3 now contains a statement that an acguirer
does not recognise contingent assets acquired in a business combination. The amendments are not expected to have a material
impact on the Gioup’s financial statements.
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IFRS 4 Amendments - Extension of IFRS 9 Deferral (effective 1 January 2023} The option for companies whose business is the
issuance of insurance contracts, lo defer the effective date of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments has been extended. The amendment
is not expected to have an impact on the Group’s financial statements.

IFRS 16 Amendments - Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions (effective 1 Apiil 2021) the May 2020 amendments, which intreduced
an optional practical expedient that simplifies how a lessee accounts for rent concessions that are a direct consequence of
Covid-19, have been extended to lease payments originaliy due on or before 30 june 2022.

IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts {effective 1 January 2023) IFRS 17 replaces IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts and contains several areas that
are covered, including measurement of revenue, insurance performance, onerous contracts and disclosure. The standard is not
expected to have an impact on the Group's financial statements.

IFRS 17 amendments - Amendments to IFRS 17 (effective 1 January 2023) In june 2020, amendments to IFRS 17 weie issued
which are intended to make financial performance easier to explain and reduce compliance costs by simplifying some
requirements in the standard. The amendments are not expected te have an impact on the Groyp’s financial staternents.

2 INVESTMENT INCOME
2021 2020
£000 £'000

Bividends from UK listed investments 3,753 49M
Dividends from overseas listed investments 18,656 26,631
scrip dividends from listed investments 7,482 3,370
Property income distributions 6,666 12,200

36,557 47112

3 NET RENTAL INCOME

£'000 £000

Gross rental income 3,185 3,415
Service charge income 1,051 1,786
Direct property expenses, rent payable and service charge costs (1.327) (1,984)
o 2,915 3,217
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3 NET RENTAL INCOME continued

Operating leases

The Group has entered into commercial leases on its property portfolio. Commercial property leases typicaily have lease terms
between 5 and 15 years and inciude clauses to enable periodic upward revision of the rental charge according to prevailing market

conditions. Some feases contain opticns to break hefore the end of the lease term.

Future minimum rentals under non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 March are as follows:

2021 2020
£000 £000
Within 1 year 3,000 2,950
After 1 year but not more than 5 years 10,000 10,100
More than 5 years 19,000 15,500
32,000 28,550

OTHER OPERATING INCOME
2021 2020
£'000 £000
Interest receivable 1 32
Interest on refund of overseas withholding tax a4 3
Underwriting commission 22 -
67 35

Underwriting is part of the process of introducing new securities to the market. The Company may participate in the underwriting of
investee comparies’ securities, as one of a number of participants, for which compensation in the form of commission is received. fhe
Company only participates in underwriting having assessed the risks involved and in securities in which it is prepared to increase its
holding sheuld that be the outcorne. The commission earmed is taken to revenue unless any securities underwritten are required to

be taken up in which case the proportionate commission is deducted from the cost of the investment. During the year the Company
participated in one (2020: nil) underwriting and aft cormission earned was taken to revenue and shown under Other operating income.

MANAGEMENT AND PERFORMANCE FEES

2021 2021 2021 2020 2020 2020
Revenue Capital Total Revenue Capital Total

Return Return Return Return
£'000 £000 £000 £°000 £000 £'000
Management fee 1,556 4,669 6,225 1,570 4,709 6,279
Performance fee - 9,659 9,659 - 2,683 2,683
1,556 14,328 15,884 1,570 7392 8,962

A summary of the terms of the management agreement is given in the Repoit of the Directors on page 41.
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6 OTHER ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

0 2020
£°000 £°000

Directors' fees (Directors' Remuneration Report on pages 55 1o 57) P73 209
Auditor's remuneration:

- for audit of the consolidated and parent company financial statements 80 80
Legal fees 15 n
Taxation fees 69 103
Other administrative expenses 199 199
Other expenses 454 562
trrecoverable VAT 182 214
Expenses charged to Revenue 1,231 - 1,398

Expenses charged to Capital 604 615 B

- 1,835 2,013 2

g 2

Cther administrative expenses include depositary, custody and company secretarial services, These expenses are charged on the
same basis as the base management fee; one quarter ta income and thiee quarters to capitatl. Total other administrative expenses
charged to both income and capital are £797,000 (2020: £796,000}).

Other expenses include broker fees, marketing and PR costs, Directors’ Nationat inswiance and recsuitment, Registrars and
listing fees, and annual report and ather pubiication printing and distribution costs. These expenses are charged solely to the
revenue account.

VAT on costs incurred in connection with the extension of the residential leases or The Colonnades are charged to the capital account.

7 FINANCE COSTS

£000 £000
Bank loans and overdrafts repayable within 1 year 1,241 1,866
Loan notes repayable after 5 years 1,384 1391
HMRC interest: release of Fit GLO provision (240) -
2,385 3,257
Amcunt allocated to capital return (1,969) (2,443)
Amount allocated to revenue return 416 814
8 TAXATION
a) Analysis of charge in the year
201 20 2020 2020 2020
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total
Return Return Return Return
£'000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000
UK corporation tax at 19% (2020: 19%) 1,989 (1,989) - 3,362 (3.149) 13
Overseas taxation 866 8 874 2,606 - 2,606
2,855 (1,981) 874 5,968 (3,149) 2,819
(Over)/under provision in respect of prior
years {1,980) - (1.980) (406) - (406)
875 (1,981) (1,706) 5,562 (3,149) 2,413
Deferred taxation (108) (686) (794) 350 - 350
Current tax charge for the year 767 (2,667) {1,900) 5912 (3.149) 2,763
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8 TAXATION continued

b) Factors atfecting total tax charge for the year
The tax assessed far the year is lower (2020: fower) than the standard rate af corporation tax in the UK for a farge company of 9%

{2020: 19%).

The difference is explained below:

2021 2021 2021 2020 2020 2020
Revenye Capital Total Revenue Capital Total
Return Return Return Retyrn
£'000 £000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000
Net profit/{loss) on ordinary activities
before taxation 39,656 192,853 232,509 52,306 {197.550) (145,244)
Corporation tax charge at 19% {2020:19%) 7,535 36,642 44,177 9938 (37.535) {27,597)
Effects of:
Non taxable gains on investments - {37.351) (37,351} - 29,187 29,187
Currency movements not taxable - 877 877 - (2,209) {2,204)
Tax relief on expenses charged to capital - 13% 139 - (1,038) {1,038)
Non-taxabie returns (23) (3.380) (3,403) - 8,566 8,566
Non-taxable UK dividends (972) - (972) (1,043) - (1,043)
Nan-taxable ovesseas dividends (4,573) - {4,573) {5,540) - {5,540)
Overseas withholding faxes 866 8 874 2,606 - 2,606
Deferred tax prior year adjustment (108) (686) (794) - - -
{Over)/undet provision in respect of prior
years (1,980) - {1,980) {406) 5 {407)
Disaliowable expenses 19 - 19 69 (43) 26
Deferred tax not provided 3 1,084 1,087 288 {87) 201
767 (2,667) (1,900) 5912 (3,149) 2,763

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets of £2,703,000 {2020: £nil) arising as a result of losses carmed forward.

It is considered too uncertain that the Group wilt generate profits in the relevant companies that the losses would be available to
offset against and, on this basis, the deferred tax asset in respect of these expenses has not been recognised.

Due ta the Company's status as an Investrment Trust, and the intention to continue meeting the conditions required to oblain
approval for the foreseeable future, the Company has not provided deferred tax on any capital gains arising on the revaluation or

dispasal of investments.

<) Provision for deferred taxation
The amounts for deferred taxation provided at 19% (2020: 19%) comprise:

Group

2021 2021 2020 2020 2020
Revenue Capital Total Revenue Capital Total

Return Return Retutn Return
£000 £000 £000 £000 £'600
Accelerated capital allowances - - - 108 - 108
Unutilised losses carried forward - (686) {686) - - -

Shown as:

Deferred tax {asset)/liabitity - {686) (686) 108 - 108
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8 TAXATION continued
¢) Provision for deferred taxation continued

Company
piiral 2021 2020 2020 2020
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total
Return Return Return Return
£°000 £'000 £000 £000 £000
Accelerated capital allowances - - - 108 - 108
Unutilised losses carried torword - (686) (686) - - -
Shown as:
Deferred tax (asset)/liability - (686) (686) 108 - 108
The movement in provision in the year is as follows:
Group e
201 2020 2020 2020 e
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total Z2
Return Return Return Return =z
£'000 £000 £000 £000 £000 -
Provision at the start of the year 108 - 108 107 (350) {243)
Accelerated capital allowances {108) - (108) 1 350 351
Unutilised losses carried forward - (686) {686) - - -
Provision at the end of the year - {686) {686) 108 - 108
Company
2021 2021 2020 2020 2020
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total
Return Return Return Return
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Provision at the start of the year 108 - 108 107 (350) (243)
Accelerated capital allowances (108) - (108) 1 350 351
Unutilised losses catried forward - (686) (686) - - -
Provision at the end of the year - {686) (686) 108 - 108

9 EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
Earnings/(loss) per Ordinary share
The earnings/(loss) per Ordinary share can be analysed between revenue and capital, as below.

Year ended Year ended

31 march 2021 31 Mmarch 2020

£000 £000

Net revenue profit 38,889 46,394
Net capital profit/(loss) 195,520 {194,401)
et total profit/(loss) 234,409 (148,007)
Weighted average number of shares in issue during the year 317,350,980 317,350,980
Revenue eafnings per share 12.25 14.62
Capital earnings/{loss) per shase 61.61 {61.26)
Earnings/(loss) per Ordinary share 73.86 {46.64)

The Group has no securities in issue that could dilute the return per Ordinary share. Therefore the basic and diluted return per

Ordinary share are the same.
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Notes to the Financial Slatements continued

10 INVESTMENTS HELD AT FAIR VALUE

{ompany Group Company
2021 2021 2020 2020
£000 £000 £000
Listed in the United Kingdom 394,176 394,176 351,506 351,506
Unlisted in the United Kingdom 1,468 1,468 682 682
Listed Overseas 921,801 921,801 708,597 708,597
Investment properties 83,071 83,07 94,510 94,510
Investments held at fair value 1,400,516 1,400,516 1,155,295 1,155,295
Investments in subsidiaries at fair value - 43,312 - 50,429
1,400,516 1,443,828 1,155,295 1,205,724

b) Business segment reporting
Gross Gross
valuation Net i@ Valuation revenue revenue
31 march  additions/ appreciation/ JEEIRLEIIG] 31 March 31 March
2020 (disposals)  (depreciation) 2021 2021 2020
£000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000 £000
Listed investments 1,060,103 58,477 197397 1,315,977 36,403 46,964
Unlisted investments 682 - 786 1,468 154 148
Contracts for difference 8,698 (26,817) 17978 (141) 3,320 5,724
Total return swap (3.808) 3,996 (138) - - -
Total investments segment 1,065,675 35,656 2‘!5,973 1,317,304 39,877 52,836
Direct property segment 94,510 (9,838) {1,601) 83,011 4,236 5,201
1,160,185 25,818 214372 1,400,375 44,113 58,037

In seeking to achieve its investment objective, the Company invests in the shares and securities of property companies and property
related businesses internaticnally and also in investrrent property located in the UK. The Cornpany therefore considers that there
are two distinct repofting segments, investments and direct property, which are used for evaluating performance and allacation of
resources. The Boaed, which is the principal decision maker, receives infarmation on the two segments on a reqular basis. Whilst
revenue streams and direct property costs can be attributed to the reporting segments, general administrative expenses cannot be
split ta allow a profit for each segment to be determined. The assets and gross revenues for each segment are shawn above.

The property costs included within note 3 are £1,321,000 (2020: £1,984,000) and deducting these costs from the direct property
gross revenue above would result in net income of £2,915,060 (2020: £3,217000) for the direct property reporting segment.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST



10 INVESTMENTS HELD AT FAIR VALUE continued
¢) Geographical segment reporting

Gross Gross

Valuation Net Net IREITELLY revenue revenue

3t March  additions/ appreciation/ [EEFLEI)] 31 March 31 March

2020  {disposals)  (depreciation) 2021 plival 2020

£000 £000 £'000 £000 £000 £000

UK listed equities and convertibles 351,506 (30,616) 73,286 394,176 10,265 16,963

UK unlisted eyuities 682 - 786 1,468 154 148

UK direct property’ 94,510 {9.838) (1,601) 83,07 4,236 5,201

Continenta| European listed equities 708,597 89,093 124, M 921,801 26,138 30,001

1,155,295 48,639 196,582 1,400,516 40,793 52,313

UK contracts for ditference? 501 {13,108) 8,621 584 1,242 2,74
European contracts for difference? 3,627 {13,709) 9,357 (725) 2,078 3,010 a2
S b
UK totaf return swap® {3,808) 3,996 {188) - - - £2
1,160,185 25818 214,372 1,400,375 44113 58,037 E b

included in the above figures are purchase costs of £741,060 (2020: £460,000) and sales costs of £184,000 (2020: £199.000).

These comprise mainly stamp duty and commission.

The Company received £329,018,000 (2020: £367,977,000) from investments, including direct property, sold in the year. The book cost
of these investments when they were purchased was £266,450,000 (2020: £317,581,000). These investments have been revalued
over time and untif they wete sold any unrealised gains/losses were included in the fair value of the investments.

' Net additions/(disposais) includes £465,000 (2020: £981,000) of capital expenditure. Nel appreciation/(depreciation) incudes
amounts in respect of rent free periods.

2 Gross revenue for contracts for difference relates to dividends receivable, on an ex dividend basis, on the underlying paositions
held. The appreciation/(depreciation) in CFDs relates to the movement in fair value in the year.

i The depreciation in the TRS relates to the movement ir: fair value in the year until maturity.

d) substantial share interests
The Group held interests in 3% or more of any diass of capital in 10 companies (2020: 8 companies) in which it invests. None
of these investments is censidered significant in the context of these financial staternents. See note 21 on pages 96 and 97 for
further details of subsidiary investments.

€) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
financial assets and financial liabilities are carried in the Balance Sheet either at their fair value (investments) or the balance
sheet amount is 2 reasonabie approximation of fair value (due from brokers, dividends and interest receivable, due to brokers,
accruats and cash at bank).

Fair value hierarchy disclosures
Categorisation within the hierarchy has been determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement of the relevant asset as foliows:

Level 1 - valued using quoted prices in an active market for identical assets.

Level 2 - valued by reference to valuation techniques using abservable inputs other than quoted prices within Level 1.
Level 3 - valued by reference ta valuation technigues using inputs that are not based on observable market data.

The valuation techniques used by the Group are explained in the accounting policies in notes 1 (fy and 1 (g).
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10 INVESTMENTS HELD AT FAIR VALUE continued

) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities continued
The table below sets out fair value measurements using IFRS 13 fair value hierarchy.

Financial assets/(liabilities) at fair value through profit or loss

At 31 March 20 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£'000 £000 £°000 £000

Eguity investments 1,315,977 - 1,468 1,317,445
Investment properties - - 83,071 83,07
Contracts for difference - (141) - (141)
Foreign exchange forward contracts - {1,107) - (1,107)
1,315,977 (1,248) 84,539 1,399,268

At 31 March 2020 Llevel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£000 £000 £'000 £000

Equity investments 1,060,103 - 682 1,060,785
Investment properties - - 94,510 94,51G
Contracts for difference - 8,698 - 8,698
Total retusn swap - (3.808) - (3.808)
Foreign exchange forward contracts - {5.609) - (5.609)
1060103 (719) 95,192 1,154,576

The table above represents the Group’s faif value hierarchy. The Company’s fair value hierarchy is identical except for the inclusion
of the fair value of the investment i Subsidiaries which at 31 March 2021 was £43,312,000 {2020 £50,429,000). These have been
categorised as level 3 in both years. The movement in the year of £7,117000 (2020: £13,000) is the change in fair value in the year,
which includes a distribution from a subsidiary company of £6,435,000 and the release of a corperation tax provision of £348,000
in a subsidiary company. The total financial assets at fair value for the Company at 31 March 2027 was £1,443,828,000 (2020:
£1,214,422,000).

Reconciliation of movements in financial assets categorised as level 3

At 31 March 2011 31 March Appreciation /BEECEIL)]
2020 Purchases sales (Depteciation)
£000 £000 £000 £000

Unlisted equity investments 682 - - 786 1,468
Investment properties

- Mixed use 52,623 35 (303) (4,658) 47,977

- Office & Industrial 41,387 150 {10,000) 3,057 35,094

94,510 465 {10,303) (1,601) 83,071

N 95,192 465 {10,303) {815) 84,539

Ali appreciation/(depreciation) as stated above relates to movements in fair value of unlisted equity investments and investment
properties held at 31 March 2021.

The Group held ene unquoted investment at the year end (see 11.6 overleaf).

Transfers between hierarchy levels
There were no transfers during the year between any of the levels.
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10 INVESTMENTS HELD AT FAIR VALUE continued

Sensitivity information for Investment Property Valuations
The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement categorised within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy of
investment properties are:

@ Estimated rental value: £6.5 - £65 per sq ft (2020: £6.5- £65)
@ Capitalisation rates: 2.0% - 6.0% (2020: 2.0% - 6.0%)

Significant increases (decreases) in estimated rental value and rent grawth in isolation would result in 3 significantly higher {lower)
fair value measurement. A significant increase (decrease) in long-term vacancy rate in isolation would result in a significantly lower
{higher) fair value measurement.

There are interrelationships between the yields and rental values as they are partially determined by market rate condition, The
sensitivity of the valuation to changes in the most significant inputs per class of investment property are shown below:

Estimated movement in fair value of investment properties at Office & -
31 March 2021 arising from Retail  Industrial EZ
£°000 £000 ZZ
2=
=
Increase in rental value by 5% 310 1,585 50 1,945 v
Decrease in rental value by 5% (250) (1,610) (25) (1,885)
Increase in yield by 0.5% (4,040) (5.835) (925) {10,800)
Decrease in yield by 0.5% 5,155 9,505 1,325 15,985
Estimated movement in fair value of investment properties at Office &
31 March 2020 arising from Retait Industrial Other Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
increase in rental value by 5% 1,300 1,780 - 3,080
Decrease in rental value by 5% (1,225} (1,720) - (2,945)
increase in yield by 0.5% (5.025) (6,005) {950) (11,980)
Decrease in yield by 0.5% 6,750 9,355 1,365 17,470

11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Risk management policies and procedures

The Group invests in equities and other instruments for the fong term in the pursuit of the Investment Objectives set qut on
page 24. The Group is exposed to a variety of risks that could result in either a reduction or an increase in the prafits available for
distribution by way of dividends.

The principal risks the Group faces ir its portfolio management activities are:
® Market risk {comprising price risk, currency risk and interest rate risk}

& Liguidity risk

& Credit risk

The Manager’s policies and pracesses for managing these risks are summarised on page 25 and have been applied throughout the
year.
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11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

1.1 Market price risk
By the very nature of its activities, the Group’s investments are exposed to market price fluctuations.

Management of the risk
The Manager runs a diversified portfolio and reports to the 8oard on the portfolio activity and performance at each Board meeting.
The Board monitors the investment activity and strategy 10 ensure it is compatible with the stated objectives.

the Group's exposure 1o changes in market prices on its quoted equity investments, CFDs and investment property portfolio, was as

foliows:
2001 2020
£000 £000
Investments held at fair value 1,400,516 1,155,295
CFD long gross exposure 146,001 56,728
TRS long gross exposure - 6,598

Concentration of exposure to price risks

As set out in the Investment Policies on page 25, there are guidelines to the amount of exposure to a single company, geographical
region or direct property. These guidelines ensure an appropriate spread of expasure to individual or sector price risks. As an
investment company dedicated to investment in the property sector, the Group is exposed to price movements acrass the property
asset class as a whole.

Price risk sensitivity

The following tabie illustrates the sensitivity of the profit after taxation for the year and the value of shareholders’ funds to an
increase or decrease of 15% i the fair values of the Group’s equity, fixed interest, CFD and direct property investments. The Jevel of
change is cansistent with the illustration shown in the previous year. The sensitivity is based on the Group's equity, fixed interest,
{FD and direct property exposure at each balance sheet date, with all other vasiables held constant.

Fliral 201 2020 2020
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
in fair in fair in fair in fair
value value value value
£°000 £000 £0060 £000

Statement of Comprehensive Income - profit after tax

Revenue return (103) 103 (77 77
Capital return 209,801 (209,801} 173,817 (173,817)
Change to the profit after tax for the year/sharehalders® funds 209,698 (209,698) 173,740 {173,740)
Change to total earnings per Ordinary Share 66.08p (66.08)p 54.75p (54.75)p
11.2 Currency risk

A proportion of the Group's portfolio is invested in overseas securities and their Sterling value an be significantly affected by
movements in foreign exchange rates.

Management of the risk

the Board receives 3 report at each Board meeting on the proportion of the investment partfolio held in Sterling, Euros of other
currencies. The Group may sometimes hedge foreign currency movemnents outside the Eurozone by funding investments in averseas
securities with unsecured foans denominated in the same curiency or through farward currency contracts.

(ash depasits are held in Sterling and/or Euro denominated accounts.
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11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

Foreign currency exposure
At the reporting date the Group had the following exposure:
(Sterling has been shown for reference)

Sterling 28.0% 27.0%
Euio 51.0% 53.0%
Swedish Krona 13.0% N0%
Other 8.0% 9.0%

The following tabie sets out the Group's total exposure to foreign currency risk and the net exposure to foreign currencies of the net
monetary assets and liabilities:

Swedish v

sterling Krona EE:
20 £°000 £'000 E §
Receivables (due from brokers, dividends and other income receivable) 49,462 10,668 561 299 ’
Cash &1 bank and on deposit 22,853 4,339 650 1,272
Bank loans, loan notes and overdratts (95,000) - - -
Payables (due to brokers, accruals and other creditoss) (10,142) {1,031} - -
FX forwards (61,209) - 13,848 46,254
Total foreign (ufrency exposure on net monetary items o '(94,036) 13,976 15,059 47,81"?7
Investments held at fair value 478,715 707,968 155,635 58,198
Non-current assets 686 - - -
Non-current liabitities {15,000) (42,593) - -
Total cusrency exposure o 370,365 679,351 170,694 106,023

Swedish

Sterling Euro Krona Other
2020 £000 £000 £000 £'000
Reteivables {due from brokers, dividends and other income receivable) 31,552 27,495 634 413
Cash at bank and on deposit 25,602 1,922 962 1,643
Bank ioans, loan notes and overdrafts (40,000) - - -
Payables (due to biokers, accruals and other creditors) (8,025) (5,676} - -
FX forwards (133,731) 62,014 22,525 43,583
Total foreign currency exposuie on net monetary items (124,603} 95,355 2411 ) 45,639
Investments held at fair value 446,698 551,576 100,836 56,185
Non-cusrent assets {15,108} (44,246) - -
Total currency exposure o 306,987 602,685 124,957 101,824 -

Foreign currency sensitivity
The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the profit after tax for the year on the Group’s equity in regard to the exchange rates
for Sterling/Euro and Sterling/Swedish Krona and other currencies.

It assurnes the following changes in exchange rates:
@ Sterling/Euro +/- 15% (2020:15%)

@ Sterling/Swedish Krona +/- 15% (2020:15%)

@ Sterling/0ther +/- 15% (2020-15%)

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST 87



Notes to the Financial Statements continued

11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued \
Foreign currency sensitivity continued ‘
if Sterling had strengthened against the currencies shown, this would have had the following effect:

Year ended March 2021 Year ended March 2020

Swedish Swedish
Euro Krona Euro Krona Gther
£000 £°000 £000 £000 £000

Statement of Comprehensive income -

profit after tax

Revenue return {2,726) (589) {250) (3,016) (340) (99)
Capital return (83,243) {(20,269) (7,579) (7,091} (13,132) (7,317)
Change to the prafit after tax for the

year/shareholders’ funds (85,969} {20,858) {7,829) (74,107) {13,472} {7416}
Change to total earnings per Ordinary share (36.13)p (29.93)p

if sterling had weakened against the currencies shown, this would have the following effect:
Year ended March 2021 Year ended March 2020

Swedish Swedish
Euro Krona Euro Krona Other
£000 £000 £0060 £000 £000

Statement of Comprehensive Income -
profit after tax

Revenue return 3,411 732 318 497 423 13
Capital return 124,633 27,440 10,262 97,685 17,780 9,909
Change to the profit after 1ax for the

yeai/shaseholders’ funds 128,044 28,172 10,580 102,656 18,203 10,022
Change to total earnings per Ordinary share 52.56p 41.24p

11.3 Interest rate risk
interest rate movements may atfect:

& the fair value of any investments in fixed interesl secunties;

& the fair value of the loan notes;

@& the level of income receivable from cash at bank and on deposit;
& the level of interest expense on any variable rate bank loans; and
& the prices of the underlying securities held in the portfolios.

Management of the risk

The possible effects on fair value and cash flows that could arise as a result of changes in interest rates are taken iMo account when
making investrent decisions. Property companies usually have borrewings themselves and the level of gearing and structure of its
debt portfolio is a key factor when assessing the investment in a property company.

The Group has fixed and has had variable rate borrowings during the year. The interest rates on the loan notes is fixed, details are
set out in nate 13. in addition to the loan notes the Group has unsecured, multi-currency revolving loan facilities which carry variable
tates of interest based o the currencies drawn, plus @ margin. These facilities lotal £130,000,000 (2026 £110.000,000).
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11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

Management of the risk continued

The Manager considers both the level of debt on the balance sheel of the Group (i.e. the loan notes and any bank loans drawn)
and the “see-through” gearing, taking into account the assets and liabilities of the underlying investments, when considering the
investment portfolio. These gearing levels are reported requiarly to the Board.

The majority of the Group’s investment portfolio is nen-interest bearing. As a result the Group’s financial assets are not directly
subject to significant amounts of risk due to fluctuations in the prevatling levels of market interest rates.

Interest rate exposure
The exposure at 31 March of financial assets and financial liabilities to interest rate risk is shown by reference to:

@ floating interest rates: when the interest rate is due to be re-set;

® fixed interest rates: when the financiat instrument is due to be repaid.

The Group's exposure to floating interest rates on assets is £80,027,000 (2020: £79,651,000).
The Group’s exposure to fixed interest rates on liabilities is £152,593,000 (2020: £99,246,000).
The Group’s exposure to floating interest rates on liabilities is £nil (2020: £nif).

TVEDINY N1

Interest receivable and finance costs are at the following rates:

4
>
3
m
=
m
=
]
wn

& interest received on cash balances, or paid on bank overdrafts, is at a margin over LIBOR or its foreign currency equivalent
(2020: same).

@ Interest paid on borrowings under the multi-currency loan facilities, is at a margin over LIBOR of its foreign currency equivalent for
the type of loan (2020: same).

& The finance charges on the €50m and £15m loan notes are at inteiest rates of 1.92% and 3.59% respectively.

The year end amounts are not fepresentative of the exposure to interest rates during the year as the level of exposure changes
as investments are made in fixed interest securities, borrgwings are drawn down and repaid, and the mix of bofrowings between
ftoating and fixed interest rates changes.

Interest rate sensitivity
A change of 2% on interest rates at the reporting date would have had the foliowing direct impact:

2011 201 2020 2020

2% 2% 2% 2%

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

£000 £000 £000 £'000

Change to shareholders’ funds (1,176) 1,176 (317) 37
Change to total earnings per Ordinary share (0.37)p 0.37p (0.10)p 0.10p

This level of change is not representative of the year as a whote, since the exposure changes throughout the period.

This assessment does not take into account the impact of interest rate changes on the market value of the investments the
Group holds.

11.4 Liquidity risk
Unquoted investments in the portfolic are subject to liquidity risk. The Group held one unguoted investment at the year end (see
11.6 below).

In certain market conditiors, the liquidity of direct property investrnents may be reduced. At 31 March 2021, 6% (2020: 8%) of the
Group’s investment portfolio was held in direct property investments.

At 31 March 2021, 94% (2020: 92%) of the Group’s investment portfolio is held in listed securities which are predominantly
readily realisable.

Bank loan facilities are shart term revolving loans which it is intended are renewed or repfaced but renewal cannot be certain. Loan
notes of €50m and £15m are repayable in February 2026 and 2031 respectively.

The table shows the timing of cash outflows to settle the Group’s current liabilities together with anticipated interest costs.
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11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued
Debt and Financing maturity profile

Within Within Within Within Within Move than

1year 1-2years 2-3years 3-4years 4-5years 5 years

At 31 March 2021 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Bank loans" 95,000 - - - - - 95,000
Loan notes - - - - - 57,593 57,593

Projected intetest cash flows on

bank and loan notes 2,178 1,356 1,356 1,356 1,356 2,693 10,295
Accruals and deferred income 10,719 - - - - - 10,719
Other creditors 110 - - - - - 110
108,007 1,356 1,356 1,356 1,356 60,286 173,117

Within Wwithin Within Within within  More than
1year 1-2 years 2-3years  3-4years  4-5years 5 years Total
At 31 March 2020 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Bank loans 40,000 - - - - - 40,000
Loan notes - - - - - 59,246 59246

Projected interest cash flows on

bank and loan notes 1,388 1,388 1,388 1,388 1,388 4,081 1,021
Accruals and deferred income 3,812 - - - - - 3,812
Other creditors 204 - - - - _ 294
45,494 1,388 1,388 1,388 1,388 63,327 114,373

" A E60m multicutrency facility with RBS was renewed for one year in February 2021. £50m {2020: £10m} was drawn on this facility at the balance sheet date. A
£30m one year facility with ING Luxernbourg was renewed i July 2020 £30m (2020: £30m) was drawn on this facitity at the balance sheet date. A £40m lacility
was renewed with ICBC in Moverber 2020 £75m (2020 £nd) was drawn on this facility at the balance sheet date.

Management of the risk

The Manager sets guidelines for the maximum exposure of the portfalio to unquoted and direct property investments. These are set

out in the investrment Palicies on page 25. All unguoted investments with a value over £1m and direct property investments with a

value gver £5 million must be approved by the Board for purchase.

The Company maintains regular contact with the banks providing revolving facilities and renewal discussions commence well ahead
of facility renewal dates. In addition the Company is exploring new opportunities for the provision of debt on an ongoing basis.

1.5 Credit risk

The failure of a counterparty to a transaction to discharge its obligations under that transaction could result in the Group suffering
a loss. At the period end the largest counterparty risk, which the Group was exposed to was within Debtors and Cash and cash
equivalents where the tota| bank balances held with one counterparty was £53,134,000 (2020: £46,731,000 two counterparties).

Management of the risk

Investment transaclions are carred out with a number of brokers, whose credit standing is reviewed periodically by the Manager,
and limits are set on the amgunt that may be due from any one broker. Cash at bank is onfy held with banks with high quality
external credit ratings.

Credit risk exposure
In summary, compared to the amounts in the Balance Sheet, the maximum exposure to credit risk at 3t March was as follows:

201 2021 2020 2020

Balance  Maximum Balance Maximum

Sheet exposure Sheet exposuse

£000 £000 £000 £'000

Debtors 60,990 60,990 60,094 60,094
Cash and cash equivalents 29,114 29,114 40,129 40,129
90,104 90,104 160,223 160,223
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11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

Where the receivables of the Group are exposed to credit risk, the requirement for impairment is assessed at each year end. For
all receivables, in the table above, no impairment has been recognised in relation to expected credit Josses as the impact of these
losses is immaterial as at 31 March 2021 (31 March 2020: no impairment).

Offsetting disclosures

In order to better define its contractual rights and to secure rights that will help the Group mitigate its counterparty risk, the Group may
enter into an I1SDA Master Agreerment or simitar agreement with its OTC derivative contract counterparties. An ISDA Master Agreement
is an agreemnent between the Group and the counterparty that governs OTC derivatives and foreign exchange contracts and typically
contains, among other things, collateral posting terms and netling provisions ir: the event of & default and/or termination event. Under
an ISDA Master Agreement, the Group has a contractual ight to offset with the counterparty certain derivative financial instruments
payahles and/or receivahies with collateral held and/or posted and create one single net payment in the event of default including

the bankruptcy or insolvency of the counterparty. However, bankruptcy or insolvency laws of a particular jurisdiction may impose
restrictions on or prohibitions against the right of offset in bankruptcy, insalvency or other events.

the disclosures set out in the following tables include financial assets and financiat liabilities that are subject to an enforceable
master aetting arrangernent or simifar agreement.

At 31 March 2021 and 2020, the Group’s derivative assets and liabilities (by type and counterparty) are as follows:

IYIINYNIS

Year ended 2021 Year ended 2020

]
3
m
4
m
2
=
w

Net amounts Net amounts
of financial of financial
assets/ assets/
liabilities liabilities
presented in presented in
the Balance Cash collateral the Balance  Cash collateral
Sheet pledged Sheet pledged
£000 £'000 £°000 £000

CFD positions:

Goldman Sachs (141) 50,913 8,698 31,525
) (1) " 50,913 8,698 3,525
TRS position: i o

NG - - (3,808} 7,997
- - (3,808) 7,997

£X forward contracts: -
8ank of Mentreal - - (2,582) -
Barclays - - {(2,398) -
BNP Paribas - - (620) -
HSBC (1,107) - - -
Westpac - - {9) -
- (e - {5,609) -

11.6 Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

£xcept for the loan nates which are measured at amortised cost (refer to Note 13}, the fair values of the financial assets and
financial liabilities are either carried in the balance sheet at their fair value (investments) or the balance sheet ameunt is a
reasonable approximation of fair value (debtars, treditars, cash at bank and bank overdrafts, acauals and prepayments).

The fair vajues of the listed investments are derived from the closing price or last traded price at which the securities are quoted on
the London Stock Exchange and other recognised exchanges.

The fair vaiue of contracts for difference are based on the underlying listed investment value as set out above and the amount due
from or to the counterparty under the contract is recorded as an asset or liability accordingly, which is disclosed in Note 13 for the
current year.

The fair values of the propesties are derived from an open market (Red Book) valualion of the properties on the Balance Sheet date
by an independent firm of valuers (Knight frank).

There was one unquoted investment at the Balance Sheet date, Atrato, with a total vaiue of £1,468,000 (2020: Atrato, £682,000).
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11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued
(n the Parent Comnpany accounts there are investments of £43,312,000 in unlisted subsidiaries which are classified as level 3.

The amounts of cthange in fair value for investments including net returns on CFDs recognised in the consolidated profit of loss for
the year was a gain of £214,372,000 (2020: loss of £198,698,000).

11.7 Capital management policies and procedures
The Group’s capital management objectives are:

@ 10 ensure that it wili be able to continue as a going concern; and
@ (o maximise the total return to its equity shareholders through an appropriate balance of equity capital and debt.

The equity capital of the Group at 31 March 2021 consisted of called up share capital, share premium, capilal redemption
and revenue reserves totalling £1,326,433,000 (2020: £1,136,453,000). The Group does not regard the Joar notes and foans as
permanent capital.

The loan notes agreement requires compliance with a set of financial covenants, including:

@ Total Borrowings shall not exceed 33% of Adjusted Net Asset value;

@& the Adjusted Total Assets shall at all times be equivalent to a minimum of 300% of Total Borrowings; and
@ the Adjusted NAV shall not be less than £260,000,000.

12 DEBTORS

Company Group Company

2071 201 2020 2020
£000 £'000 £000

Amounts falling due within one year:
Securities and properties sold for future settlement 267 267 5,620 5,020
Tax recoverabie 4,231 3,761 1,414 1,292
Prepayments and accrued income® 5,176 5,176 5,082 5,082
Amounts receivable in respect of Contracts tor Bifference - - 8,698 8,698
CFD margin cash 50,913 50,913 31,525 31,525
TRS margin cash - - 7997 7997
Other debtoss 403 403 358 358

- o 60,990 60,520 60,094 59972

NoR-current assets
Deferred taxation asset 686 686 - -

"includes amounts in respect of rent free periods.
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13 CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Company Group Company
201 2020 2020
£000 £000 £'¢00

Amounts falling due within ene year:

Bank loans and overdrafts 95,000 95,000 40,000 40,000

Securities and properties purchased for future settlement 194 194 5975 5,975

Amounts due to subsidiaries - 42,880 - 50,342

Amounts payable in respect of Contracts for Difference 141 "M - -

Amounts payable in respect of Total Return Swap - - 3,808 3,808

Tax payable 9 9 213 213

Actruals and deferred income 10,719 10,685 3,812 3,783

Foreign exchange forwatd contracts for settlement 1,107 1,107 5,609 5.609 e

Other creditors 110 104 294 286 E g
107,280 150,120 59711 10,016 % =

&

Non-current liabilities:

1.92% Euro Loan Notes 2026 42,593 42,593 44,246 44,246
3.59% GBP Loan Notes 2031 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000
Deferred taxation - - 108 108

57,593 57,593 59,354 591354
Loan Notes

On the 10th February 2016, the Company issued 192% Unsecured Eurc 50,000,000 Loan Notes and 3.59% Unsecured GBP 15,000,000
Loan Notes which are due to be redeemed at par on the 10th February 2026 and 10th February 2031 respectively.

The fair value of the 1.92% Euro Loan Notes was £42,732,000 (2020: £44,418,000) and the 3.59% GBP Loan Notes was £15,219,000
(2020: £15,553,000) at 31 March 2021.

Using the IFRS 13 fair value hierarchy the Loan Naotes are deemed to be categorised within Level 2.

The loan notes agreement requires compliance with a set of financial covenants, including:

@ Total Borrowings shall not exceed 33% of Adjusted Net Asset Value;

® the Adjusted Total Assets shall at all times be equivalent to a minimurn of 360% of Total Borrowings; and
@ the Adjusted NAV shalf not be less than £26C,000,000.

The Company and Group complied with the terms of the loan notes agreement thicughout the year.

Multi-currency revolving loan facilities
The Group also had unsecured, multi-currency, frevolving short-term loan facilities totalting £130,000,000 {2620: £110,000,000) at
31 March 20217, At 31 March 2021 £95,000,000 was drawn on these facilities (2026: £40,000,000).

The maturity of these facilities is shown in nates 11.3 and 11.4.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

13 CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES continued
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

tong term  Short term

debt debt
Group and Company £'000 £°000
Opening liabilities from financing activities at 31 March 2020 59,246 40,000 99,246
Cash flows:
Drawdown of bank loans - 55,000 55,000
Movement an foreign exchange (1,653} - {1,653)
Clasing liabilities from financing activities at 31 March 2021 57,593 95,000 152,593

14 CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary share capital
The balance ciassified as Ordinary share capital includes the nominal value proceeds on the issue of the Ordinary equity share
capital comprising Ordinary shares of 25p.

issued, allotted
and fully paid

Number £'000
ordinary shares of 25p
Al 1 Aprit 2020 317,350,980 79,338
At 31 March 2021 317,350,980 79,338

The voting rights are disclosed in the Report of the Directors on page 43.
During the year, the Company made no market purchases for cancellation of Ordinary shares of 25p each (2020: none).
Since 31 March 2021 no Ordinary shares have been purchased and cancelled.

15 SHARE PREMIUM ACCOUNT AND CAPITAL REDEMPTION RESERVE

Share premium account
The balance classified as share premium inciudes the premium above nominal vaiue from the proceeds on issue of the equity share
capital comprising Ordinary shares ol 25p.

Capital redemption reserve
The capital redemption reserve is used 1o record the amount equivalent to the nominal value of purchases of the Company’s own
shares in order to maintain the Company’s capital.

16 RETAINED EARNINGS

Group Company Group Company

201 piiral 2020 2020

£000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Investment holding gains 335,322 360,663 206,072 238,531
Realised capital reserves 757,418 731,167 691,148 664,465
1,092,740 1,091,830 897,220 942,996

Revenue reserve 67,222 68,132 72,762 66,986
1,159,962 1,159,962 969,982 969,982

Group investment holding gains at 31 Maich 2021 include a £143,000 gain (2020: £643,000 loss) relating to unlisted investments and
gains of £45,201,000 (2020: £51,882,000 gains) relating to investment properties.

Company investment holding gains at 31 March 2021 include gains of £70,685,000 (2020: £83,697,000) relating to unlisted and
subsidiary investments with a £44,061,000 revaluation gain (2020: £50,742,000) relating to investment properties. Dividends are
only distributable from the revenue reserve.
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17 DIVIDENDS

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
201 2020

£000 £000

Amounis recognised as distributions to equity holders in the year:

Final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2020 of 8.80p 27,927 27,292
(2019: 8.60p) per Ordinary share

interin dividend [u the yeas ended 31 March 2021 of 5.20p
(2020: 5.20p) per Ordinary share _ 16,502 16,5602

44,429 43,794

Amounts not recognised as distributions 1o equity holders in the year:
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021 of 9.00p
(2020: 8.30p) per Ordinary share 28,562 27927

The final dividend has not been included as a liability in these financia! staternents in accordance with JAS 10 “Events after the
Balance Sheet Date”

Set out below is the totat dividend to be paid in respect of the year. This is the basis on which the requirements of 5.1158 of the
Corporation Tax Act 2010 are considered.

TYIINYNIA

4
>
=
m
=2
m
=z
-
w

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
20 2020

£000 £000

Interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021 of 5.20p

(2020; 5.20p) per Ordinary share 16,502 16,502
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 march 2021 of 2.00p
_(2020: 8.80p) per Ordinary share 28,562 27927
45,064 44,429

18 COMPANY STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company has not presented its own Statement of Comprehensive
Incorre. The net praofit after taxation of the Company dealt with in the accounts of the Group was £234,409,000 (2020: £148,006,000
loss).

19 NET ASSET VALUE PER ORDINARY SHARE

Net asset value per Ordinary share is based or the net assets attributable to Ordinary shares of £1,326,433,000 (2020:
£1,136,453,000) and on 317,350,980 (2020: 317,350,980) Ordinary shares in issue at the year end.

20 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
AL 31 March 2021 the Group had capital commitments of £144,000 (2020: £132,000) but no centingent liabilities (2020: nil).
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

21 SUBSIDIARIES

The Group has the following principal subsidiaries, all of which are registered and operating in Scotiang, England and Wales:

Name

New England Properties Limited
The Colonnades Limited
Showart Limited

Trust Union Properties Residential Develapments Limited

The Property Investment Trust Ltd

The Real Estate Investrment Trust Limited

The Terra Peoperty investment Trust Limited

Trust Union Property investment Trust Limited
Trust Union Properties {Number Five) Limited
Trust Union Properties {(Number Six) Limited

Trust Union Properties (Number Seven) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Eight) Limited
Trust Union Properties {Number Nine) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Ten) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Eleven) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Twelve) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Thirteen) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Fourteen) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Fifteen) Limited
Tsust Union Properties (Number Sixteen) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Seventeen) Limited
Trust Unien Properties (Number Eighteen) Limited
Trust Union Properties (Bayswater) Limited

Trust Union Properties (Cardiff) Limited

Trust Union Properties (Theale) Limited

Trust Union Properties (Number Twenty-Two} Limited
Trust Union Properties (Number Twenty-Three) Limited
skillion Finante Limited

Trust Ynien Finance (1991) Plc

FGH Developments Limited

FGH Developments (Aberdeen) Limited (E18030)
FGH (Newcastle) Limited

NEP (1994} Limnited

New Engiand Developments Limited

New England investments Limited

New England Retail Properties Limited

New England (Southern) Limited

Sapco One Limited

Trust Union Properties Limited

Trust Union Finance Limited

TR Properly Finance Limited

Trust Union Properties (South Bank) Limited

Reg. Number
788895
2826672
2500726
2365875
2415846
2416015
2415843
2416017
2415839
2416018
2415836
2416019
2415833
2416021
2415830
2416022
2415818
2416024
2416026
2415806
2416027
2415768
2416030
2415772
2416031
2415765
2416036
2420758
2663561
1481476
SC68799
1466619
977481
1385908
2613905
1447221
178731
803940
2134624
1233998
2415941
2420097

Principal Activities
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company
Non-trading company

Property investment

Non-trading company

Non-trading company

Non-trading company

Non-trading company

Non-trading company

Investment financing

Non-trading company

Non-trading company

Non-trading company

Non-trading company

Non-trading company

Non-trading company

Non-trading company

Non-trading company

Non-trading company

Non-trading company

Investment holding and finance company
Investment holding and finante company
Non-trading company
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21 SUBSIDIARIES continued

The Campany has provided a guarantee for each of these subsidiaries in order for them to take the exemption ffom the requirement
of an audit, in line with the requirements of S.479A of the Companies Act 2006.

All the subsidiaries are fully owned and alt the haldings are ordinary shares.

All companies have the registered office of 11-12 Hancver Street, London, W1S 1YQ with the exception of FGH Developments
(Aberdeen) Limited which is registered to 50 Lothian Road, Festival Square, Edinburgh EH3 9BY.

22 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS DISCLOSURES

Balances and tiansactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are selated parties, have been eliminated cn
consalidation. The balances are interest free, unsecured and repayable on demand.

2021 2020
£'000 £'000

Amounts due by the Company to subsidiaries per note 13

The Colennades Limited 22,619 22,619 a3z

. o Az

TR Property Finance Limited 20,281 27,143 23

New Engiand Properties Limited (20) (20) 27
42,880 50,342

Remuneration of key management personnel
The remuneration of the directors, who are the key management personnel of the Company for each of the relevant categories
specified in 1AS 24: Related Party Disclosures is provided in the audited part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report on page 56.

Directors’ transactions
Transactions in shares by directors are considered to be a related party transaction due to the nature of their role as directors.

Movements in directors’ shareholdings are disclosed within the Directors’ Remuneration Report on page 57.

Dividends totalling £17,000 {2020: £10,000} were paid in the year in respect of shares held by the Company’s directars.
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Glossary and AIFMD disclosure

1.0 ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES

Alternative Performance Measures are numercal measures of the
Company’s current or hustorical performance, financial position or

cash flows, other than the financial measures defined or specified
In the Firancial Statements.

Ihe measures defined below are considered 1o be Alternatrve
Performance Measures They are viewed as particularly relevant
and are frequently quoted tor closed ended investment
companies

Total Return

The NAY Total Return is calculated by reinvesting the dividends
in the assets of the Company from the relevant ex dividend
date Dividends are deemned 1o be reinvested on the ex-dividend
date as this is the protacal used by the Companys benchmark
and other indices The Share Price Total Return 15 calculated by
reinvesting the dividends in the shares of the Company fram the
relevant ex dividend date.

NAV/share price per share at

31 March 2020 3581 3175
NAV/share price per share at

31 Maich 2021 417.97 392.5
Change in year 16.7% 23.6%
Impact of dividends reinvested 4.0% 4.7%
Total REtUll;?OI the yéar 20.;0-!0 _ 28.3%

Nat Debt

Net debt 1s the total value of loan notes, loans {incdluding notional
exposure to CFDs and 1RSs) less cash as a proportior of net asset
value

The net geaning has been calculated as follows

Loan notes 57,593 59,246
Loans 95,000 40,000
CFD positions (nolional exposure) 146,001 56,728
TRS position (notional exposure) - 10,405
Less: Cash (29.114) {40,129)
less: Cash collateral (included
within ‘'Other debtors’ in Note 12) {50,913} (39.522)
218,567 86,728
Ef.;u:u'ty sharehoiders’ funds 1,326,&313 1,136,453
Net gearing 16.5% 7.6%
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The Ongoing Charges ratio has been calculated in accordance
with the quidance issued by the AIC as the total of mvestment
management fees and administrative expenses expressed as a
percentage of the average Net Assel values threughout the year.
The definition of administrative expenses does include property
refated expenses, Lhe Ongoing Charges calculation 15 shown
inclusive and exclusive of these expenses to allow comparison
of the direct administrative and management charges with

the majonty of Investiment frusts which do not hold any direct
property investmeants.

Excuding
Perlormance
Fees &

Direct
Property Costs
£°000

ncluding

Excluding
Performance Performance
Fees Fees

£'000 £'000

Management Fee

{note 5) 15,884 6,225 6,225

Other

Administrative

expenses (note 6) 1,835 1,835 1,835

Property Costs 270 270 -

Less: Non

recurring

expenses - - -
17,989 8,330 8,060

Average Net 1,283,051 1,283,051 1,283,051

Assets

Ongoing Charge o o o

2027 1.40% 0.65% 0.63%

Ongoing Charge 0.80% 0.61% 0.59%

2020

The Ongoing charges ratio provided in the Company’s Key
Information Document s calculated in ine with the PRIPS
regulaticns which 1s different to the AIC methodology abave

Key Performance Indicators

Ihe Board assesses the performance of the Manager in meeting
the Trust's abjective against a number of Key Performance
Indicatars, these are considered to be Alternative Performance
Measures Ihese are set out on pages 26 and 27 of this report
logether with information about any calculations or the soufce cf
data



Glossary and AIFMD disclosere ot o

2.0 GLOSSARY OF TERMS AND DEFINITIONS

AIFMD

Ihe Alternative Fund Managers Directive 15 European legislation
which created a turopean wide framewark for requlating the
managers of “altesnative Investment funds” (AlFs) 1t 15 designed
to regulate any fund which 15 not 2 UC'TS (Undestakings for
Collective Investment in Transferable Secunties) fund and which
is managed of marketed in the £U.

AlC
Ihe Association of Investment Compamies - the A:C is the
representative body for closed ended investment campanies

Alternative Performance Measure

A financial measyre of inancial performance or inancial pesition
other than 3 financial measure defined or specfied in the
accounting statements.

Discount

The amount by which the market price of a share of an
Investment tryst 1s fower than the Net Asset Va:ue per share
expressed a5 g percentage of the NAV per share

Key Infermation Document

Under the PRIIPs Requlat.ons a short, cansumer frendly Key
Isformation Document 15 reguired sething out the key features,
risks, rewards and costs of the PRIP and is intended ta assist
investars to better understand the Trust and make comparnsons
between liusts

The document includes estimates of investment perfoimance
under a number of scenanas These calculations are prescribed
by the regulation and are based purely an 1ecent histonical data.
itisamportant for investars 1o note that there 1s no judgement
applied and these do not in any way refiect the 8oard ar
Manager's views

Key Performance Indicator “KP1”

A“KP*" 15 a quantifiable measure that evaluates how successful
the trust is in reeting 1ts abjectives The Trust’s KPIs are
discussed on pages 26 and 27

MIFID

The Markets in hinarcial Instruments Directive 1 the EU
leqislation that regulates firms wha provide services to clients
linked to “firanc.al instremerts” {shares, bords, units in cotlective
investment schemes and derivatives) anc the venues where
those instruments are traded.

Net Asset Value (NAV) per share
The va.ue of lotal assets ‘ess habihties {.ncluding berrowings)
divided by the number of shares rissue

3.0 ALTERNATIVE INVESTMENT FUND MANAGERS
DIRECTIVE (“ALFMD’")

In accordance with the AIFMD, information 1n relation to the
Company’s leverage and remuneration of the Company’s AIFM,

F&C Investment Bustness Limited, 1s required 1o be made
available tg investors Detalled requlatory disclosures inclyding
those an the AIFM's remuneration pobicy are available on the Fat
website or from F&C on 1equest The numerncal remunesaticn
disclosures in relation to the AIFM's first relevanl accounting
pefiod will be made available in due course.

Leverage
Under the AlbM Directive, 1t 15 necessary far Alts to disclose thewr
leverage 1n accordance with prescribed calculations

Although leverage 1s often used as another term for gearing,
under the AIFMD leverage 15 specificaily defired. Twao types of
leverage calculations are defined; the grass and commiiment
methods These methods summarnly express leverage as a ratio
of the exposure of the AlF agamnst its net asset value ‘Exposure’
typically includes debt, the value of any physical properties
subject to morigage, non-Sterling currency, equity oF currengy
hedging at absolute notional values (even those held purely

fur sk reduction purposes, such as forward foreign exchange
cortracts held foi currency hedging) and dervative expasure
(converted intg the equivalent undeilying positions) The
tommitment method nets off dervatwve nstruments, while the
arass methad aggieqgates them.,

The table below sets gut the current maximum permitted Ll
and the aclual level of leverage for the Company as at 31 March
2020

Gross Commitment

Levesage expasure method method
Maximum permitted limit 200% 200%

Actual 124% 118%

The leverage limits are set by the AltM and approved by the
Board and are In ine with the limits set out in the Company’s
Articles cf Association

Itis skould not be confused with the gearng set out in the
Financial Highlights which s calcuiated under the tradit.onat
methoc set cut by the Assocation of Investinent Companies The
AIFM 15 aise 1equired to comply with the geanng parameters set
by the Board 1n relatior to boriowings
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

THIS NOTICE IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR
IMMEDIATE ATTENTION

I you are in any doubt as to the action you should take you
shoutd seek your own advice from @ stockbroker, sohataor,
accountant or other independent professional adviser who is
autharised under the Financial Services and Markets Adt 2000 1t
you are resident in the United Kingdom, or if not, fram another
appropnately authansed independent tinancal adviser

If you have scld or atherwise transferred all of your shares,
please pass this document, together with the accompanying
documents ta the purchaser, or transferee, or to the person who
arranged the sale or transfer so they can pass these documents
to the person who now holds the shares.

Our preference Is to welcome shareholders in person ta our 2021
AGM, particularly given the constraints we faced in 2020 due to
the COVID-19 pandemic the Company 1s contineing to monitor
the current COVID-19 legislation and public health quidance 1ssued
by the UK Gavernment

we have prepared for this AGM based on the anticipated status
of the UK Government's roadmap oul of lackdown at the date
of the meeting 1115 expected that the AGM will be able to go
ahead as norma! as a physicat meeting.

However, it may be necessary 1o adapt our arrangements (o
respond to any changes in arcumstances, including the possibility
of 3 delay to the further easing of restrctions Any changes to the
arrangements for the AGM (including any change to the location
of the AGM) will be communicated to shareholders before the
meeting, including through our website (www.tiproperty.com}
and via an RNS arnouncement

The meeting will be conducted in accordance with legislatian
and public health quidance in force at the time of the meeting.
Depending on the circumstances at the tme of the meeting, 1t
rmay be necessary to imit physical attendance by shareholders
we regret that it will not be possibie to provide refreshments
in the usual way. If new restnctions are wmpased, 1t 1s possible
that we will not be in a position to accommeoedate shareholders
beyand the mimimum required to hold a quorate meeting

Regardless of the current expectation for the physical meeting
to proceed as planned, we strangly encourage all shareholders
to vate in advance by proxy and appoirt the Chairmar of the
meeting as their proxy rather than any other named persen,
who may not be permitted to attend the AGM  This will ensure
that their vote will be counted +f they (or any other proxy they
might otherwise appoint) are not able to attend the meeting Al
resolutions will be voted on by a poll

Shareholders intending to attend the AGM are asked 1o register
their intention as soon as practicable by emall to the following
dedicated address cmuk-trpropertyinvestment@inkgroup co uk .

sharehalders who are not able or do not wish to attend the
meeting in person (regardless of an easing of restrictions) will be
able 10 watch a live webcast of the meeting This wilt include the
formal bus:ness of the meeting, the Manager's presentation and
questions and answers 1he webcast will nol enable shareholders
to participate 1n the meeting or vote However, shareholders will
be invited to submit questions thicugh our website, by 12 00
noon on 26 July 2021 Questions of a very similar nature may be
grouped together to ensure the aiderly runmng of the AGM.
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Sharehoiders are asked to consult the website in the peried
leading up to the event where any restrictions ar changes will
be set aut and the format detailed when we know what will be
permitted at that time.

Notice 1s hereby grven that the Annual General Meeting of

IR Property Investment Trust plc (the "Company”) will be held
al 2.30 pm on 27 July 2021 at the Reyal Autornobile Ciub, 89/91
Pall Mall, London SWTY SHS for the purpose of transacting the
following business:

lo consider and, if thought fit, pass the following Resolutions,

of which Resolutions 1ta 11 will be proposed as Ordinary
Resolutions and Resolutions 12 to 14 shall be proposed as Special
Resolutions

lo recetve the Reporl of the Directors and the Audited
Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2021,

To approve the Directors’ Remuneration Report (other than the
part contaning the Directors’ remuneration palicy) for the year
ended 31 March 2027

To declare a finai dividend of 300p per Ordinary share.
To re-elect Simen Marnison as a Directar

lo re-elect David Watson as a Director

To re elect im Gillbanks as a Drector

To re-elect Kate Bolsover as a Director

lo re-elect Sarah-Jane Curtis as a Director.

To re-appoint KPMG LLP (the "Auditor™) as Auditors of the
Company 1o hald office untii the conclusion of the next Annual
General Meeling of the Company

Ta authorise the Directors to delermine the remuneration of
the Auditars

SPECIAL BUSINESS

Qedinary resoiution
THAT, in substitution for all such existing authonties, the
Directors be generally and unconditionaily authonised
pursuant to and in accordance with Section 551 of
the Companies Act 2006 (lhe "Acl”) to exercise all
the powers of the Company 1o aflot shares in the
Company and to grant rights to subscnbe for, of Lo
convert any secunty into, shares in the Company up to
anaminal value of £26,187,455 (being approximately
330 of the total 1ssued share capital of the Company
as at the [atest practicable date pror to publication of
this Notice) provided that th1s autharity shall expue
al the date of the next Annual Generai Meeting of
the Company (or, if eanier, at the close of business
an 27 Oclober 2022), save Lhat the Company shat
he entitted to make offers oi agreements before the
expiry of this authonty which would or might reguire
shares 1o be allotted of nights 1o be granted alter
such expliry and the Cirectors shall be entitled Lo allot
shares and grant nghts pursuant to any such offers or
agreements as if this authonty nad nol expired
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SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS

" THAT

{2) (in substitution for all such existing authanties and subject
to the passing of Resolution 11 set out above) the directors
be empowered pursuant to Section 570 ard Section 573 of
the Act ta allot equity secunties (as defined s Sectian 560
of the Act) far cash pursuant to the authanty conferred
by Resolution 11 abave and/or to sell shares held by the
Company as tieasury shares for cash as if Section 561(1) of
the Act did not apply to any such ailotment, provided that
this power shall be imited to:

(1) the allotment of equity secunties and sale of treasury
shares for cash 1n connection with an offer of, or
invitation to apply for, equity secunities.

{aa) to sharehclders in propartion (as nearly as may be
practicable) 1o ther existing heicirgs, and

{bby ta holders of other equity securities, as required
by the nights of those securties, or as the Baard
otherwise considers Necessary,

and so that the Board may impose any limits or restrictions
and make any arrangements which i1t considers necessary
or apprapriate to deal with treasury shares, fractional
entitlernents, record dates, leqgal, requlatory or practical
prablems in, or under the laws of, any ternlary or any othet
matter; and

(110 the case of the authonty granted under Resolution
11 and/or in the case of any sale of treasury shares
for cash, to the aliotment {otheswise than under
paragraph (1} above) of equity securites or sale of
treasury shares up to a nomiral aimaunt of £3,966,887
{being appioxunately 5% of the total 1ssued share
capital of the Comrpany as et the latest praclicable date
prior to publ.cation of the not:ice of meeling),

(L) the power given by this resciution shall expire upon the
expiry of the authorty conferred by Resolution 11 above,
save Lhat the Company shall be entitled la make offers or
agreements befcre the expiry of such power which wousd
or might require equity securities o be aliotted after such
expiry and the directars shal! be entitled to allot equity
securities pursuant ta any such offer or agreement as if the
power conferred hereby had not expired

IHAT the Compary be and 15 heresy genetdily 2nd
unconditionally authonsed 10 accardance with Section 71
of the Act o ma<e markel purchasas (witun the
meamea of Section 93(4) of the Act) of Ordirary shates
of 25p ezch i the capral of the Comrpany or such terms
ANG e such mesne 35 the areclors Mdy om hme wo
tme deterring sroviced that

(a) the maxirum rumber of Ordinary shares hereby
authcrsed to be purchased sha'l be 14 99% of the
Ccmrpany’s Groinary shares inissue at the date ¢f the
ArnLa Generai Meeling {equiva:ent to 47570, Qrdinary
shares of 25p each at 3 June 2027, the .atest pract cabe
Cete pror to publicatior cf this Notce),

(b} the maximum price (exclusive of expenses) which may
be paid for any such share shall not be maore than the
figher of.

(1) 105% of the average of the middle market quotations
for an Qrdinary share as taken from the London Stock
txchange Daily Official List for the five business days
immediately preceding the date on which the Company
agrees 10 buy the shares concerned, and

{ii) the higher of the price of the last independent trade
and the highest current independent bid for an Ordinary
share in the Company gn the trading venue whete the
purchase is carmed out at the relevant time;

(c) the mimimum price (exclussve of expenses) which may be
paid for an Qrdinary share shall be 25p, being the nominal
value per Crdinary share, and

{d) the authonty hereby conferred shall expire at the
tonchusion of the Annual General Meeting of the Company
i 2022 {or, i earlier, at the close of business on 27 October
2022), save thal the Company shall be entitled to enter
mita a contract to purchase Ordinary shares which will, or
may, be completed or executed wholly or partly after the
power expires and the Company may purchase Ordinary
shares pursuant Lo such contract as if the power conferred
hereby had not expired

THAT, with effect from the conclusion of this meeting,

the Art:cles of Assouation produced to the meeting and
imtialled by the Chawrman of the meeting for the purposes cf
identification be hereby appraved and adopled as the Arlicles
cf Assaciation of the Company, 1n substitution for, and to the
exclusior of the existing Articles of Assaciation

Req.stered Office-

]
2
3
-
‘8
5
H
T

Req stered ir England No- 84492 11-12 Hanover Street

Lendon
W15 176
By Order of the Board

tar ard o behalf of
Liple Company Mattars Lamitpd

Secreary

3 Jure 2027

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST



e
R

Netite of Annual General Meeting

NOTES TO THE NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting
convened by the above Notice 15 entitled to appaint ane

or more proxies to exercise all ar any of the nghts of the
member to altend, speak and vate in fus or her place
Shareholders are stiengly encouraged to appoint the Chainmar
of the meeting as their proxy, rather than any other named
person who may not be permitted to attend the AGM in the
event uf restictions we imits on attendance. A prasy need

not be a shareholder of the Company. Ta appoint maore than
one proxy, the proxy form should be photecepied and the
name of the praxy to be appeinted indicated on 2ach proxy
form together with the number of shaies that such proxy 15
appointed in respect of. Campletion and submission of a proxy
Instruction will not prectude @ member from attending and
voting in person at the AGM (subject to any restrictions on
physical attendance}.

10 be valid any proxy form or ather instrument appointing

a proxy must be returned by post, by counier or by hand to
the Company’s Registrars, Compuytershare Investar Services
PLC, The Pavihons, Bnidgwater Road, Bristol BSSS 64Y, of
alternatively, by going to www.eproxyappointment.com

and following the nstructions provided All proxies must

be appointed by no lster than 48 hours befare the time of
the AGM. In the case of joint halders, where more than one
of the joint holders purparts to appaint a proxy, cnly the
appaintment submitted by the maost senior hotder will be
accepted. Seniority 1s determined by the order i which the
names of the joint holders appear in the Company’s register
in respect of the joint holding (the first named being deemed
the mast seniar}

In order to be able to attend and vote at the AGM or any
adjourned imeeling (and also for the purpose of calculating
how many vates a person may cast), a person must have

his of her name entered on the Register of Members of the
Company by 2 30 pm on 23 July 2021 (or 6.00 pm on the

date twa days befare any adjourned meeting). Changes to
enties on the Register of Members after this time shali be
disregarded in determining the rights of any person to attend
or vote at the meeting.

voting will be conducted on a poil at the Meeting. On 3 pali
vote every shareholder will through their proxy have one vate
for every ordinary share of which he or she 1s the holder

Sharehalders should note that it is possible that, pursuant to
requesls made by shareholders of the Company under Section
527 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company may be required
to publish on a websile a statement setting out any matter
relating to- (1) the audit of the Company’s accounts (inctuding
the auditor’s report and the conduct of the audit) lhat are to
be laid befare the AGM; a1 (1) any arcumstance connected
with an auditor of the Company ceasing to hald office since
the previous meeting at which arnual accounts and repaorts
were laid in accordance with Section 437 of the Companies
At 2006

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

Ihe Compary may not require the shareholders requesting
any such website publication to pay Its expenses in complying
with Sections 527 of 528 cf the {ompanies Act 2006. Wheie
the Company 1s required to place a statement on a website
under Section 527 ¢f the Companies Act 2006, 1t must forward
the statement 1g the Company’'s auditor not later than the
time when it makes the statement available on the website.
Ihe business which may be dealt with at the AGM includes
any statement that the Company has been required under
Sectien 527 of the Compames Act 2006 to publish on a
weDsite.

Any carporatian which1s a member of the Company can
appoint one or more carporate representatives who may
exercise on its behalf all of its powers as a member provided
that they do not do so in relation te the same shares

Ihe right to appaint 3 proxy does not apply to persons whose
shares are held on thesr behalf by ancther person and who
have been nominated to receive communication from the
Company in accordance with Section 146 of the Companies Act
2006 ("nominated persons”). Nominated persons may have

a right under an agreement with the registered shareholder
who holds shares on their behalf ta be appainted {or to

have sameone else appointed) as a proxy. Alternatively,
nominated persans da not have such a right, or do not wish
to exercise I, they may have a nght under such an agreement
to give nstructions ta the person holding the shares as to the
exercise of voting rights

CREST members wha wish to appaint a proxy or proxies
through the CREST electionic proxy appointment service

may do so for the AGM to be held on 27 July 2021 and any
adjournment(s) thereof by using the procedures described in
the CREST Manual CRESI persanal members ar other CREST
sponsored members, and thase CREST members who have
appointed a voling service pravider should refer to their CREST
sponsors ar voeling service provider(s), who will be able to
take the apprapriate action on their behaif,

In order for a proxy appaintrment or instruction made by
means of CREST to be valid, the appropriate CREST message

(a "CRES| Proxy Instruction”) must be properly authenlicated in
accordance with Euroclear UK & lieland Limited’s specifications
and must contan the nfarmation required for such
instruchions, as described in the CREST Manual 1he message
must be transmitted so as to be received by the Company’s
agent, Computershare Investor Services PLC (CREST Participant
ID. 3RA50), no later than 48 hours betore the ime appointed
for the meeting Far this purpase, the time of recaipt will

be taken to be the time (as determined by the time stamp
applied ta the message by the CREST Application Host) from
which the Company’s agent s abie to retrieve the message by
enquiry to CREST in the manner prescnbed by CRESI

(REST members and, where applicable, their CRESI sponsor or
voting service provider should note that Euroclear UK & lteland
Limited does not make available spevial pracedures in CREST
for any particular messages



Notice of Arnugl Geneial Meetny

Normal system timings and limitatians will therefore apply

in relatian to the inpyt af CREST Proxy Instructiens 1L1s the
responsibility of the CREST member cancerned 1o take (or, if
the CREST member s a CREST personal member of sponsared
member or has appointed a voling service provider, to procure
that his of her CREST sponsor or voting service provider

takes) suck action as shall be necessary to ensure that a
message 1s transmitied by means of the CREST system by any
particular ime. In this connection, CREST members and, where
applicable, their CREST sponsor or voling service pravider are
referred 1n particutar to those sections of the CREST Manual
concerning practical imitations of the CREST syslem and
tmings The Campany Mdy lreat as invalid a CREST Proxy
Instruction 1 the circumstances set out in Regqulation 35(5}{a)
of the Uncertificated Secunties Regulations 2001.

Any member attending the meeting (subject to any
1estrictions 1n place at the time of the meeting) has the nght
lo ask questions The Company must cause ta be answered
any such question relating to the business being dealt with at
the meeting but no such answer need be given 4. (a) to do sa
would inteifere unduly with the preparation for the meeting
or nvosve the disclosure of confidental informatian, (b) the
answer has already been given on a website in the form of an
answer to a question; of (¢) 1t 15 undesirable In the Interests

of the Company or the good arder of the meeting that the
question be answered Questions of a very similar nature may
be grouped together to ensure the orderly running of the
AGM

A copy of this rotice, and other information required by
sectior 311A of the Campentes Act 2006, ¢an be found at
www liprcperty com.

Meimbers satistying the thresholds 1n section 338 of the
Compan.es Act 2006 may require the Compary to give, 1o
inermbers of the Company enhitled ta receive notice of the
AGM, notice of a resolut-or which those members intend te
move (and which may properly be moved) at the AGM A
resclution may properly be mgved at the AGM rless

(1)1t wou d, f passed, be meffective {whether by reason of
any incens:istency with any enactment of the Compary's
constitution ar atherwise); () 1t 15 defamatory of any person,
or (i1} 1t s frrvolous or vexatious A request made pursuant
tc this right may be o hard copy cr electrorac farm, must
dentify the resalyt.on of which notice s tc be given, must
be authenticated by the persands) making 't and must be
received by the Company not later than six weeks before the
date of the AGM

. Members satisfying the thresholds in sect on 3384 of the
Companies Act 2006 may request the Compary to nclude

N the Busiress ¢ be dealt w th et the AGM any malter

fother thar a proposed resclut ory which may properly be
included in the bus.ness at the AGM A matter may preper y
be inclucec In the business at the AGM unless [t s
defamatory of any perser, of {u) 1t s frivalous or vexat.cus

A request made purscant to this r.ght may be -n harc copy

or e'ectronic form, must 1certify the matter to ke rcducec in
the business, must be accompan:ec by a staterrent settng
out the graunes for the reauest, must be authenticated by the
peison(s) making it ar¢ must be recerved by the Compary not
later than six weexs befcre the date of the AGM

Biographical details of the diectors are shown on pages 38
and 39 of the Annual Report & Accounts

- As at 3 June 2021 (being the lalest practicable day prior

to publication of this Notice), the 1ssued share capital of

the Company 15 317,350,980 Crdinary shares of 25p each
Thesefore, the total number of votirg nghts in the Company at
3june 20215 317.350,980

The terms of reference of the Audit Commitiee, the
Management tngagement Commuttee, the Nomipalion
Committee, the New Articles of Assaciaton and the Letters of
Appointment for directors will be avatlable for inspection for
at least 15 minutes prior 1o and during the Company’s AGM

You may not use any electramc address provided either in
this Notice or any related documents to communicate for any
purposes other than those expressly stated

. The Company may process peiscnal data of attendees at the

Anncal General Meeting This may include webcasts, photos,
recording and acdio and video links, as well as other forms
ol personai dala. Ihe Company shall process such personal
data in accardance with (1s privacy palicy, which can found at
https.//www trpraperty com/legal
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RESOLUTIONS 1, 2, AND 3: ACCOUNTS,
DIRECTORS REMUNERATION REPORT AND
DIVIOEND

Ihese aie the resolutions which deal with the presentation of
the audited accounts, the approval of the Directors’ Rermuneration
Report and the declaration of the final dividend.

Ihe vote to approve the Remuneration Report is advisory anly
and wilt not require the Company to alter any arrangements
detalled in the report should the resolution not be passed

The Board I1s proposing a final dividend for the year ended

31 march 2021 of 500p per ordinary share. If approved at the
AGM, the Company would pay the dividend on 4 August 2021
to those shareholders on the Company's register at the clase of
business on 18 June 2021

RESOLUTIONS 4,5, 6, 7. AND B: RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

These resolutions deal with the re-election of Simon Marnson,
Iim Gillbanks, David Watson, Kate Bolsover and Sarah-jane
Curtis #n accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code, all
directors will retire on an annual basis and have confirmed that
they witl offer themselves for re election.

A performance evaluation has been completed and your Boaid
has determined that each of the directors cantinues to be
ettective ang demanstrates their camimitment te their role.

Therr biogiaphicat details, which are set out on pages 38 and

15, demanstrate how the Board has the appropriate balance

ot skills, expenience independence and knowledge ta lead the
Company’s long-term sustainable success Accordingly, the Board
unamimausty recornmends their re election,

RESQLUTIONS 9 AND 10: AUDITORS

These deal with the reappainiment of the Aud:tors, KPMG
LLP and the authorisation for the directors to determine therr
remuneiration

RESOLUTION 11 ALLOTMENT OF SHARE CAPITAL

Our Boarc considers it apprapriate that an authority be granted

to allot shares in the capital of the Company up to 8 maximum
nominat amount of £26,445,915 (representing appraximately one
third of the Company’s 1ssued share capital as at 3 June 2027,
being the latest practicar date prior to publication of this Notice of
the meeting) As at the dale aof this notice the Campany does not
kold any shares in treasury

The directors have no present ntention of exercising this
autharity and would only expect to use the authanty If shares
could be 1ssued at, or at a premium ta, the Net Asset Vaiue per
share.

ts authanty will expire at the earier of clese of business
on 27 October 2022 and the conclusion of the Annual General
Meeting of the Compary to be held in 2022

L TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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RESOLUTION 12: DISAPPLICATION OF STATUTORY
PRE-EMPTION RIGHTS

This resolution would give the directors the authanty to allot
shares (or sell any shares which the Company elects to hold
In treasury) far cash without first offering them 1o existing
sharehalders i1 praportion to thew existing shareholdings

Ifis authority would be imited to allotments or sales in
cannection with pre-emptive offers and offers to holders of
other equity securtties If required by the nights of thase shares
or as the board otherwise considers necessary, of otherwise up
tc an aggregate nomnal amount of £3,966,887 1his aggregate
nominal amount represents 5% of the total ssued share capital
of the Company as at 3 June 2021, the latest practicable date
pricr to publication of this Nolice. in respect cf this aggregate
nominal amount, the directors confirm their intention to follow
the provisions of the Pre-Emption Group's Statement ot Principles
reqarding cumulative usage of authonties within a ralling

3 year penod where the Principles provide that usage in excass
of 7.5% should not take place without prior consutiation with
sharehclders.

The authority will expire at the earlier of close of business on
27 Oclober 2022 and the cenclusion of the Annual General
Meeting of the Company to be held in 2022,

RESOLUTION 13 AUTHORITY TO MAKE MARKET
PURCHASES OF THE COMPANY'S ORDINARY
SHARES

At the AGM held In 2020, a special resalution was praposed and
passed, giving the diectars authornity, untt the conclusion of the
AGM In 2021, to make markel purchases af the Company’s own
issued shaies up to a rnaximum of 14 99% of the issued share
capital.

Your Board 1s proposing that they should be given renewed
authority to purchase Ordinary shares in the market. Your

Board believes that to make such purchases in the market at
appropnate times and prices 15 3 suitable methad of enhancing
shareholder value The Company would, within quidelines set
from time to time by the Boaid, make either a single purchase or
a senes of purchases, when market conditions are suitable, with
the aim of mawimising the benefits ta shareholders.

where purchases are made at prices below the prevailing Net
Asset Value per share, this wilt enhance the Net Asset value

for the remaining sharehalders 1t s therefore intended that
purchases would only be made at prces below Nel Asset value
Your Board cansiders that it wiil be most advantageous to
shareholders for the Company to be abie to make such purchases
as and when It considers the iming to be favourabte and
therefore does nat propase 1o set a timetable for making any
such purchases

The Companies {Acquisition ¢f Qwn Shares) (Treasury Shares)
Regulations 2003 enabie companies in the Lrited Kingdorm to
hold in treasury ary of their own shares they kave purchased
wilh @ view to possible resale at a fulure date, rather than
cancelling them 1f the Company does re-puichase any of its
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shares, the diwectors do not currently intend 1o hald any of the
shares re-purchased in treasury The shares so re-purchased will
continue to be cancelled

The Listing Rules of the UK Listing Authanty imit the maximum
price (exclusive of expenses) which may be paid for any such
share 1t shall not be more than the higher of-

(i) 105% af the average of the middle market quotations for an
Ordinary share as taken from the London Stock Exchange Daly
officiat List far the five business days immediately preceding
the date gn which the Campany agrees lo buy shares
concerned, and

{1ty the higher of the price of the last independent trade and
the highest current independent bid for an Qrdinary share in
the Company an the tiading venue where the purchase 1s
carned out

The minimum price to be paid will be 25p per Ordinary

share (being the nominal value). The Listing Rules aiso limit

a listed company to purchases of shares representing up to
15% of its 1ssued share capital in the market pursuant to a
general guthonity such as this For this reason, the Company
limiting its authonity to make such purchases ta 14.99% of the
Company's Ordinary shares in 1ssue at lhe date of the AGM, this
Is equivalent to 47,57C,911 Ordinary shares of 25p each {(naminal
value £11,892,72/) at 3 june 2021, the latest practicable date
prior to publication this Notice The authonty wili fast untl the
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in 2022

RESTGLUTION T 1 ADDPTION DF NEW ARTICLES OF
ASSQUIATION

Resclut:on 14 relates to the adophior of new Artictes of
Associat-on (the “New Articles”) in arder 1o update the
Company's current Articles of Assogiation {the “Current Articies™),
which were adopted on 14 Decernber 2072 1he New Articles
reflect developments 1n best practice, and provide additicnal
clarfication and fexibi ity The main changes 'n the New Articles
are summar-sed in the Appendix on pages 106 and 107 Other
thanges, which are of a minor, technical or clanifying nature have
not been nated 1n the Appendix The New Articles showing el
the changes to the Cuirent Articles are avallable for inspection,
at www trproperty com anc will also be avaslable at the Annual
General Meet.rg

RECOMMENDATION

Your Board believes that the resolutions contained in this hotice
of Arnual General Meeting are in the best interests of the
Cempany ard shareholders as a whole and reccmmenrds that you
vete 1n favour of them as your Girectors intent t¢ ¢o in respect of
the r beneficiai sharehcldings

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

3
=
I
-
o
.l
&
=




Explanation of Notite of Annual General Meeting

APPENDIX

Further information and Explanatory notes regarding
amendments to the Company’s articles of association

Sigma Shares and Deferrad Shares

The New Articles amend the Current Articles to remove
provisions and references relating to Sigma Shares and Deferred
Shares 1tus reflects that on 14 December 2012 all Sigma Shares
were consohdated and redesignated as Ordinary Shares, and
the resulting Deferred Share was puichased by the Company for
canuellaliun The Cutnpany now has @ single class of Urdmary
Shares.

Untraced sharehoiders

the New Artictes amend the position in relation to untraced
shareholders Rather than requinng the Campany to take out
two newspaper advertisements, the New Articles require the
Company to use reasonable effarts to trace the sharehotder,
‘Reasonable efforts’ to trace a shareholder may nclude, if
considered appropniate, the Company engaqing a professiona
asset reunification company or other tracing agent to search for
a shareholder wha has not kept ther shareholder details up lo
date

In addition, the New Articles provide that meney from the sale
of the shares of an untraced shareholder wil! be forfeited if nat
claimed after two years, rather than six years

These changes refiect best practice and provide the Company
with appropriate flexibility in connection with locating untraced
shareholders

sub division of shaces

The New Articles dlanfy that any shares resuiting from a sub
division of the Company's existing shaies may, 1n addition to
having any preference or advantage as compared with the
Company’s other shares, also have deferred or other rights 1his
change makes administering any sub-division of shares more
straightforward.

Operatior of geaaral meatings

Ihe New Articles cantain specifrc pravisions to danfy that the
Company can hold *hybnd” general meetings {including annuai
general meelings) and 1 set out how such meetings are to
be conducted Under the New Articles, the Company may hold
"hybrid” general meetings in such a way thal enables members
to attend and participale 11 the business of the meeting by
attending a physical location or by attending by mears of an
electrome faality. Vating at hybnid meetings will, by default, be
decided on a poll. Hybnd meetings may be adjourned in the
event of a technological failure

Ihe New Articles allow the Company, where appropnate, to make
changes to the arrangements for generat meetings {including the
intraduction, change or cancellation of electionic fauhites) after
notice of the meeting has been 1ssued The Campany may give
natice of any such thanges in any manner considered approprate
(rather than via an advertisement In two national newspapers)
Ihe New Articles also exphicitly allow the Company to introduce
health and safety arrangerrents at 1ts meelirgs

ihese thanges were Introdurced to provide the Board greater
flexibility ta al:gn with technological advances, changes in
investor sentiment and evolving best practice, particularly i ight

3> TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

of the Covid-19 outbreak and the uncertain duration of scoal
distancing measures and restrictions on gatherings [he Board
believes that hybnd meetings will allow for gieater sharehalder
and stakeholder engagement gver the coming years in a way
that is more convenient for all parties. Absent exceptionat
arcumstances, members of the Board intend to continue the
praclice of altending general meetings of the Company 1n person
in line with the views expressed by the Investiment Assaciation
and Institutional Shareholder Services, the changes will not
permit meetings to be held exclusively on an electronic bass, so
a physical meeting will still be required In deciding whether and
how tc hold a hybrid generat meeting in future, the Company
will have regard to the views of sharehalders and institutional
governance bodes at the relevant time as well as to relevant
guidance or codes of best practice.

Ihe New Articles alsa specifically refer to the possibility of
satellite/multi-venue meetings, such as the use of averflow
rooms Satellite meetings are legally valid even without such a
provision but It has been added for clanty

These changes are pnimarily contained :n articles 47, 48, 50
and 53 in the New Articles. A number of other cansequential
amendments have been made to the New Articles.

Objections or £r7ors in Yoting

In relatton to the statutory requirement that a proxy must vole
in agcordance with any instructions given by the member by
wham the proxy 1s appainted, the New Articles state explicitly
that the company 1s not required to check that proxies and
rorporate representatives have voted in accordance with their
nstructions or that their failure to do so would vitiate the result
of a shareholder vote

Nyimther of directors
The New Aritcles reflect the statutory mimimum of two directors,
and introduce a maximum of 10 directors

Reappomtment of directors

In line wath the requirements of the UK Corporale Governance
Code, the New Articles require directors ta retire (and should
they wish to remain ir office, seek re-eleclion} at each annual
general meeting Ihis requirement does not apply ta diectors n
their first year of appointment who were appointed in the periad
between the AGM notice being I1ssued and the AGM itself This
confirms existing Company practice

Diractors faes

The Current Articles piovide thal the aggregate of all fees paid

to directors shall not exceed £250 000 per annum Article 88 of
the New Articles increases this amount to £300,000 to refiect the
amount approved by resalution of the Company on 22 July 2014

Borrowing Powaes

Ite New Articles include it the definition of "borrowings” the
menonty propertion of moneys borrowed by a member of the
group and owing lo a parlty-owned subsidiary undertaking
{with “the minonty proportion” meaning a proportian equal 1o
the proportion of the 1ssued share capnal of a partly owned
subsidiary undestaking which 15 not attributable to 3 member of
the group).
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Forfeiture of undlaimed dividends

The Current Articles provide that if a dividend or other payment
due to members has not been claimed for twelve years after
being declared ar becemning due, 1t will be forferted to the
Company Article 122 of the New Articles (educes this penoc fram
twelve 10 six years.

Payiments of dividends and ather amounts

Ihe New Articles give the Board greater flexibility to deterrmine
the apprapriate method(s) it pays dividends {and other sums)
to sharehalders This tlexibility wili help the Board take account
of developments :n market practice and keep down the
administrative cost of making payments The New Articles
alse prowvide that where a payment cannot be made becayse

a shareholder has not provided valid account details to the
company, that amount will treated as uncfaimed until the
sharehalder pravides those detads.

Capital Reserve

The New Arficles remave Article 132 n the Oid Articles, which
was Included to ensure that the company qualkfies as an
investment trust and s treated as an nvestment company
Foilowing the rmodern:sation of 1he investment trust regsme and
amendments to legisiation abolishing the restrictian on the ability
to distnibute capital profits, this provision 15 ro langer necessary

strategic repert and suppiemeantaty materia’s

Ihe Companies Act 2006 and the Companies (Receipt of Accounts
and Reponts) Regulations 2013 allow the Company to send a copy
af its steateqic report with supptementary matenal instead of

its full accounts to a member who has elected or tacitly agreed
lo receve these documents, provided that the Company 15 not
prohubited fram daing so 1n its articies Article 129 is intended to
make t clear there 15 no such prohibition Sharehalders should
note that they can aiways view the full annugl report on the
Cemeany's website or request a hard copy from the Corepany’s
reqistar

Gand=2r Neytesl Draftang
lthe New Articles amend the Current Artic'es so thal gencer
nettral language 15 used

Genery

Gther changes which are of a minar, technical or clanfying nature
ar which have beer made to remeve provisions in the Current
Artcles which dup icate £nglish compary law are not rotec
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The half year results are announced In late November The full
year resulls are announced in early June

R P TS T
the AGM 15 held in Londen N July.

P S S I B R

Dividends are usually paid on the Ordinary shares as follows

Intenm  january
Final August

(R R TP I AR SR P

Dwidends can be paid to shareholders by means of BACS
{Rankers” Automated Clearnng Services); mandate forms for

this puipose are avallable from the Registrar. Alternatively,
shareholders can write lo the Registrar (the address is given on
page 108 of this report) to give their ‘nstructions, these must
nclude the bank account number, the bark acccunt title and the
sort cade of the bank ta which payments are 1o be made

, APEN R
. P Pl i e

IR Property Investment Trust plc offers sharehaiders the
opportumity to purchase further shares :n the Cempany thraugh
the DRIP Please rote that following Brexit shaieholders in terope
are no longer abie to participate In the DRIP DRIP forms may

be abtained from Computershare Investor Services PLC through
their secure website www nvestorcentre co ux, or by phoning
0370 707 1694 Chaiges do apply, dealing camm ssion af 6 75%
{subjetl tc a minimum of £2 50). Government stamp duty of

0 5% alsg appiies

e
HR

fhe rmarket prices of the Company’s shares are publ:shed daily
in the Financial Times Scme of the informatior -5 published ir
other Jeading newspapers 1he Financal Lires 250 shows Higures
for the estimalec Net Asset values and the discounts appiicahle
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Detars of ire bench™ark are give > 17 the Srategic Report
on page 24 cf this Report and Accourts The berchmark index 1s
pubishec daily ard czr be found on Bicomberg,
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Detalls of the market pnce and Nel Asset Value of the i
Ordinary shares can be found on the Company's websie at
www lrproperty com.

Sharehalders wha hold their shares in certificated form car check
then holdings with the Reqistrar, Computershare Investor Services
PLC, via www.nvestorcentre co uk. Please nale that to gain
access to your details on the Computershare site you wiil need
the holder reference number stated or the tap left hand coiner of
yaur share certificate
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Coples of this Report and Accounts and other dotuments ssued
by the Company are available from the Company Secretary It
needed, copres can be made available in a vanety of formats,
including Braille, audic tape of larger type as approprate

You can contacl the Registrar, Computershare Investor Services
PLC, which has installed textphones to alfow speech and hearmg
impairec people who have therr own textphone to contact

them directty, without the need for ar intermediate operalor, by
diatling 0870 702 0405 Specially trained operators are available
dunng narmal business hours 1o answer guenes via tis service

Alternativery, if you prefer to go through a ‘typetalk’ operater
{provided by the Royal National Institute for Ceaf People} you
shoule dial 180071 fal'owed by the number you wish 1o dial
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where notification has been provided in advance, the Campany
will arrange for copies of shareholder communications to be
provided to the pperators af nominee accounts Nominee
mveslors may attend general meetings and speak al meelngs
when inviled to do so by the Chairman
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Upon a disposal of ali or part of a shareholder’s halding of
Ordinary shares, the impact on the sharehclder's capital gams
tax base cost of the conversion ta Sigma shares 1n 2007 and the

redesignation to Ordinary shares in 2012 shauld be cansidered.

In respect of the conversion to Sigma in 2007, agreement
was reached with HM Revenye & Customs ("HMRC") ta base
the apportionment of the capital gains tax base cost on

the proportior of Ordinary shares that were converted by a
shareholder inlo Sigma shares on 25 July 2007

Iherefore, if an Ordinary shareholder converted 20% of their
existing Ordinary shares into Sigma shares on 25 July 2007, the
capital gains tax base cast of the new Sigma skares acquired
would be equal to 20% of the oniginal capilal gans lax base cost
of the Ordinary shares that they keld pre-conversion 1he base
cost of their remaining holding of Grdinary shares would then be
80% of the ongina! capital gains tax base cost of their Ordinary
shares held pre-conversion,

As part of the re-designation of the Sigma shares nto Ordinary
shares in Decernber 2012, a turther shareholder's agreement
was reached with HMRC that a sharehoiders capitat gains tax
base cast in their new Ordinary shares should be equivalent to
their capiial gans base cost in the pre-existing Sigma shares
(1.e their capital gains base cost under the existing agreement If
applicable)

If In doubt as to the consequences of this agreement with HMRC,
shareholders should consult with their own professional advisors.
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Ihe shares of TR Fraperty Investrment Trust ple are listed and
traded on the Lordan Stock Exchange investors may puichase
shares thraugh thew stockbroker, bank or other fnancial
ntermediary
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Investars may hold their :nvestment 1n certificated form. Our
registrars, Computershare operate a dealing service which enables
nvestars te buy and sell shares quickly and easily online without

a broker or the need to open a trading account Alternatively the
Investor Centre allows Investors to manage portfolios quickly and
securely, update details and view balarces without annual charges.
further details are available by contacting Computershare on 0370
70/ 1355 or visit www.computershare cam

IR Property Investment Trust plc now cifers shareholders the
appeitunity to purchase fuither shares im the company through
the Dividend Re investment Plan ("DRIP™) thiough the regisirar,
Computeishare Shareholders can obtain further information on
the DRIP thiough they secure website www Investorcentie (o uk,
or by phoning 0370 707 1694 Charges do apply Please note

that to gain access 1o your detads of register for the DRIP on the
Computershare site you will need the halder reference number
stated on the top teft hanc coreer of your share certificate
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A number of banks and wealth manragerrent argarisations
provige Savings Schemes ard ISAs through whick UK Cients can
Investin TR Property Investmert Trust pic

ISA and savings scheme pioviders do charge dealirg ard other
fees for operating the accounts. and investors should reac the
Terms and Canditions provided by these compamies and ensure
that the charges best sust thewr planned investment profile Most
schemes carry annual charges but these vary between provider
and product Where deaiing charges apply, In some cases these
are apphed as a percertage of funds -nvested and others as a
fiat charge The optimum way to hold the shares will be different
for each investor depending upor the frequency and size cf
investments lo be mage

Details are giver below of two providers offering shares in
TR Property investment Trust, but there are many other options

Interactive invester provide anc administer 3 (arge of selt-select
investmert plans, rcluding tax-advartaged !SAs and SIPPs

{(Se tlrvested Personal Pensien), and Trading Accaunts

For more information, rteractive investar car be contacted on
0345 £07 6007, of by visiting hlps /fwwwe 1 (o uk/

Irteractive investor offer Investcrs it IR Prioperty ard other
rvestmenrt trLsts z fiee Gpt- 1 online shareholcer vot ng arc
rformaticn service that enables investors to rece ve sharercider
corrun catiors ard, if they wisk, 1c vote on the sharebo.dings
heic :n the.r accourt

TR Property s 2'sc or Fe ipteract ve super 60 1ated iist

BMG cffer a rumker of Prvate invester Plans, :rvestment Irust
and Jur.af 15As arc Childrer's Investrrert Plars ipvestmerts
can e mace as lump sums ¢r through reqular savings For more

information see inside the back caver. BMO can be contacted on
0800 136 420, or wisit www bmogaim.com

Plegse remember that the value of your investments and any
income from them may go down as well as up Past performance
15 not a guide to future performance You may not get back

the amaunt that you invest If you are in any doubt as to the
suitability of a plan ar any investment available within 3 plan,
please take professionai advice
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tollowing the acquisition of Alliance Irust Savings by interactive
investor, AlS self-directed accounts were transferred to the
Interactive investos platlorm on 1410 October 2019

In 2012 BNP Panbas closed down the part of therr business that
operaled Savings Schemes and ISAs. Investors were given the
choice of transternng their schemes to Albance Tryst Savings
{("A15™) or to a provider of therr own choice, of to close therr
accounts and sell the holdings.

if investors id nat respand to the letlers frarm BNP Paribas, their
accounts were transferred to AIS

Following the acquisition of Alliance Trust Savings by interactive
Investor, ATS self-directed accounts were Yiansferred to the
‘nteractive investor platform on 14 Ocleber 2019,

Sharehalders i a number of Investiment Trysts have been
approached as part ol a share fraud where they are infarmed

of an opportunity to sell their shares as the company s

subject 1o a takeover bid 1his 1s not true and s an attempt to
defiaud shareholders. 1he shaie fraud alsc seeks payment cf a
“ommission” by sharehalders to the parues carrying out the fraud

Sharehalders should remain alert to this type of scam and treat
with suspicior any contact by tetephone affering an attractive
investment opportumty, such as a premum price ot your shares,
of an atterrpt to convinge you that payment s required n ordef
to release a settlement for your shares These frauds may also
affer to sell your shares «n coirpanies wh.ch have little or no
valLe ar may offer you banus shares ihese so caled "hoiier
room” scams can also invoive an attempt to cbtain your persora
and/or ban<irg information with which to comrmit idertity fraud.

The cailer may be fuend'y and 1eassuning ci they may taxe 3
more urgent tane, erccuraging you to acl quck.y otherw:se you
coule lgse morey ar miss out on a dea

'f yeu have beer cortactec by an vaautharsec firm regarcing
yoLr shares the FCA wou d |«e to hear from you You can report
an unauthonsed f rm using the rCA Feiphine on 08CC 117 6768 o
by vis:ting the r website, wh-ck alsc has otrer usefy’ infarmatior,
al wiww fca org L«

fyeu receive any Lrsouctes investmept acy (e make sure you
cet the corect ramre of the perscn arc orgarisaton «f the rats
persist, hang up if you deal w ik an enzuthonises firme, you wii

not be elighble ¢ receve payment ynder the Frarca’ Services

Compersation Scheme

Please be advised that the Board or the Manager would
never make unsolicited telephone calls of such a nature to
shareholders.
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You can use your ISA allowance to make an annual
tax-efficient investment of up to £20,000 for the
current tax year with & lump sum from £100 or regular
savings from £25 a menth. You can also transfer any
existing 15As to us whilst maintaining the tax benefits.

SMOJUNIGR 184 {jiSA)

A tax efficient way to invest up to £9,000 per tax year
for a child. Contributions start from £100 lurmp sum or
£25 a month. JISAs or CTFs with other providers can be
transterred to BMO.

BMO LIFETIME ISA {LISA)

For those aged 18-39, a Lifetime ISA could help towards
purchasing your first home or retirement in later life.
Invest up to £4,000 for the cusrent tax year and receive
a 25% Government bonus up to £1,000 per year. Invest
with a lump sum from £100 or reqular savings from
£25 a month.

GMO CHIED TRUST FUND (1Y

H your child already has a CTF you can invest up to
£9,000 per birthday year, from £100 lump sum or £25 a
month. CTFs with other providers can be transferred

tc BMO.

Sh GENFRALINVESIMENT a0 dunT (1A
This is a flexible way to invest in our range

of Investment Trusts. There are no maximum
contributions, and investments can be made from
£100 lump sum or £25 a month.

Bl JURNIGE IMVESTIVERT AlJ0U AL
This is a flexible way to save for a child in our

range of investment Trusts. There are no maximum
contributions, and the plan can easily be set up under
bare trust (where the child is noted as the beneficial
owner) or kept in your name if you wish to retain
control aver the investment. lnvestments can be made
from a €100 lump sum or £25 a month per account.
You can also make additional lump sum top-ups at any
tirme from £100 per account.
‘The CTF and } SA accourts die speaed by parents i the child's name

ard they have dciess 1 the money at age 18 "Lalis may be recorded o)
moaitored for air ng dnd clality purpeses
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Annual management charges and other charges apply according to
the type of plan

gt

. E60+VAT
-+ EA0+VAT
£25+VAl

You car pay the annual charge fram your account, or by direct debit
{in addition to any annual subscnption mits)

et TR
£12 per fund {reduced 10 £0 for deals placed through the anline BMO

Investor Portal) for 1SA/GIA/LISA/[IA and |ISA. There are no dealing
charges on a CIF.

Dealing charges apply when shares are bought or sold but not on the
reinvestment of dividends or the investrent of manthly direct debits

Government stamp duty of 0 5% also applies on the purchase of
shares (where appiicabie).

[he value of Investments can go down as well as up and you may

not get back your oniginal invesunent Tax benefits depend on your
individual crcumstances and tax allowances and rules may change
Please ensure you have read the full Terms and Conditions, Privacy
Palicy and relevant Key features documents before investing For
requlatary purposes, please ensure you have read the Pre-sales Cost &
Charges disclosure related to the product you are applying for, and the
relevant Key Information Docurments (KIDs) for the investment trusts
you want to invest into.

fo open a new BMO plan, apply cnline at bmogam.com/apply

Online applicat:ons are nat avarlable if you are transferning an existing
plan with another provider to BMO, or I you are appiying for a new
plan in mare than one name but paper applications are available at
bmeoinvestments o uk/documents ar by contactirg BMO

Call S
Email. e PR

RS IR BN

Call
Email-
By post.

You can als¢ irvest 1n the tiust through enlne dealing platfarins for
private investors that offer share dealing and 15As Comparies inglude
Barclays Stockbeokers, EQi, Halifax, Hargreaves Lansdown,
HSBC, Interactive Investor, Lloyds Bank, The Share Centre

bmainvestments.co uk
§ facebook com/bmaoinvestmentsuk

{345 600 3030, $00am - 5 00pm, weekdays, calls may be recorded
or monitored far training and quality purpases.

BMU Assel Managemerl L mited -5 authonsed anc requ ated by the Firencia Corducl Author y anc s @ member of BMO Giobar Asset Meragerrent EMEA of wh ch the

ultimate parent compary 15 the Bark of Montreal 737570 156 05/21 LK
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BMO - | A part of BMO Financial Group




